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$8,000,000
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
(Dallas, Tarrant and Ellis Countics)
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, TAXABLE SERIES 2022

Dated Date: November 1, 2022 Due: February 15, as shown on page 2 hereof
Interest to accrue from Delivery Date (defined below)

PAYMENT TERMS . ., Interest on the $8,000,000 City of Grand Prairie, Texas, General Obligation Bonds, Taxable Series 2022 (the
"Bonds") will accrue from the Delivery Date, estimated to be December 6, 2022, will be payable February 15 and August 15 of
each year commencing February 15, 2023 until maturity or prior redemption, and will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year
consisting of twelve 30-day months. The definitive Bonds will be initially registered and delivered only to Cede & Co., the nominee
of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC") pursuant to the Book-Entry-Only System described herein.
Beneficial ownership of the Bonds may be acquired in denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof within a stated
maturity. No physical delivery of the Bonds will be made to the beneficial owners thereof. Principal of, premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds will be payable by the Paying Agent/Registrar (identified below) to Cede & Co., which will make distribution
of the amounts so paid to the participating members of DTC for sul P 1o the beneficial owners of the Bonds, See
*THE BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System" herein. The initial Paying Agent/Registrar is Zions Bancorporation, National
Association, Houston, Texas (see "THE BONDS - Paying Agent/Registrar").

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE . . . The Bonds are issued pursuant to the Home Rule Charter of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the
City™), the Constitution and general laws of the State of Texas, including particularly Texas Government Code, Chapters 1331 and
1371, as amended, and an election held within the City on May 1, 2021, and an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City
on October 11, 2022, autharizing the issuance of the Bonds (the “Bond Ordinance”) which delegated to an authorized officer of
the City (the “Pricing Officer”) the autherity to execute a pricing certificate (the “Pricing Certificate™ and together with the Band
Ordinance, the “Ordinance™), which Pricing Certificate was fon N ber 9, 2022 and ins the final sale terms of the
Bonds. ‘The Bonds are direct obligations of the City, payable from a continuing, annual ad valorem tax levied on all taxable propenty
within the City, within the limits prescribed by law, as provided in the Bond Ordinance (see "THE BONDS - Authority for Issuance
of the Bonds" and - Security and Source of Payment for the Bonds™).

PURPOSE . . . Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used for the purposes of pmwdmg funds (i) for promoting economic

development throughout the City, through planning, designing, constructing, imp £, ding and expanding public sireets,
utilities, and other infrastructure facilities, includmg the acquisition of land therefor, and through the City's programs for economic
development and housing including the acqui of imp 1 and unimp | properties, the demolition of existing structures,
making grants, loans and othcrwlse providing assistance with bond p ds to p ic development and to stimulate
bumms and commercial activity in the City for private commerma] industrial, retail, residential and mixed-use development,
hospitality and i projects and neighborhood rev proj and (i) to pay the costs associated with the issuance
of the Bonds.

CUSIP PREFIX: 386138
MATURITY SCHEDULE & 9 DIGIT CUSIP
See Schedule on Page 2

LEGALITY , ., The Bonds are offered for delivery when, as and if issued and received by the initial purchaser (the “Initial
Purchaser”) and subject to the approving opinion of the Attomey General of Texas and the opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright US
LLP, Bond Counsel, Dallas, Texas {see Appendix C, "Form of Bond Counsel’s Opinion"). Certain legal matters will be passed
upon for the City by West & Associates, L.L.P,, Disclosure Counsel, Dallas, Texas.

DELIVERY . . , It is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery through the facilities of DTC on or about December 6,
2022 (the "Delivery Date"},



GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, TAXABLE SERIES 2022

MATURITY SCHEDULE

S8,000,000

I5-Feb  Interest Initial CUSIP
Amount Maturity Rate Yiekl Suffix !’
§ 225,000 2024 6,000%  4.750% M24
240,000 2025 6.000%  4.770% Ma2
250,000 2026 6.000%  4.800% M0
270,000 2027 6,000%  4.850% M57
285,000 2028 6.000%  4.900% Mos
300,000 2029 6.000% 4.950% M73
320,000 2030 5.000% 5.000% MEI
335,000 2031 5.050% 5.050% Moy
355,000 2032 | 5.100% 5. 100%% N23
370,000 2033 5.150%  5.150% N3l

CUSIP Prefix: 3861387

$805,000 5.250% Term Bonds Due February 15, 2035 Priced to Yield 5.250% - CUSIP Suffix!"! N56

$895,000 5.350% Term Bonds Due February 15, 2037 Priced to Yield 5.350% - CUSIP Suffix!! N72

$995,000 5.450% Term Bonds Due February 15, 2039 Priced to Yield 5.450% - CUSIP Suffix™ N8
S1,110,000 5.550% Term Bonds Due February 15, 2041 Priced to Yield 5.550% - CUSIP Suffix' P39
$1,245,000 5.650% Term Bonds Due February 15, 2043 Priced to Yield 5.650% - CUSIP Suffix!) P54

(Interest to acerue from Delivery Date,)

(1) CUSIP is a registered trademark of the American Banlers Association. CUSIP data herein is provided by CUSIP Global
Services, managed by FactSet Research Systems Inc. on behalf of the American Bankers Association. This data is not intended
to create a database and does not serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP Services. The City, the Financial Advisor

and the Initial Purchaser talce no responsibility for the accuracy of such numbers.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION , .. The City reserves the right, at its option, to redeem Bonds having stated maturities on and afier
February 15, 2030, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, on February 15, 2029, or
any date thereafter, at the par value thercof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption (see "THE BONDS - Optional

Redemption of the Bonds"),

MANDATORY SINKING FUND REDEMPTION | . . The Bonds maturing on February 15 in the years 2035, 2037, 2039, 2041 and 2043
(the “Term Bonds™) are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in part prior to maturity at a price of par plus accrued interest

to the redemption date (see “THE BONDS — Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption™),

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY)



This Offfetal Statement, whicl includes the cover page, maturify schedde and the Appendices heveto, does not constinie an offer to xell or the
solicitation of an offer fo by in any fnrisdiction to any person fo whionn it i el to make such affer, solicitation or sole.

No dealer, broker, salesperson or olher person has been aithorized to glve information o fo meke any representation ather than those cortained
in this Official Statentent, and, if given or made, such ather information or vepresentations st nof be velied upon,

The information set fovth herein fas been obtained frow the City and ather saurces believed to be reliable, but sl information Iy not guaranieed
ax o acciraey or completencsy and is not to be construed ax the promise or giiarantee of the Financial Advisar or the Initial Purchaser. This
Offfcial Statement confaing, in part, esfimales and nratters of opinion which are wof intended as statenents of fact, and na representation is el
a5 to the corvectiess of such estintates and opinions, er thaf they will be reafized.

The i auriel e ions of opinion ined fievein ave subject to change withow! notice, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement
nar any safe made hereander shall, under any ci create any implication that there s been no change fn the affairs of the City or
aiher maiters described.

THE AGREEMENTS OF THE CITY AND OTHERS RELATED TO THE BONDS ARE CONTAINED SOLELY IN THE CONTRACTS DESCRIBED
HEREIN. NEITHER THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT NOR ANY OTHER STATEMENT MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFER OR SALE
OF THE BONDS 1S TO BE CONSTRUED AS CONSTITUTING AN AGREEMENT WITH THE PURCHASERS OF THE BONDS. INVESTORS
SHOULD READ THE ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT, INCLUDING THE MATURITY SCHEDULE AND ALL APPENDICES ATTACHED
HERETO, T OBTAIN INFORMATION ESSENTIAL TO MAKING AN INFORMED INVESTMENT DECISION.

THE BONDS ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION WITH THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AND
CONSEQUENTLY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED THEREWITH, THE REGISTRATION, QUALIFICATION, OR EXEMPTION OF THE
BONDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAW PROVISIONS OF THE JURISDIC. TIONS IN WHICH THE BONDS HAVE
BEEN REGISTERED, QUALIFIED, OR EXEMPTED SHOULD NOT BE REGARDED AS A RECOMMENDATION THEREQF.

All infarmation contained in this Official Statement i subject, in afl respects, to the complete bady of information contained in the original sources
thereaf and o guaranty, warranty, or other reg fon is made ing the or conpl of the information herein. In
particular, He apinion or represemiation i renndered ax to wheiher any projection will appraximate actual resuits, and ail apinions. estimates ol

assannptions, whether or pot expressly identified ay such, should ot he considered statements af foct,

None of the City, the Financial Advisor, or the Initial Parchaser imake any representation regarding the information contained in this Official
Sttentent regarding DTC or its Book-Exitiy-Only Systei, as sneh information has been furnished by DTC. CUSIP numbers have been assigned fo
these issnes by CUSIP Global Services, and are Included solely for the comvenience of the ewners of the Bonds. None of the City, the Financial
Advisor. ar the Initial Purchaser shafl be resporsible for the selection o correctness of the CUSIP manbers shown o the inside cover page.

THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT CONTAINS "FORWARD-LOUKING" STATEMENTS WITHIN THE MEANING OF SECTION 21E OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED. SUCH STATEMENTS MAY INVOLVE ENOWN AND UNKNOWN RISKS,
UNCERTAINTIES AND OTHER FACTORS WHICH MAY CAUSE THE ACTUAL RESULTS, PERFORMANCE AND ACHIEVEMENTS TO BE
DIFFERENT FROM FUTURE RESULTS, PERFORMANCE AND ACHIEVEMENTS EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED BY SUCH FORWARD-
LOOKING STATEMENTS. INVESTORS ARE CAUTIONED THAT THE ACTUAL RESULTS COULD DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE
SET FORTH IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

References to website addresses presented herein are for informational preposes only and may be in the faru of o Iyperfink solely for the reader's
convenience, Unless specified othervise, sueh websites ane the Information or Typerlinks contained therafn ave not incorporated inte, and are not
a part of, this Official Statement for aiy purposes.
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NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT

Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP

2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 3600
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December 6, 2022 Unifed States

Tel +1 214 855 BO0D
Fax +1 214 855 8200
nortenrosefulbright.com

IN REGARD to the authorization and issuance of the “City of Grand Prairie, Texas, General Obligation
Bonds, Taxable Series 2022" dated November 1, 2022, in the principal amount of $8,000,000 (the
“Bonds”), we have examined into their issuance by the City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the "City"), solely
to express legal opinions as to the validity of the Bonds and for no other purpose. We have not been
requested to investigate or verify, and we neither expressly nor by implication render herein any
opinion concerning, the financial condition or capabilities of the City, the disclosure of any financial or
statistical information or data pertaining to the City and used in the sale of the Bonds, or the sufficiency
of the security for or the value or marketability of the Bonds.

THE BONDS are issued in fully registered form only and in denominations of $5,000 or any integral
multiple thereof (within a maturity). The Bonds mature on February 15 in each of the years specified
in the pricing certificate (the "Pricing Certificate”) executed pursuant to an ordinance adopted by the
City Council of the City authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (the "Bond Ordinance” and, Jointly with
the Pricing Certificate, the "Ordinance”), unless redeemed prior to maturity in accordance with the
terms stated on the Bonds. The Bonds accrue interest from the date, at the rates, and in the manner
and interest is payable on the dates, all as provided in the Ordinance.

IN RENDERING THE OPINIONS herein we have examined and rely upon (i) original or certified copies
of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Bonds, including the Ordinance and an examination
of the initial Bond executed and delivered by the City (which we found to be in due form and properly
executed); (ii) certifications of officers of the City relaling to certain facts within the knowledge and
control of the City and (iii) other documentation and such matters of law as we deem relevant. In the
examination of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Bonds, we have assumed the
authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals, the conformity to original copies of all
documents submitted to us as certified copies, and the accuracy of the statements contained in such
documents and certifications.

BASED ON OUR EXAMINATIONS, IT IS OUR OPINION that, under the applicable laws of the State
of Texas in force and effect on the date hereof, the Bonds have been duly authorized by the City and,
when issued in compliance with the provisions of the Ordinance, are valid, legally binding and
enforceable obligations of the City payable from an ad valorem tax levied, within the limits prescribed
by law, upon all taxable property in the City, except to the extent that the enforceability thereof may
be affecled by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or other similar laws affecting
creditors’ rights or the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with the general principles of equity.

OUR OPINIONS ARE BASED on existing law, which is subject to change. Such opinions are further
based on our knowledge of facts as of the date hereof. We assume no duty to update or supplement
our opinions to reflect any facts or circumstances that may thereafter come to our attention or to reflect
any changes in any law that may thereafter occur or become effective. Moreover, our opinions are
not a guarantee of result; rather, such opinions represent our legal judgment based upon our review
of existing law that we deem relevant to such opinions and in reliance upon the representations and
covenants referenced above.

Morten Rese Fulbright US LLP is a limited liability partnershio registered under the laws of Texss, 133174128.3/1001227643

Morton Rose Fulbight US LLP, Nodon Rose Fulbright LLP, Morton Rose Fulbright Australia, Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP and Nodon Rose
Fulbright Seuth Africa Inc are separate legal entities and all of them are members of Noron Rose Fulbright Varain, & Swiss verein, Norfon Rose Fulbright
WVerein helps coordinate the activities of Ihe members but does not tself provide legal services to chents, Details of each antity, with cerdain regulatcry
infarmation, are available at noonroselulbright.com.
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THE CITY viciiienianomsssmassssmrmssses

THE BORDS ...coocunmnmuressssessimmsmnses

PAYMENT OF INTEREST ..o

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE ..o

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS ...

REDEMPTION ooouvnrsrmesrsassinmneess

NOTAX EXEMPTION.....ooviee

USE OF PROCEEDS (oo

Book-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM

The City of Grand Prairie, Texas {the "City"} is a political subdivision and home rule municipal
corporation of the State of Texas, located in Dallas, Tarrant and Ellis Counties, Texas, The City
covers approximately 81 square miles (sce *INTRODUCTION - Description of the City™).

The Bands are issued as $8,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Taxable Serics 2022 (the
“Bonds™). The Bonds are issued as serial baonds maturing on February 15 in each of the years
2024 through 2033, and &s term bonds maturing on February 15 in the years 2035, 2037, 2039,
2041 and 2043 unless red d in {ance with the provisions described herein (see "THE
BONDS — Description of the Bonds”, (“Optional Redemption of the Bonds™ and “Mandatory
Sinking Fund Redemption™).

Interest on the Bonds accrues from the Delivery Date, estimated ta be December 6, 2022, and
is payable February 15, 2023, and cach August 15 and February 15 thereafier until maturity or
prior redemption (see "THE BONDS - Description of the Bonds, THE BONDS-Mandatory
Sinking Fund Redemption" and "THE BONDS - Optional Redemption of the Bonds").

The Bonds are issued pursuant to the Home Rule Charter of the City, the Constitution and
general laws of the State of Texas, including particularly Texas Government Code, Chapters
1331 and 1371, as amended, and an election held within the City on May 1, 2021, and an
ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City on October 11,2022, authorizing the issuance
of the Bonds (the “Bond Ordi »y which delegated to an authorized officer of the City (the
“Pricing Officer™) the authority to execute a pricing certificate (the “Pricing Certificate” and
together with the Bond Ordinance, the “Ordinance™), which Pricing Certificate was executed
on N ber 9, 2022 and ins the final sale terms of the Bonds. (se¢ "THE BONDS -
Authority for lssuance of the Bonds" and *- Security and Source of Payment for the Bonds™).

The Bonds, when issued, are direct obligations of the City payable from a direct and continuing,
annual ad valorem tax levied, within the limits prescribed by law, on all taxable property within
the City as provided in the Bond Ordinance (see *THE BONDS — Security and Source of
Payment for the Bonds").

The City reserves the right, at its option, to redeem Bonds having stated maturities on and after
February 15, 2030, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 ar any integral multiple
thereof, on February 15, 2029 or any date thereafter, at the par value thereof plus acerued interest
io the date of redemption (see "THE BONDS - Optional Redemption of the Bonds").

The Bonds maturing on February 15 in the years 2035, 2037, 2039, 2041 and 2043, (the “Term
Bonds™) are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in part prier to maturity at a price of
par plus accrued interest to the redemption date (see “THE BONDS — Mandatory Sinking Fund
Redemption™}.

Interest on the Bonds will not be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes,
See "TAX MATTERS" herein.

Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to provide funds (i) for promoting economic
development throughout the City, through planni designing i improving,
extending and expanding public streets, utilities, and other infrastructure facilities, including the
acquisition of land therefor, and through the City's programs for economic development and
housing including the acquisition of improved and unimproved properties, the demolition of
existing structures, making grants, loans and otherwise providing assistance with bond proceeds
1oy ic develop and to stimulate business and commercial activity in the City
for private commercial, industrial, retail, residential and mixed-use development, hospitality
and entertainment projects and neighborhood revitalization projects; and (i) to pay the costs
associated with the issuance of the Bonds,

The Bonds have been rated "AAA" with a (stable outlook) by S&P Global Ratings, a division
of &P Global Inc. {"S&P") (se¢ "OTHER INFORMATION — Rating").

The definitive Bonds will be initially registered and delivered only 1o Cede & Co., the nominee
of DTC pursuant to the Book-Entry-Only System described herein. Beneficial ownership of the
Bonds may be acquired in denominations of 5,000 or integral multiples thereof, Mo physical
delivery of the Bonds will be made to the beneficial owners thereof. Principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on the Bonds will be payable by the Paying Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co,,
which will make distribution of the amounts so paid to the pasticipating members of DTC for



unit, on a local option basis, to tax Goods-in-Transit if the taxing unit takes official action, after conducting a public hearing, before
January | of the first tax year in which the taxing unit proposes to tax Goods-in-Transit, Goods-in-Transit and Freeport Property
do not include oil, natural gas or petroleum products, and Goods-in-Transit does not include aircraft or special inventories such as
manufactured housing inventory, or & dealer’s motor vehicle, boat, or heavy equipment inventory.

A taxpayer may receive only one of the Goods-in-Transit or Freeport Property exemptions for items of personal property.

Oruer EXemer PROPERTY . Other major categories of exempt property include property owned by the State or its political
subdivisions if used for public purposes, property exempt by federal law, property used for pn]luuon oontml farm products owned
by prod property of nonprofit corporations used for scientific hoor ed g 4 college or

university, designated historic sites, solar and wind-powered energy devices, and certain classes of intangible persnnal property.

Tax INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONES, . . A city or county, by petition of the landowners or by action of its govemmg body,
may create one or mote tax increment reinvestment zones (* FIRZ"} within its boundaries, At Ihe time of the ereation orﬂlc TIRZ
a "base value" for the real property in the TIRZ is established and the diff t any i in the i of
taxable real property in the TIRZ in excess of the base value is known as the "tax increment”. During the existence of the TIRZ, all
or a portion of the taxes levied against the tax increment by a city or county, and all other overlapping taxing units that elected to
participate, are restricted to paying only planned project and financing costs within the TIRZ and are not available for the payment
of other chligations of such taxing units,

TAx AIIATI:MENI‘ AGREEMENTS . , . Taxing units may also enter into tax o
¥ Under the @ Property owner agrees to construet certain :mpmwme:nts on its property. The taxing unit,
in turn, agress nol to levy a tax on all or part of the i i value attributable to the imp until the expiration of the
I The ab could last for a period of up to 10 years.

For a discussion of how the various exemptions described above are applied by the City, see "TAX INFORMATION — City
Application of Tax Code".

TemMPoORARY EXEMPTION FOR QUALIFIED PROPERTY DAMAGED BY A DISASTER. .. The Property Tax Code entitles the owner of
certain qualified (i) tangible p | property used for the production of income, {ii) improvements to real property, and (iii)
manufactured homes located in an area declared by the Governor to be a disaster area following a disaster and is at least 15 percent
damaged by the disaster, as determined by the chief appraiser, to an exemption from taxation of a portion of the appraised value of
the property. The amount of the exemption ranges from 13 percent to 100 percent based upon the damage assessment rating assigned
by the chief appraiser. For tax years beginning prior to January 1, 2022, except in situations where the territory is declared a disaster
on or after the date the taxing unit adopts a tax rate for the year in which the disaster declaration is issued, the governing body of
the taxing unit is not required to take any action in order for the taxpaver to be eligible for the exemption, 11 a taxpayer qualifies
for the exemption after the beginning of the tax year, the amount of the exemption is prorated based on the number of days left in
the tax year following the day on which the Governor declares the area to be a disaster area. For tax years beginning on or afier
January 1, 2022, the governing bady of the taxing unit is not required to take any action in order for the taxpayer to be eligible for
the exception. For more information on the exemption, reference is made to Section 11.35 of the Tax Code.

Crry AND TAXPAYER REMEDIES . . . Under certain circumstances, taxpayers and taxing units, including the City, may appeal the
determinations of the Appraisal District by timely initiating a protest with the Appraisal Review Board. Additionally, taxing units
such as the City may bring suit against the Appraisal Distriet to compel compliance with the Property Tax Code.

Owners of certain property with a taxable value in excess of the current year "minimuim cligibility amount”, as determined by the
State Comptroller of Public A 15 (the “Comptroller), and situated in a county with a population of cne million or more, may
protest the determinations of an appraisal district directly to a three-member special panel of the appraisal review board, appointed
by the chairman of the appraisal review board, consisting of highly qualified professionals in the field of property tax appraisal.
The minimum eligibility amount is set at $52,978,200 for the 2022 tax year, and is adjusted annually by the State Comptroller to
reflect the inflation rate.

The Property Tax Code sets forth notice and hearing procedures for certain tax rate increases by the City and provides for taxpayer
referenda that could result in the repeal of certain tax increases (see "TAX I'N'FORMATION Public Hearing and Maintenance
and Operations Tax Rate Limitations"). The Property Tax Code also establish for providing notice to property owners
of praisals reflecting i | property value, appraisals which are hlgher than rendlllun%, and appraisals of property not
previously on an appraisal roll,

LEVY aND COLLECTION OF TAXES . .. The City is responsible for the collection of its taxes, unless it elects 1o transfer such
functions to another governmental entity. Taxes are due October 1, or when billed, whichever comes later, and become delinguent
after January 31 of the following year. A delinguent tax incurs a penalty of six percent (6%) of the amount of the tax for the first
calendar month it is delinquent, plus one percent {1%) for sach additional month or portion of 2 month the tax remains unpaid prior
to July 1 of the year in which it becomes delinquent. If the tax is not paid by July [ of the year in which it becomes delinquent, the
tax incurs a total penalty of twelve percent (12%) regardless of the number of months the tax has been delinquent and incurs an
additional penalty of up to twenty percent {20%) ifunpns:d by the City. The delinquent tax also accrues interest at a rate of one
percent (1%) for each month or portion of a month it remains unpaid. The Pmpeﬂy Tax Code also makes provision for the split
payment of taxes, discounts for early payment and the postp of the di date of taxes for certain taxpayers.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Pension Expense and Defered Quiflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
elafed to Pensions
For the year ended September 30, 2021, the city recognized pension expense of $9,704,213.

At September 30, 2021, the City reported deferred inflows/outflows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Difference in expected and actuol experience $ 2225704 % (2.955,950)
[actuarial (gains) or losses]
Difference in assurnptions 490,705 -
Difference in projected ond actual earnings
on pension plan invesiments = (15,789,914}
[actuarial [gains) or losses]
Employer's confributions to the pension plan
subsequent to the rmeasurement date 13,313,284 -

$ 16,229,693 §  (18,745864)

The $13,313,284 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension licbility for the
year ending September 30, 2022, Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Measurement Net deferred
Year Ended outflows (inflows)

December 31 of resources
2021 3 15.439,843)
2022 431,258
2023 19,202,496}
2024 [1.345,074)
2025 (73,300}
Tolal 3 (15,829,455}

K. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description

Supplemental Death Benefits

The City also partficipates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance
plan operated by the TMRS known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by
ordinance, to provide group-ferm life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The
City may terminate coverage under and discontinue parficipation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance
before November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1.
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Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contiibutions will be made at the
rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was
projected to be avdilable to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was applied fo
all periods of projected benefit payments fo determine the Total Pension Ligbility.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Increase (Decrease)
Tolal Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Persion

Liaibility Net Position Liability
(A) [B) (Al- [B)
Balance at December 31, 2019 $  619.684,063 $ 556100039 : 3 63,584,024
Changes for the year:
Service cost 18,113,194 - 18,113,194
Interest 41,452,842 - 41,452,842
Change of benefit terms - - -
Difference between expected -
and actual experience [2.363,879) - (2.363,879)
Changes in assumpfions - - -
Confributions - employer - 16,938,302 (16,938,302)
Confributions - employes - 7.047,274 (7.047,274)
MNet invesiment income - 42,208,241 (42,208,241)
Benefit payments* (29.248,755) (29,248,955) -
Administrative expense - [273,140) 273,140
Cther changes - (10,657) 10,657
Met changes 27,953,202 36,661,065 (8,707,863
Balance af December 31, 2020 $ 647,637,265 § 592761104 % 5487616
* Includes refunds of employee contribulions
itivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in iscount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%.as
well as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rafe that is
one-percentage-point lower (5.75%) or one-percentage-point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

Sensifivity of the Net Pension Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate
Current
1% Decrease Single Rate 1% Increase

$ 147003326 § 54874161 § (20.712.746)

Pension Plon Fiduciary Net Posifion
Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued
TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.imrs.com.
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Furthermore, the City may provide, on a local aption basis, for the split payment, partial p and di for early p
of taxes under certain circumstances.

CiTy's RIGHTS IN THE EVENT OF TAX DELINQUENCIES . . . Taxes levied by the City are a personal obligation of the owner of the
property. On January | of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all state and local taxes, penalties, and
interest ultimately imposed for the year on the propeiy. The lien exists in favor of each taxing unit, including the City, having
pawer to tax the property. The City's tax lien is on a parity with tax liens of such other taxing units. A tax lien on réal property
takes priority over the claim of most creditors and other holders of liens on the property encumbered by the tax lien, whether or not
the debi or Jien existed before the attachment of the tax lien; however, whether a lien of the United States is on 4 parity with or
takes priority over a tax lien of the City is determined by applicable federal law. Personal property, under certain circumstances, is
subject 1o seizure and sale for the payment of delinquent taxes, penalty, and interest,

At any time after taxes on property become delinquent, the City may file suit to foreclose the lien securing payment of the tax, to
enforce personal liability for the tax, or both. In filing a suit to foreclose a tax lien on real property, the City must join other taxing
wnits that have claims for delinguent taxes against all or part of the same property.

Collection of delinquent faxes may be adversely affected by the amount of taxes owed to other taxing units, adverse market
conditions, taxpayer redemption rights, or bankruptey proceedings which restrain the collection of a taxpayer's debt,

Federal bankruptey law provides that an automatic stay of actions by creditors and other entities, including governmental units,
goes info effect with the filing of any petition in bankruptey. The ic stay p governmental units from foreclosing on
property and prevents liens for post-petition taxes from attaching to property and obtaining secured creditor status unless, in either
case, an order lifting the stay is obtained from the bankruptey court. In many cases, post-petition taxes are paid as an administrative
expense of the estate in bankruptey or by order of the bankruptcy court.

PUBLIC HEARING AND MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS TAX RATE LIMITATIONS . . . The following terms as used in this section
have the meanings provided below:

"adjusted” means lost values are not included in the caleulation of the prior year's taxes and new values are not included in the
current year's taxable values,

*de minimis rate" means the maintenance and operations tax rate that will produce the prior year's total maintenance and operations
tax levy (adjusted) from the current year's values (adjusted), plus the rate that produces an additional $500,000 in tax revenue when
applied to the current year's taxable value, plus the debt service tax rate.

Le

"no-new-revenue tax rate" means the and operations tax rate and debt service tax rate that will produce the
prior year’s total tax levy (adjusted) from the current year's total taxable values (adjusted).

“special taxing unit” means a city for which the mai and operations tax rate proposed for the current tax year is 2.5 cents
ar less per $100 of taxable value.

"unused increment rate" means the cumulative difference b a city's voter-approval tax rate and its actual tax rate for each of
the tax years 2020 thraugh 2022, which may be applied to a city"s tax rate in tax years 2021 through 2023 without impacting the
voter-approval tax mte.

“yoter-approval tax rate” means the maintenance and operations tax rate that will produce the prioe.year’s total maintenance and
apetations tax levy (adjusted) from the current year's values (adjusted) multiplied by 1035, plus the debt service tax rate, plus the
"unused increment rate”.

The City’s tax rate consists of two components: (1) & rate for funding of mai and op pendi in the current
year (the “maintenance and operations tax rate"}, and (2) a rate for funding debt service in the current year (the "debt service tax
rate"). Under State law, the assessor for the City must submit an apprai | roll showing the total ised ], and taxable

values of all property in the City to the City Council by August | or as soon as practicable thereafter.

A city must lly caleulate its voter-approval tax rate and no-new-revenue tax rate in | with forms p ibed by the
State Comptroller and provide notice of such rates to each owner of taxable property within the city and the county fax assessor-
collector for each county in which all or part of the city is located, A city must adopt a tax rate before the later of September 30 or
the 60th day afier receipt of the certified appraisal roll, except that a tax rate that exceeds the voler-approval tax rate must be
adopled not later than the 715t day before the next ocourring November uniform election date. If a city fails to timely adopt a tax
Fate, the tax rate is statutorily set as the lower of the no-new-revenue tax rate for the current tax year or the tax rate adopted by the
city for the preceding tax year.

As deseribed below, the Property Tax Code provides that if a city adopis a tax rate that exceeds its voter-approval tax rate or, in
certain cases, its de minimis rate, an election must be held to determine whether or not to reduce the adopted tax rate to the voter-
approval tax rate.

A city may not adopt a tax rate that exceeds the lower of the voler-approval tax rate or the no-new-revenue tax rate until each

appraisal district in which such city participates has delivered notice to each taxpayer of the estimated total amount of property
taxes owed and the city has held a public hearing on the proposed tax increase.
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For cities with a population of 30,000 or more as of the most recent federal decennial census, if the adopted tax rate for any tax
year exceeds the voter-approval tax rate, that city must conduct an election on the next occurring November uniform election date
to determine whether or not to reduce the adopted tax rate to the voter-approval tax rate.

For cities with a population less than 30,000 as of the most recent federal decennial census, i the adopted tax rate for any tax year
exceeds the greater of (i) the voter-approval tax rate or (i) the de minimis rate, the city must conduct an election on the next
occurring November uniform election date to determine whether or not to reduce the adopted tax rate to the voter-approval tax rate.
However, for any tax year during which a city has a population of less than 30,000 as of the most recent federal decennial census
and does not qualify as a special taxing unit, if a city’s adopted tax rate is equal to or less than the de minimis rate but greater than
both (a) the no-new-revenue tax rate, multiplied by 1.08, plus the debt service tax rate or (b) the city's voter-approval tax rate, then
a valid petition signed by at least three percent of the registered voters in the city would require that an election be held to determine
whether or net to reduce the adopted tax rate to the voter-approval tax rate.

Any city located at least partly within an area declared a disaster avea by the Governor of the State or the President of the United
States during the current year may calculate its voter-approval tax rate using a 1.08 multiplier, instead of 1,035, until the earlier of
(i) the second tax year in which such city’s total taxable appraised value exceeds the taxable appraised valus on January 1 of the
year the disaster occurred, or (ii) the third tax year after the tax year in which the disaster occurred,

State law provides cities and counties in the State the option of assessing a maximum one-half percent (1/2%) sales and use tax on
retail sales of taxable items for the purpose of reducing its ad valorem taxes, if approved by a majority of the voters in a local option

clection. If the additional sales and use tax for ad val tax is apy d and levied, the no-new-revenue tax rate and
voter-approval tax rate must be reduced by the amount of the esti ] sales tax 1o be d in the current tax year,

The calculations of the no-new-revenne tax rate and voter-approval tax vate do not limit or impact the City"s ability to set
a debt service tax rate in each year sufficient to pay debt service on all of the City's tax-supported debt obligations, including
the Bonds.

Reference is made to the Property Tax Code for definitive requirements for the levy and collection of ad valorem taxes and the
calculation of the various defined rax rates,

CrTv APPLICATION OF Tax CODE . . . The City grants an exemption to the market value of the residence homestead of persons 65
years of age or older of $45,000; the disabled are also granted an exemption of $30,000. Disabled veterans or the surviving spouse
or children of a deceased veteran who died while on active duty in the armed forces are granted a maximum exemption of up
$12,000 dependent upon the amount of disability. Disabled veterans {and spouses) awarded 100% disability compensation and a

disability rating of 100% are entitled to have 100% of the appraised value of their resid pted from property
taxes,

The City has granted an additional exemption of 12.5% of the appraised value of resid he ds; the P

is §5,000.

See Table | for a listing of the amounts of the exemptions described above.

The City has adopted the tax freeze for citizens who are disabled or are 65 years ol age or older, which became a local option and
subject to local referendum on January 1, 2004,

Ad valorem taxes are not levied by the City against the exempt value of residence homesteads for the payment of debt.
The City does not tax nonbusiness personal property.

Dallas County collects taxes for the City by contract.

The City does permit split payments, and discounts are not allowed,

The City does not tax Freeport Property.

The City does not collect the additional one-half cent sales tax for reduction of ad valorem taxes,

The City has adopted tax abatement guidelines. The City granted partial tax abatements to three companies See "Tax
ABATEMENTS” below,

The City has created three TIRZs, but at this time only two are active,

TAX ABATEMENTS ., . The City policy is to grant tax ab. for the devel of new facilities or the expansion of existing
facilities for which the life of the Facility exceeds the life of the abatement, For properties not in an enterprise zone, total investment
must exceed §5,000,000, total job creation must exceed 25 itions, the ab period may not exceed 10 years and

the abatemnent percentage may not exceed 75%. As of the 2021 certified roll {(used for 2022 fiseal year) the City's abatement
agreements with three companies resulted in $38,060,542 in appraised values being exempt from taxation, totaling $255,005 in
taxes abated on the 2021 certified tax roll (used for the 2022 fiscal year),
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Salary increases are based on o service-related table. Mortality rates for active members are based on
the PUB(10) mortality fables with the Public Safety table used for males and the General Employee table
used for females. Mortality rates for healthy retirees and beneficiaries are based on the Gender-distinct
2019 Municipal Refirees of Texas mortality tables. The rates for actives, healthy refirees and beneficiaries
are projected on a fully generational basis by Scale UMP to acceount for future mortality improvements.
For disabled annuitants, the same mortality tables for healthy retirees are used with a 4- year set-forward
for males and a 3-year set-forward for females. In addition, a 3.5% and 3.0% minimum. The city should
insert the plan provisions that they have adopted. For example, the city may include refirerment eligibility,
employee and employer deposit rates, vesting requirements, and other provisions such as cost-of-living
adjustments or updated service credit. Plan provisions, by city, are included in the last section of TMRS'
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Annual Report) and are also available on the website under For
Cities | Resources | My City Plan. The city may also want to refer to TMRS' Plan Description footnote, in
the Annual Repart, to obtain additional language regarding the pension plan. 14 mortality rate is applied,
for males and females respectively, to reflect the impairment for younger members who become
disabled. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality
improvements subject to the floor

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience of
TMRS over the four-year period from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2018, They were adopted in
2019 and first used in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation. The post-retirement mortality assumption
for Annuity Purchase Rates [APRs| is based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009
through 2011 and dated December 31, 2013. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an
ermphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production of income in order 1o satisfy the short-
term and long-ferm funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of retum (expected
retumns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined fo produce the long-term expected rate of refurn by weighting the expected
future real rates of retum by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expectad inflation. In
determining their best estimate of a recommended investment retum assumption under the various
alternative asset allocation portfolios, GRS focused on the area between (1] arithmetic mean (aggressive)
without an adjusfrment for fime (conservative) and (2) the geometric mean [conservative) with an
adjusiment for time {aggressive). The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of retumn for each
mtjor asset class In fiscal year 2021 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expecled
Real Rate of Refurn

Asset Class Target Allocation {Arithmetic)

Global Public Equity 30.0% 5.30%
Core Fixed Income 10.0% 1.258%
Non-Core Fixed Income 200% 4.14%
Real Return 10.0% 3.85%
Real Estate 10.0% 4,005
Absolute Return 10.0% 3.48%
Private Equity 10.0% 7.75%
Total 100,0%
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Emplovees Covered by Benefif Terms

At the December 31, 2020 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by
the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 864

Inactive employees enfiled fo but not yel receiving benefits 488

Active employees 1,372

Total 2924
Contibutions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross earnings, and the
city matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of
the city. Under the state law goveming TMRS, the confribution rate for each city is determined annudally
by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate
is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits eamed by employees during the year,
with an additional ameunt to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees for the City of Grand Prairie were required fo contribute 7% of their annual gross earmings
during the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City of Grand Praire were 17.00% and 17.44% in
calendar years 2020 and 2021, respectively. The City's contibutions to TMRS for the year ended
September 30, 2021, were $17,966,312, and were equal to the required contributions.

Net Pension Liability
The city's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2020, and the Total Pension Liability
(TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions
The Total Pension Liability in the Decernber 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was defermined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per year

Qveral payroll grow th 2.75% per yeor, adiusted down for
population declines, If any

Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment
expense, including inflation

82

Tax INCREMENT FINANCING ZONES . . . Three TIRZs have been created within the City, with two being currently active, TIRZ
No. 1 and TIRZ No. 3. TIRZ No. 1 was recently expanded to include more land mass within the City. Both active TIRZs have
combined property tax increments of approximately $5,289,537 for Fiscal Year 2021. For the Fiscal Year 2022, the City anticipates
property tax i of 5,775,069, Both active TIRZs are still being developed.

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.)
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Tax Year 2022 (FY 22-23) Market Valuation Established by Dallas Central Appraisal District,
Tarrant Appraisal District, and Ellis Appraisal District

Less Exemptions/Reductions

Homestead $ 940,964,055
Over 65 & Disabled 408,008,270
Disabled Veterans 232,556,159
Agricultural Use Reductions 36,166,373
Non-TaxableTotally Exempt 1,393,810,482
Freeport Property 361,681,146
Pollution Control 4,754,124
Solar 524,577
Under $500 751,351
Foreign Trade Zone 84,991,464
Capped Value Loss 749,291,556
Total Exemptions/Reductions

2022/2023 Taxable Assessed Valuation

Outstanding General Obligation Debt as of 11/1/2022
The Bonds

Total Outstanding General Obligation Debt as of 11/1/2022

Less Self-Supporting General Obligation Debt as of 117172022 %
Alrport $ 380,000
Public Improvement Districts 235,000

Total General Obligation Self-Supporting Debt as of 11/1/2022
Net General Obligation Debt Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes as of 11/1/2022
Interest and Sinking Fund balance as of 11/1/2022
Ratio Net General Obligation Tax Debt to Taxable Assessed Valuation

2023 Estimated Population - 200,640
Per Capita Taxable Assessed Valuation - $104,543

$25,188,911,283

4,213 499,557

$20,975,411,726
§ 449,467,000

8,000,000
§ 457,467,000

G500

§ 456,852,000
L 1,914,930
2.18%

Per Capita Net General Obligation Debt Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes - $2,277

(1) The City currently pays debt service on a portion of its outstanding general obligation debt from other available resources of

the City as set forth in “Table 9 — Computation of Resources for Payment of Self-Supporting General Obligati
the City"s current policy to provide these payments from such resources; provided this policy is subject to change in the future.
In the event payment is not made from such resources, the City will be required to assess an ad valorem tax sufficient to make
such payments, See "Table 9 — Computation of Resources for Payment of Self-Supporting General Obli

additional information.
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At September 30, 2021, the change in estimates of accrual liabilities for health coverage for the risk
management fund:

Beginning of Claims and End of
Fscal Year Changes in Claim Fiscal Year
Liability Estimates Payrments Liability
2021 $ 6203783 § 20447112 § 19.918.777 6812,118
2020 4145940 19,807,058 17,669,235 6,283,783
2019 3,971,327 15,449,741 15,275,108 4,145,960

J. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Descripfion

The City participates as one of 895 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement Systermn [TMRS). TMRS is an agency created
by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas
Government Code (the TMRS Act] as an agent multiple-employer refirement system for municipal
employess in fhe State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of
the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of
the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS's defined
benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 |a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS
issues d publicly avallable Annual Comprehensive Financial Report that can be obtained at

All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS.

Benefit ided
TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the governing
body of the city, within the opfions available in the state statutes goverring TMRS,

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee's contributions, with interest, and
the city-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity, Members may choose
fo receive their refirement benefit in one of seven payments opfions. Members may also choose to
receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 34
monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member's deposits and interest,

Plan provisions for the City are as follows:

Employee deposit rate 7%
Matching ratio (City to employee) 2to 1
Years required for vesting 5

Service refirement efigibility

Updated service credit
Annuity increase to refirees

25 yeors at any age, 5years
ot age 40 and above

100% Repeating transfers
70% of CPI Repeating

Additional information related to the TMRS Plan is located in the TMRS Annual Comprehensive Financial

Report.
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The City's current per occurrence and aggregate limits through the TMLIRP are as follows:

Coverage Per Qccurrence Aggregate
General Liability % 1,000,000 % 2,000,000
Law Enforcement Liability 3,000,000 6,000,000
Errors and Omissions 3,000,000 6,000,000
Automobile Liability 3,000,000 N/ A
Airport Liability 10,000,000 10,000,000

Current deductibles with TMLIRP are $350,000 for Workers Compensation with no aggregate retention;
$300,000 for all liability lines (General, Law Enforcement, Public Officials, and Auto Liability): $1,000 for
Automobiles; and $10,000 for Mobile Eguipment.,

The City's operating funds are charged premiums for coverage provided by the Risk Management Fund
based on approved annual budgets with adjustments based on estimates of the amounts needed to
pay prior and curent-year claims. These inter-fund premiums are used to reduce the amount of actual
expenditures.

Liabilities of the Risk Management Fund are reported when it is probable that aloss has occurred and the
amouni of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an armount for claims that have been
incurred but not reported (IBNR). The result of the process to estimate the claims licbility is not an exact
amount as it depends on many complex factors, such as inflation, timing of filed claims, adjudication of
claim benefits, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards,

Accordingly, claims are reevaluated annually to consider the effects of inflation, plan benefit designs,
recent claim setflement frends, claim expense, and other economic and social factors. The estimate of
the claims liability also includes amounts for incremental claim adjustment expenses related to specific
claims and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of whether allocated fo specific claims. The total
accrued liabilities for the Risk Management Fund based on the recent September 30, 2021 actuarial report
was $4,883,052.

The City offers group health coverage to its employees and refirees in plans administered by
United Health Care using an escrow account funded by the City with both employee and City
contribufions. The City allows retired employees under age 65 to contfinue participating in Its group health
insurance program after retirement with a portion of premiums paid by the City. The amount of premiums
paid by refirees is based on the refirement daote, length of service with the City, plan selected and
dependents covered af the fime of retirement. The City retains risk for up fo $400,000 per member per
year, and transfers risk in excess of this amount to a reinsurer. Reported claims are charged to expense in
the period the loss is incurred. The fotal accrued liabillfies for health insurance as of September 30, 2021
were $1,927,066.

TaBLE 2 - TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUATIONS BY CATEGORY
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between the three Appraisal Districts requive some estimates or adjustments to these categories” details.
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TABLE3 = VALUATION AND GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT HISTORY

Fiscal Year Taxable
Ended Estimated Assessed
9430 Population'" Valuation™
2019 189,430 $ 14,755,015,593
2020 196,100 ' 16,325,123,108
2021 197,347 16,980,301,115
2022 200,640 18,125,734 480
2023 200,640 ' 20,975411,726

{1 Source: City Staff.
(2) Source: 2020 Census.
(3)  As of October 2022, a population estimate for fiscal year 2023 is not available. Subject to change during the ensuing year.

(4) As reported by the Dallas Central Appraisal District, Tarrant Appraisal District, and Ellis Appraisal District on the City's

)
15
(]
5
]

Taxable
Assessed
Valuation

Per Capita
§ 77,802
83,249
86,043
90,340
104,543

Net G.O.
Tax Debt
Cutstanding
at End

of Year'""

£307,720,000
285,465,000
370,245,000
448,852,000
428,404,000

annual State Property Tax Board Reports; subject to change during the ensuing year,

(5} Includes taxable | value of app
(6) Includes taxable i | value of apr
(7} Includes taxable i | value of apy
(B) Includes taxable i | value of apy
(%) Includes taxable i 1 value of apy

General Obligation Debt,"
(1) Includes the Bonds,

TABLE 4 - TAx RATE, LEVY AND COLLECTION HiSTORY

(1} Source: Dallas Central Appraisal District.

24

Ratio of Net
G.O. Tax Debt
to Taxable
Assessed

209%
1.75%
2.18%
248%
Ll 2.04%

Net
G.0. Tax

Debt

_PerCapita

5 1,624
1,456
1,876
2,237
2,135

ty $381,547,594 that is not available for the City's general use,

Ly $424,344,427 that is not available for the City's general use,

Ly $760,000,000 that is not available for the City's general use.

Iy $870,000,000 that is not available for the City's general use.

ly $1,300,000,000 that is not available for the City's general use.

{10} Excludes revenue supported general obligation debt, See "Table 9 — Computation of Resources for Payment of Self-Supporting

Fiscal Year
Ended Tax General Interest and % Current % Total
930 Tax Rate Fund Sinking Fund Tax Levy Collections  Collections
2019 $0.669998 $0.463696 § 0206302 $98,194,923 98.71% 99.12%
2020 1669998 0457128 0.212870 106,540,678 98.81% GE.E1%
2021 0669998 0.460638 0.209360 113,882,697 98.96% 98964
2022 0664998 0.452091 0.212907 120,535,772 98.96% ‘" o9m9sn
2023 0660000 0446076 0.213924 139,130,487 In Process of Collection
(1) Collections as of September 30, 2022,
TABLE 5 - TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS
Tax Year 2022 % of Total
Tuxable Assessed Taxable Assessed
Name of Taxpayer Nature of Property Vahsation Valwation
TPoly America LP Muanufacturing 5 116,956,012 0.56%
Lockheed Martin Missiles & Fire Confrol Systems Defense Industry 103,641,610 049
BVFY Grand Prairde LLC Real Estate 95,504,000 0.47%
ONCOR Electric Delivery Uity 78,947,110 0.38%
Haier US Appliance Solutions Inc Apphances 75,206,485 0.36%
Mid America Apartments LT Real Estale 55,500,000 0.26%
Druke Realty LP Real Estate 55,137,150 .26%
KIW Grand Prairie Venture LLC Real Estate 54,558,400 0.26%
SWBC Grand Prairie LP Real Estate 52,500,000 0.25%
Prairie Gate Community LLC Heal Estate 48,800,000 0.23%
8 420,649,145 2.01%

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Environmental remediation licbility activity for the primary government in fiscal year 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance Current
Property Description 9/30/2020 Additions Reductions P3072021 Portion
Copeland Home Asbestos Abatement $ 20900 % - 3 - $ 20500 % 20,500
Indoor Air Assessment Service Center - 4,450 - 6,450 6,450
Total $ 20900 % 4450 % - 3 27,350 % 27,350

Environmental remediation liability activity for the discretely presented component unit, the Grand
Prairie Local Government Corporation, in fiscal year 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance Current
Froperty Description 943002020 Additions Reductions 9/30/2021 Porticn
Bella Visla Asbestos Abatemant $ - § 239367 % - b 239389 5 239349
Total % - % 239369 % - $ 239367 § 239,369

Other Liabilities

Sales Tax Payback

During fiscal year 2008, the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts nofified the City of an error in sales
tax payments made to the City, The error was the result of a local business reporting and paying taxes
incomrectly to the State Compfroller over several years. The overpayment by the business resulted in an
overpayment ta the City for $2,386,466. In 2012, a liability for this amount was recorded by the City and is
repaid from future sales tax revenue over a period of thirteen yaars.

During fiscal year 2021, the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts nofified the City of an error in sales
tax payments made to the City. The error was the result of o local business reporting and paying taxes
incorrectly fo the State Comptroller over several years. The overpayment by the business resulted in an
overpayment to the City for $3,108,638. In 2021, a liakility for this amount was recorded by the City and
is repaid from future sales tax revenue over a period of six years.

As of September 30, 2021, the total liability equaled $4,087,229.

. Risk Management

The City cumently administers o deductible progrom for Workers Compensation, all Liability, Property,
Airport, and Crime claims through the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TMLIRP), o
public entity risk pool. The TMLIRP sustains itself through member premiums and stop loss coverage for
excess claims through commercial insurers,
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

The lease has been accounted for as a capital lease. However, only the base rent payments are
determinable and are included in the lease paymens receivable at the net present value of future rent
payments. The remaining portion of the Facility is recorded as estimated unguaranteed residual value of
the lease. Its fair value is estimated fo be approximately equal to the differences between the original
cost plus capitalized improvements of the Facility, net of what accumulated depreciation would be, and
the fixed lease payments recelvable. Therefore, this amount is being amortized over the life of the lecse
(thirty years], Amortization for the year ended September 30, 2021 was $4,555,909. Additional contingent
rentals are recorded as revenue when received.

The capital lease is being amoriized using the interest method over the 30-year life of the lease. The
Corporation has recorded lease rental and interest for the year ended September 30, 2021 as follows:

Mominal interest on the lease $ 1,756,920
Amortization of the lecse [1,244,624)
Net interest 512,294
Contingent rentals received (includes rent for simulcast

facility prior fo completion of project) 175,138
Total lease rental and interest 3 487,434

Closure and FPost Closure Liability

state and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on ifs landfill sife when it
stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and moniforing functions af the site for
30 years after closure. Although closure and post closure care costs will be paid only near or after the
date that the landiills stop accepting waste, the City reports a portion of these closure and post closure
care costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance
sheet date. The City follows the provisions of GASB Siatement No. 18 Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste
Landfill Closure and Post closure Care Costs, Accordingly, the City has recorded a closure and post
closure care liability of $9,083,018 in the Solid Waste Fund, The tofal liability represents the cumulative
amount reparted to date based on the use of 51.55% of the estimated capacity of the landfill,

The City will recognize the remaining sstimated cost of closure and post closure care of 48,626,451 as the
remaining estimated capacity is filled. The City expects to close the landfillin year 2037. Actual cost may
be higher or lower due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in reguiations.

Environmental Remediation Obligations
The City and the Grand Prairie Local Govemment Corporation have recorded a liabililies relafed to
environmental remediation in the amount of $27,350 and $239,349, respectively, in the Statement of Net
Paosition, The estimates of the liabilities are prepared by the Environmental Professional Group and by the
City's Environmental Quality Manager and based on o range of expected outlays, net of expected cost
recoveries, if any, for the type and amount of pollution contamination detected. The estimates are
reviewed and adjusted periodically for price changes, additional contamination and any other changes
detected.
« The City owns the building and is responsible for the asbestos abaitement of the Copeland home
located at 125 SW Dallas Street,
« The City owns the Service Center and is responsible for the quality of air circulating throughout it
and determining whether it poses any health risks fo those inside.
« The Grand Praiie Local Government Caorporation owns the building and is responsible for the
asbestos abatement located at 1000 W Main Street.
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GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT LIMITATION . . . No general obligation debt limitation is i d on the City under current State

law ot the City’s Home Rule Charter (however, see "THE BONDS - Tax Rate Limitation").

TABLE 6 - ESTIMATED OVERLAFPING DEBT

Expenditures of the various taxing entities within the territory of the City are paid out of ad valorem taxes levied by such entities
on properties within the Cily. Such entities are independent of the City and may incur borrowings to finance their expenditures.
This statement of direct and estimated overlapping ad valorem tax debt ("Tax Debt”) was developed from information contained
in "Texas Municipal Reports” published by the Municipal Advisory Council of Texas. Except for the amounts relating ta the City,
the City has not independently verified the y or compl of such inft ion, and no person should rely upon such
infi ion as being or pl Furth , certain of the entities listed may have issued Tax Debt since the date
hereof, and such entities may have prog) requiring the i of sut jal of Tax Debt, the amount of which cannot
be determined. The following table reflects the estimated share of overlapping Tax Debt of the City.

200272023
Taxable GO Estimated
Assessed 202072022 Debl a5 of Y Overlapping
Ty Body Valuation TaxRate """ 1111/2022 Overlapping G0 Debt
Afingion Independent Schoot District $35,674,789,759  § L360R S 1,185,949,956 16900 § 200425543
Cedar Hill Independent School District 5,131,651,355 12384 95,225,144 570 5,513,536
Dallas County 332,456,203,815 02279 236,605,000 314% 7,429,397
Dallas County Flood Control District #1 788,652,778 0.9860 19,230,000 304% 603,822
Parkland Hospital District 337462,373,563 0.2550 559,903,000 314% 17,561,017
Diallus County Community College Distrit 345,009,767,531 0,1235 110,835,000 0.54% 931,014
Dallas County Schools 332,456,203,815 0.0100 3,467,730,000 0.01% 146,773
Elfis County 27,0717.999,447 03303 28,755,000 0.13% 37,362
Girand Prairie Independent School District 11,474,595.436 13763 401,935,000 29.10% 358,124,085
Irving Independent School District 19,095,365,105 1.2077 314,700,000 0.74% 2,328,780
Mansficld Independent Schaol District 17,706,033,837 14183 §24,064,839 1342% 110,589,501
Midlathian Independent School District 420,456,267 13520 412,745,000 0.38% 1,568,431
Tarrant County 24,369,636,349 0,2290 404,360,000 171% 15244372
Tarrum County College District 249,496,147.427 01302 610,315,000 171% 23,008,876
“Tarrent County Hospital District 248,562,603,261 02244 12,825,000 1% 483,503
SESSIT 5 _T4420600

City of Grand Prairie $20975411,726  F 06650 § 457457000 100,002 % 457467000 7
Total Direct and Overlapping Debl ... ooviin v isreesassim s P 8 B | -1 R i
Tetal Direct and Overlapping Debt 10 City's Tasable Assessed Value ..o oo 573%

== (1 2022/2023 tax rate information is unavailable at the time of publication.
(2} Includes self-supporting general obligation debt (see “Table 3-Computation of Resources for Payment of Self-Supporting
General Obligation Debt™). Includes the Bonds.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Leases

Grand Prairi ilities Development {§ oration) - A Com, t Unit

On September 15, 1995, the Sports Corporation and LSJC entered into a lease agreement. On
October 23, 2002, Lone Star, LSIC, and MEC Lone Star, LP. (MEC) enfered into an asset purchase
agreement whereby MEC agreed to purchase substantially all of the racing assets of Lone Star and LSJC.
The Master Agreement between the Sports Corporation, Lone Star, and LSJC was terminated. Lone Star
and LSJC assigned fo MEC all of their rights and obligations under the lease and certain ancillary
agreements with the Sports Corporation,

On March 5, 2009, Magna Entertainment Corporation, the parent company of MEC, filed for bankruptey
under Chapter 11 federal bankruptcy protection. Subsequently, on September 14, 2009, Lone Star filed
for bankruptcy protection.

On October 23, 2009, an auction for Lone Star was conducted with Global Gaming LSP, LLC (a whally
owned subsidiary of the Chickasaw Nation) winning the auction for $47 million.

On May 13, 2011, Global Gaming obtained their license with the Texas Racing Commission, The sale was
completed on May 16, 2011, Under the ferms of the purchase agreement, Global Gaming has agreed to
assume the lease agreement between Lone Star and the Sports Corporation.

The agreement states that upon completion of the project, Global Gaming will lease the facility for a
period of thirty years. The lease became effective April 1997 and meets the requirements for accounting
as a direct financing lease.

The future base rent payments under the lease are as follows:

Year Armount
2022 $ 1,888,689
2023 1,932,612
2024 1,932,612
2025 1,932,612
2026 1,932,612
Thereafter 1.191,777
10,810,914
Less inferest 2,109,274
Net present value 8,701,640
Less cumrent portion 1,244,624
Neon-current porfion $ 7,457,016

Additioncl contingent rentals are due monthly based upon 1% of gross revenues from the operation of
the track fer each month plus an emount equal fo the cumulative net retdinage from the live races and
the simulcast races mulfiplied by the following percentage:

Cumulative Met Retainoges Percentage
30 to less than $20 milion 1%
$20 million 1o less than $40 milion 3%
$40 million to less than $40 million 5%
$60 million or more %
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Staternents
September 30, 2021

Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation

The GPHFC has o generdl obligation note payable to a bank which was used fo construct the Cofton
Creek and Wilow Tree Learing Center. The note bears a rate of 4.25% and is payable in equal monthly
installments of $12,438 through September 21, 2040,

In December, 2003, the HFC issued Independent Senior Living Center Revenue Bonds for $13,890,000 fo
finance the construction and operations of its planned Senior Living Center facility. The bonds bear
interest rates from 7.5% to 7.75% depending on longevity. Beginning January 1, 2011, semi-annucil
retirements of the Bonds began and continues through January 1, 2034, The bonds are non-recourse
liabilities collateralized solely by the land and construction in progress, less the accrued interest.

In April 2020, the HFC received a loan from Affiliated Bank in the amount of §1 19,094 under the Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP} established by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act [CARES
Act). The loan bears inferest at arate of 1% and is payable in monthly instaliments of principal and interest
over 24 months beginning & months from the date of the note. The loan may be forgiven to the extent
that proceeds are used for eligible expenditures such as payroll and other eligible expenses described in
the CARES Act.

A summary of long-term debf activity during the year ended December 31, 2021 was as follows:

Due
Beginning Ending Within

Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year
PPP Note payable % - 3 119,096 § - $ neows % -
Note payable 2,054,379 - {63,148} 1.991.231 45,885
Revenueg bonds 6,905,000 5 {245,000} 6,640,000 295,000
Subordinate bonds 4,550,000 - - 4,550,000 -
Developer loan 1,447,291 41,760 - 1,509,051 -
Total B 14976670 § 140,856 $ (328.148) % 14,809,378 % 360,885

Effective July 1, 2010 the bonds of the Senior Living Center were reissued in two series: $8,630,000 in Priority
Lien Revenue Bonds and $4,550,000 in Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds.

Future maturities of the debt are as follows:

Year Ending Mole Payable Revenue Bonds

December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest
202 3 65885 % 83372 % 295000 % 508,981
022 £8,740 80,517 315,000 485,731
2023 .79 77,538 340,000 460,738
2024 74,824 74,429 370,000 434,000
2025-2029 425,682 320,602 2,335,000 1,681,944
2030-2034 526,271 220,013 2,985,000 604,306

2035-2039 650,629 95,655 - -

2040 107,481 1,889 - =
Total $ 1991231 b3 954015 § 4440000 F 4175700

The Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds are not scheduled above as their payments are contingent upon
cash flow and payment amounts and periods are uncertain,
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TABLE 8 - INTEREST AND SINKING FUND BUDGET PROJECTION ()
Tax Supported Debt Service Requirements, Fiscal Year Ending 9/30/2023
Interest and Sinking Fund 9/302022
Budgeted 2022 Interest and Sinking Fund Tax Levy @ 99% Collection
Prior year taxes and refunds
TIFF Contribution
Prior Years Penalties, Interest and Collections
Transfer in from TIF #1
Total Available
Estimated Balance, Fiscal Year Ending 5/30/2023

(1) Source: City Staff.

$1,914,930
43,101,547
U]

2,757,271
200,000

1]

$ 42,719,330

47,973,748

§ 5254418

TABLE 9 - COMPUTATION OF RESOURCES FOR PAYMENT OF SELF-SUPPORTING GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT !

Community
Palicing District Alrport Fund

Resourees Availoble for Debt Service

Fonzm Estates

Fiscal Year Ended 9302021 5 ROZDT4Y 3 9,630

L Revene Bond Requiremems, Fiscal Year Ended 32002022 -

Batmee Avalable for payment of Sell-Supporting General Obligation Debt 5 B0 § 9360

Gieneral Dbfigation Bonds and Centificates of Obligation
Dbt Service Requirensents, Flseal Year Ended 9/30/2022

6,042,677 198,378

Bakance 5 Le0as % (104,745)

Percenlage of System General Obligation Bonds and Certificates

of Obligtian Sell-Supparting 100.00% 4720%

TIF #1 FID S
s 7Eese § 602,780
£ LTRSS 602,780

1,758,633 85,200

i 24,323 5 517580

100.00% 100,007

{1} “The amount of self-supporting debi for FY 2022 payable from available resotrces of the City is set forth herein. Itis the City's
current policy to provide these payments from such resources; provided this policy is subject to change in the future. In the
event payment is not made from such resources, the City will be required to assess an ad valorem tax sisfTicient to make such

payments,

TABLE 10 - AUTHORIZED BUT UNISSUED GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Amount Amount
Authorized Previously Being Unissued
Purpose Date Authorized Amount Issued Issued Balance
Solid Waste 1200890 b 180,000 $ 75,0000 $ - § 105,000
Streets/Signal 1106401 56,000,000 §5,959,773 - 40,227
Storm Drainage 1106/01 £,200,000 6,576,573 - 1,623,427
Economic Development 05101721 75,000,000 67,000,000 #,000,000 -
Total % 139,380,000 $ 129,611,346 $8,000,000 $ 1,768,654
ANTICIPATED ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT,..The City I issuing apy Iy

£50,000,000 general obligation debt within the next eighteen months.

OTHER OBLIGATIONS . ., The City has no other property tax supporled debt outstanding as of the date of this Official Statement

except as described herein.
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RETIREMENT PLAN . . . The City participates as one of 901 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), (the “Plan"). TMRS is an agency created by the
State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act)
as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of Texas: All eligible employees of the City
are members of the TMRS. Members can retire at ages 60 and above with 5 or more years of service or with 20 years of service
regardless of age. The Plan also provides death and disability benefits, A member is vested after 5 years, but he must leave his
accumulated contributions in the Plan. IFa member withdraws his own money, he is not entitled to the employer-financed monetary
eredits, even if he was vested, The Plan provisions are adopted by the goveming body of the City, within the options available In the
State statutes governing TMRS and within the actual constraints also in the statutes.

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age

Normal (EAN) cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service cost contribution vate, which

is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year, The novmal cost contribution rate for an emplayee is the contribution

rate which, if applied to 8 member's compensation throughout their period of anticipated covered service with the municipality,

would be sufficient to meet all benefits payable on their behalf, The salary-weighted average of the individusal rates is the total normal

cost rate, The prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the applicable period
0

for that city. Both the normal cost and prior service contribution rates include recogni f the impact of annually
repeating benefits, such as updated service credits and annuity increases,
The City contributes to the TMRS Plan atan ally d ined rate, Both the employees and the City make contributions monthly.

Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a ane-year delay between the actuarial
valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect,

Unfunded Unfunded Pension

Net Assets Pension Pension Annual Benefit Obligation

Fiscal Available Benefit Percentage Benefit Covered as a Percentage of

Year for Benefits Obligation Funded Obligation Payroll Covered Payroll
2007 5 444,611,622 $ 525,359,395 B4.63% $ 80,747,733 $ 87,729,762 91.01%
2018 504,848,965 535,774,884 S0.84%% 50,925,919 92,501,160 ST7.00%
2019 486,228,223 587,394,540 BL78% 101,166,317 93,746,412 108.00%
2020 356,100,038 619,684,063 89.74% 63,584,025 98,611,365 64.48%
2021 592,761,104 647,637,265 91.33% 54,876,161 100,628,856 54.53%

For further details regarding the most recent City-audited financial information for the City's retivement plan, please refer to Note
1 of the City’s 2021 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, incorporated by reference herein, which can be found at
htips:flemma.msrb,org MarketActivity/Continuing DisclosureDetails?id=P11205312, Ses Appendix B — "Excerpts from the
City's Annual Comprehensive Financial Statements”,

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS. . In addition to providing pension benefits through the Texas Municipal Retirement
System, the City has opted 1o provide eligible retired empl with the following post-employment benefits:

Eligible retirees may purchase health insurance from the City’s heulthcare provider at the City’s cost to cover current employees
and their dependents if such dependents were covered consecutively during the past two years prior to the retirement date, The
cost of insurance varies based on dae retired, plan selected, and years of Grand Prairie service. The cost of coverage is shared
between the City and the retiree in varying increments based on the above factors.

The City recognizes its share of the costs of providing these benefits when paid, on a "pay-as-you-go" basis, These payments are
budgeted annually, The appropriation for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020 was $2,152,381.32. The budgeted amount
for such benefits in the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 was $2,241 666,

In fiseal 2017/2018, the City impl 1 GASB 8 No. 75 "4 ing and Fi ial Reporting for Post-emplovinent

Benefits Other Than Pensions." The City has performed an ial valuation of its post-reti benefit liability. It has engaged

an independent actuarial firm to prepare a valuation. The City reviewed the study and plans to comply with legal requitements to

perform additional studies in the future at the required intervals, The actuarial liability is estimated at $65,656,336 at September
1.

For further details regarding the City’s-OPEB benefits, please refer to Note K of the City’s 2021 Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report, incorporated by reference herein, which can be found al
Iittps:lemma. marb.org/MarketActivity/Continuing Disclosur ils/?id=P11205312, See Appendix B — "Excerpts from the
City’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Statements”.
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Wi ewaler Syst rvice Covert
The following covenants are included in various water and wastewater system revenue bond inderiture
ordinances:

« Nef revenues [defined as gross revenues less expenses of operation and maintenance) are
pledged for the payment of bond principal and interest.

e Additional water and wastewater system revenue bonds cannot be issued unless the “net
eamings" (defined as gross revenues after deducting the expenses of operafion and
maintenance, excluding depreciation and certain other items specified in the ordinances) of the
system for twelve consecutive months out of the fifteen months prior to the date of such bonds is
equal to at least 1,25 times the average annual requirements for the payment of principal and
interest on the then-outstanding bonds and any additional bonds then proposed to be Issued,

= Al revenues derived from the operations must be kept separate from other funds of the City,

* The amount required to meet interest and principal paymerits falling due on or before the next
maturity dates of the bonds is to be paid into the water and wastewater system interest and
redemption account during each year.

At September 30, 2021, compliance with these covenants can be demonstrated as follows:

Systemrevenue I'! $ 87,351,497
Operafing expenses:
Water purchased 14,749,528
Sewage disposal confract 20,841,214
Cther operating expenses 28,891,390
Total expenses 66,482,132
Net revenue (avallable for debt service) $ 208493465
—

Average annual principdl and inferest requirements, all water
and wastewater revenue bonds at September 30, 2021 $ 2,667,283

Coverage of average annual requirements based on
September 30, 2021 revenue available for debt service 7.82

(1} Includes operating revenues, plus Investment income and impact fees
(2} Excludes deprecialion expense,
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At September 30, 2021, the aggregate debt service payments for long-term debt through the final year

of maturity for the City'’s water and wastewater system were as follows:

At September 30, 2021, long-term debt is being repaid solely from dirpori revenues. Aggregate debt
service payments for long-term debt through the final year of maturity for the City's municipal airport were

as follows:

Fiscal Water and Wastew ater System Revenue Bonds
Year Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 5295000 % 1,214,044 % 6,507,044
2023 5,445,000 1,061,202 4,506,202
2024 5,620,000 882,439 6,502,439
2025 5,140,000 703,150 5,843,150
2026 4,145,000 545,598 4,690,578
2027 3,900,000 409,031 4,309,031
2028 2,315,000 313,748 2,628,748
2029 2,380,000 247,088 2,627,088
2030 2,055,000 185,141 2,240,141
2031 1,090,000 137,278 1,227,278
2032 850,000 103,280 953,280
2033 880,000 74,736 954,736
2034 610,000 50,912 660,912
2035 430,000 32,016 462,016
2036 450,000 12,256 662,256
2037 160.000 1,832 141,832
2038 160,000 1,144 161,144
2039 710,800 392 711,192
Total $ 42,035800 § 5975287 % 48,011,087

Fiscal Cerlificates of Obligation
Year Principal Interest Total
2022 4 175000 % 23375 % 198375
2023 185,000 14,375 199,375
2024 195,000 4,875 199,875
Total 3 555000 % 42,625 % 597,625
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TABLE 11 - CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Revenwes
Fees, Fines and Charges for Services
Oiperating Grants and Coatrlbutions
Cagital Gronts and Cantribations

Gieneral Revenues:

Propemy Taxes
Sales Taxes
Olher Taxes ond Assessinents
Franchisz Fees
Investment Income
CHher

Total Revenues

Expenses
Support Services
Public Safety
Tecreation and Lesure
Drevelopment und Ciher Services
Inferest on Lovg-Term Debt

Incrense in net position before transfers
Transfers, net
Increass [decrease) in Met Posiion
Prioe period adjusiments "
Met position - begmning
Net position - ending

(1) Transfers.

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.)

Fiscal Year Ending, September 30,

2024 2020 2019 2018 207
£ 50,828,628 § 43,280,739 $ 51,189,057 5 A7EIL LG 5 50.34%,054
45,398,240 63,784,399 39,865,579 36,511,876 35,572,942
6,974,567 417,050 B 375,572 3,971,782 8,305,146
§ 113,824,509 % 116,020,990 3 106,378,593 94,048,600 § 84925774
BO,1B7,852 0,808,397 649,672,182 64,250,717 60,585,824
2,366,924 1,794.49 21,331,019 2,208,208 2,015,917
14,022,362 13,903,806 14,796,138 14,485,521 9,596,934
333,283 1,952,664 9,776,886 3,506,788 2425419
3 313937067 3 317,971,531 § 302485026 £ 267,414,818 5 254177010
§ 31,880,593 5 3310740 3 30669782 3 27,614,430 5 26,731,588
105,285,679 113,728,877 109,767, 831 101,033,502 100,253,923
35,162,022 32,949,455 35,232,643 33,942 42 32,962,890
109,073,042 110,126,929 102,740,850 97,241,362 o, 088, 069
14,004,156 12,689,165 14,987,576 12,481,762 12,108,20%
5 295405692 3 300,805,171 £ 293398722 3 AT 5 262,144,769
$ o IES31L3NS £ 17,166,360 5 9086304 § (4,808,980} $  (7.967,759)
1HR9,338 4,830,999 7.253,810 6,272,419 5,271,645
§ 20420713 § 21,997,350 3 16.340,114 3 1373439 $ (2,696,114)
- < (49,038,142) =
396,080,205 374,082 846 357.742,732 405,407,435 402,103,549
3 416500018 $ 396,080,205 5 374.082.846 § 357,742,731 § 405407435

29




TABLE 12 - GENERAL FUND REVENUES AND EXPENDITURE HISTORY

Revenues:

Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Franchise Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures.
Licenses and Pennits
Interest

Oher

Total Revenues

Expenaitures:
Adminisivative Services
Public Safery Services
Dievilopaent Service and Caher
Teecreation and Leisre Services
Capital Outhiys

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Ower Expenditures

Transfer i {Out} Net

Proceeds for sale of capital assets

Begirming, Fund Balince

Prior period adjusiments

Ending Fund Baksnce

Fiscal Ve Ended Septeinber 30,

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
3 TAS3SSE5 % 69856384 5 66,107431 $ 611224847 5 56275500
39,760,993 34,438,179 34,381,013 31,532,937 20,804,519
14,022,362 13,903,806 14,796,138 14,485,521 13,803,938
6,069,457 4,978,448 5,964,359 5,847,113 5,676,907
5,735,005 5,758,341 7,380,465 7,337,547 7,633,756
4,022,506 2,981,599 3,242,104 3,000,527 3,080,890
324216 7,833,606 9,490,011 3,213,375 2,065,665
9,464,797 19,293,703 " 9,345,745 BIT2.846 8,377,134
§ 153,934,901 S OISR5A066  § 150707356 8 IMBILTIS § 12672032
§ 25,447,161 § 22,783,021 3 2653 5 R3EE S5 20,599,884
91,727,323 88,118,340 #7,527,565 84,283,161 78,678,245
12,595,116 13,263,253 13,461,438 12,947,245 12,686,050
2,860,342 2,802,857 2,844,007 2,760,622 2,591,734
622,879 1,261,630 819915 1086949 1,305,324
£ 133252821 % 12842910 5 127629868 § 123411609  § 116,161,238
§ 20682080  § 30,114835 5 23477488 S 1Ls0L104  § 10,559,084
(33,150,756) (16,762,667} 12,704, 188) (10,106, 151) {1L,110,985)
1,826,620 1,115,891 1,067,920 1,003,393 286,711
60,648,430 45,185,271 33,745,051 31,346,705 31,001,885
= (6,000.00} = - -

5506

§ 60,648,430 3 d5.186.271 § 33,745,051

{1} Increase due to funding received from The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 ("ARPA".

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.)
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At September 30, 2021, changes in long-term debt for the City's business-type activities were as follows:

Waier and wastew ater:
Revenue bonds
Series 2010
Series 2011
Series 2013
Series 2014
Series 2015
Series 2016
Series 2017
Series 20174
Series 2019
Series 2020

Total rev enue bonds
Bond premiurms/discounts
Total waier and wastewater

Municipal airport:
Cerfificate of obligation
Series 20044
Tolal rmunicipal airport

Total change in long-term debt -
business-type acfivities

Balance Balance
Cctober 1, Borrowings Payments September 30,  Due Within
2000 of Increase  or Decrease 2021 One Year
3 2870000 % (2500000 $ 2620000 § 255000
1,380,000 (610,000} 770,000 640,000
7,570,000 [1,340.,000) 6,210,000 1.400.000
2,560,000 [240,000) 2,320,000 245,000
3,090,000 (390.000) 2,700,000 405,000
15,180,000 (1.110.000) 14,070,000 1,140,000
3,940,000 [390.000) 3,550,000 390,000
2,705,000 [55,000) 2,650,000 50,000
3,570,800 (160,000) 3,410,800 140,000
4,290,000 (555,000) 3,735,000 410,000
47,155,800 (5,120,000} 42,035,800 5,295,000
3,367,678 [271,733) 3095945 -
50,523,478 {5.391,733) 45,131,745 5,295,000
725,000 [170,000) 555,000 175,000
725,000 [170,000) 555,000 175,000
$ 51248478 $ (5561733) § 45686745 § 5,470,000
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Business-T Activities

Long-term debt in the business-type activities column of the government-wide Statement of Net Position
consists of general obligation refunding bonds, water and wastewater system revenue bonds, cerfificates
of obligation bonds, and unamortized bond premiums/discounts. Bonds issued for business-type octivities
are secured by a pledge of the property tax levy of the City, but are self-supporting obligations which are
paid from the respective net revenues of each activity. Bond proceeds are used to fund additions and
improvernents to the City's water and wastewater system, solid waste system, municipal golf courses, and
municipal airport.

Al September 30, 2021, long-term debt for the City's business-type activities consisted of the following:

Interest Year of Year of Original Amount
Rate & |ssue Maturity Amount Outstanding
Water ond wastewater:
Revenue bonds
Series 2010 0.0-2.587 2010 2030 3 4995000 % 2,620,000
Series 2011 2.0-4.25 20M 2031 8,940,000 770,000
Series 2013 20-4.0 2013 2026 14,045,000 6.210,000
Series 2014 0.0-1.9%0 2014 2030 4,000,000 2,320,000
Series 2015 2.25-4.0 2018 2027 4,155,000 2,700,000
Serles 2014 2.0-5.0 2006 2038 17.625,000 14,070,000
Series 2017 0.0-0.8 07 2030 5,110,000 3,550,000
Series 2017A 20-40 207 2036 2,755,000 2,650,000
Series 2019 0.0-0.49 2009 2039 3,730,800 3,410,800
Serles 2020 5 2020 2081 4,290,000 3,735,000
Total bonds payable - water wastewater 42,035,800
Unamortized tond premiums/discounts 3,095,745
Total long-term debt - water wastewater 45,131,745
Municipal airport:
Certificates of obligation bonds
Series 2004A, 2.25-50 2004 2024 2,120,000 555,000
Total long-term debt - business-type acfivities $ 45,686,745
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TABLE 13 - MUNICIPAL SALES TaX HisTORY

The City imposes and levies a one percent (1%) local sales and use tax within the City pursuant to the Municipal Sales and Use Tax
Act, Texas Tax Code, Chapter 321; the proceeds are credited to the General Fund and are not pledged to the payment of the Bonds,
Additionally, the City imposes and levies various local sales and use taxes for specific purposes, in the aggregate amount of one percent
(1%), as described below in “DEBT INFORMATION—Sales Tax Elections.” Collections and enforcements are administered through
the offices of the Comptroller of Public A ts, State of Texas, who remits the proceeds of the tax to the City monthly, after deduction
of a 2% service fee.

Equivalent of
Toral Ad
Fiscal Year Community Valorem Tax
Ended 9130 City Parks & Rec. Sireets Policing EPIC Total Rate "
2018 $31,532,937  $8,207.902  $8207.002  $8004,074  $8207902  $64.250.717 §0.2332
2019 29,206,350 7,301,588 7,301,858 7,264,961 7,301,588 58,376,344 0.1979
2020 35,400,956 8,850,239 8,850,239 8,824,550 8,850,239 70,776,223 02168
2021 38,857,085 9,714,271 9,714,271 9,648,997 9,714,271 77,648,895 0.2288
2022 46,545,263 11,656,316 11,656,316 11,568,075 11,656,316 93,082,286 % 0.2568

(2) General Fund only,
SALES TAx ELECTIONS

The voters approved a one-fourth cent (1/4 cent) local sales and use tax rate ("Parks & Rec Sales Tax") at an election held on November
2,1999 under Section 334,021 of Chapter 334, Local Government Code as amended (“Chapter 334”). The additional sales tax receipts
are used ively for costs iated with the icipal parks and i system as defined in Section 334.001 (4} D) of Chapter
134, The City began collecting the tax in April 2000, The Parks & Rec Sales Tax is not pledged o nor available for payment on the
Bonds,

The voters approved a one-fourth cent (1/4 cent) local sales and use tax rate (the “Street Repair Sales Tax") at an election held on
November 6, 2001 under Chapter 327 Subtitle C, Title 3, Tax Code. These sales tax receipts are used exclusively for street repair and
maintenance. The Street Repair Sales Tax was reauthorized in May 2009 and again in May 2017 for 8 years. The Street Repair Sales
Tax is not pledged 1o or available for payment of the Bonds.

On May 12, 2007 voters approved a combined half cent sales tax to be ulilized ina 1/4 cent and two 1/8 cent increments for the
following projects:

-A one-fourth cent (1/4 cent) local sales and use tax under Section 163.054, Local Government Code for the Crime Control
and Prevention District {the "Community Policing District") to fund a new police center. ("Crime Control Sales Tax")

-A one-gighth cent (1/8 cent) local sales and use tax for a new senior center, ("Senior Center Tax")

-A one-eighth cent (1/8 cent) local sales and use tax for a minor league baseball stadium. ("Bascball Stadium Tax™)

The additional sales tax receipts were to be exclusively for costs associated with each of the projects. The City began collecting the
taxes on October 1, 2007,

At an election held on May 10, 2014, voters abolished the Senior Center Tax and the Baseball Stadium Tax, effective September 30,
2015, and adopted a new additional 1/4% city sales and use tax for the City’s EPIC project (the "Central Park Sales Tax") as permitted
under the provisions of Chapter 334, Local Government Code, effective October 1, 2015, The Central Park Sales Tax receipts are
used to pay the costs associated with the City’s EPIC projest. The City began collecting the tax on October 1, 2015, The Crime Control
Sales Tax and the Central Park Sales Tax are not pledged to or available for payment of the Bonds.

At an election on November 3, 2020, the 1/4%5 sales tax for the Community Policing District was reauthorized for a period of ten years.
Such sales tax is not pledged to or available for payment of the Bonds.

DEVELOPMENT FEES

The City’s impact fees are used for water impi and impi and are not pledged 1o the payment of the debt
service requirements of the Bonds. Impact fees for roadway improvements were eliminated in 2001, Each of the two types of fees are
developed separately based upon excess capacity of existing infi and projected ion of capital improvements over
the next 10 vears, Revenues generated by impact fees can only be used to finance the improvements identified in an adopted capital
improvements plan. The City must update land use plions and capital improv ts plans every five years,
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Impact Fee Revenues

FYE Water Wastewiter

2017 51403218 8§ 404,663
28 1,910,802 827434
2019 1,075,784 427,744
2020 1,303,458 534,079
2024 3,126,913 1,774,290

The City created a storm water utility under the Texas Mumclpa] Dralnagc Ullilt\" Systcms Act, Such act provides for the creation of

a storm water utility to provide storm water services includi e, and capital imp for storm
water runoff. Such act also provides for collection of user fess hased an storm water runoff volumes.
COoMPENSATED ABSENCES. . .The City's accrued unfunded p i at liability is approximately $21,710,781 as of

September 30, 2021,

Risk MANAGEMENT. . Property, liability, safety, workers’ compensation and health and wellness insurance are
accounted for in the Risk Management Fund, an internal service fund. Net expenses of these programs in property
was 54,883,052 and $1,929,066 for employee health and weliness insurance,

Beginning October 1, 1991, the City placed all of its property, liability and wnrkers' compensation coverage with Texas Municipal
League 1nlm\-'urnmlmtal stk Pool. The limits of liability and vary £ to type of ge provided.,

The l)peraung Furlds ane chargcd premiums mr pmpe.rty. liability, wmkcrs ::ompensatmn and employee health eoverage by the
Risk A Fund. pay fo health age | . The incurred but unreported claims for
these programs as of September 30, 2021 were $6 %12,118.

The City allows retired emp to inue participating in its group health program after reti with all p
paid by the retirees.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The City Council and staff make financial decisions throughout the year based upon financial guidelines. The Financial Management
Policies ("FMP") provides a framework, or master plan, within which to make operating and capital budget decisions, as well as other
financial decisions. The primary ob]m:l]ve of the FMP is to enable the City to achieve a long-term stable and positive financial
condition.

The policies which are updated annually to address the following auditing and financial reporting, internal
contrals, operating budget, capital budget and program, revenue i control, asset management, financial
condition and reserves, debt management, and slaff'ngam{lrammg S1gn|f|canl issues addresedby the policies include the following:

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING . . . The City policy is to adhere to the ing principles lished by the Gi 1 A
Standards Board, as amended,

GENERAL FUND BALANCE . .. The City's goal is to maintain at least 50 days of expenditures of the General Fund expenditures budget
in the General Fund resources balance.

DEBT SERVICE FUND BALANCE . , . The City policy is to maintain balances nf no greater than one month of principal and interest
requirements except that the City's rcvenuc bond pohcy and bond ordi | are to maintain revenue supported debt service
reserves at the level of the average annual debt service plus an amount acerued for the debt service payment.

USE OF BOND PROCEEDS, GRANTS, ETC . , . The City policy is to use bond proceeds only for major assets with expected lives which
equal or exceed the average life of the debt issue,

BUDGETARY PROCEDURES . . . The City policy is to pay for current expendi with certain wes and to utilize reserves only for
emergencies. The annual operating budget shall provide for operation and maintenance of capital plant.

FUND INVESTMENTS . . . The City policy is to invest its cash with three objectives in mind listed in order of priority: safety, liquidity
and yield. Unrestricted idle cash is pooled for short-term investment in government securities, money market mutual funds and local
government investment pools. The mix and term of investments is determined based on the City's liquidity needs and the yield curve,
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Fiscal Soles Tox Revenue Bonds-Park Venue Sales Tax Revenus Bonds-EFIC
Year Principal Inlerast Total Principal Interest Tolal
Kz 3 2120000 % 448418 § 2568418 § 2975000 3 3omq162 3 5,459,162
023 2,190,000 401,203 2,591,203 2,475,000 257871462 54562162
Az4 2,270,000 341,118 2611018 2,575,000 2,886,142 5.461,162
2025 2.360,000 275,203 2635205 2,680,000 2781042 5,461,062
w026 2,450,000 213,493 2,663,493 2,785,000 LE75.647 5,460,647
2027 1,170,000 164,068 1,334,038 2,895,000 2,567,509 5,462,509
2028 370,000 142.433 512438 3010.000 2447919 5459917
2029 385,000 187,338 512338 3,140,000 2323165 5463,165
K30 400,000 111.638 511,638 3275000 2187743 5,462,743
i) 420,000 9523 515238 3,425,000 2035914 5,440,514
iy 435,000 78.138 513,138 3,590,000 1,868,185 5,458,185
H33 455,000 40.338 515,338 3,770,000 1,492,208 5,462,708
034 470,000 43,600 513,400 3955000 1,507,503 5,462,503
a5 485,000 26,081 513,081 4,145,000 1,313,832 5,458,832
paist 505,000 10,100 515,100 4,355,000 1,105,153 5,460,153
7 - # - 4,580,000 580,348 5,460,248
o038 5 P = 4,815,000 443,970 5458,970
puis g = E L 5065000 395,389 5,460,389
2040 - - - 5325000 133977 5,458,977
$ 16485000 % 2542382 § 19027382 F 68235000  § 35519010 §F 103,754,010
Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 36485000 $ 16,794,519 5 53,479,519
2023 29,025,000 14,560,520 43,585,520
2024 33,805,000 13,406,819 47,211,819
2025 28,095,000 12,242,299 40,337,299
2026 32,820,000 11,175,464 43,995,464
2027 26,345,000 10,183,461 36,528,461
2028 23,820,000 9,291,884 33,111,884
2029 24,490,000 8,434,317 32,924,317
2030 23,835,000 7.581,430 31,416,430
2031 24,285,000 6,756,151 31,041,151
2032 24,185,000 5,947,566 30,132,566
2033 25,020,000 5115997 30,135,997
2034 25,075,000 4,238,869 29,313,869
2065 20,870,000 3,419,067 24,289,067
2036 19,720,000 2,683,574 22,403,574
2037 16,080,000 2,023.189 18,103,189
2038 15,100,000 1,436,105 16,536,105
2039 15,680,000 856,600 16,536,600
2040 11,200,000 354,614 11,554,614
2041 6,020,000 74,148 6,094,148
§ 442,155000 § 136,576,593 $ 598,731,593
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INVESTMENTS
September 30, 2021
The City invests its in ble funds in i 1ts authorized by State Jaw in accordance with investment policies approved by the
At Septernber 30, 2021, the aggregate debt service payments for long-term debt through the final year City Council ("Investment Policies”). Both State law and the City’s investment policies are subject fo change.

of maturity for fhe City's govemmental activities were as follows: LEGAL INVESTMENTS . . . Under State law and subject to certain limitations, the City is authorized 1o invest in (1} obligations of

the United States or ils agencies and instr (2) direct ohligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and
Fiscal General Obligolion Bonds Cerlificates of Obigation Bonds instrumentalities; (3) collateralized mortgage obligations issued and secured by a federal agency or instrumentality of the United
Year Frincipal Inferest Tolal Principot Irterest Total States; (4) other obligati ditionally 4 or insured by the State of Texas or the United States or their respective
agencies and instrumentalities; (5) "A" or better rated obligations of states, i ies, cities, and other political subdivisions
2022 $  BSR0000 % 3693658 ) 12283458 § 16195000 % 8487692 % 24682692 of any state; (6) bonds issued, assumed, or guaranteed by the State of Im:l; (7) federally insured inlmesl-hgn‘ring bank deposits,
2023 7.410,000 3195143 10,405,143 14410000 7828657 24,238,659 : 5 3 i : % 5
brokered pools of such deposits, and collateralized certificates of deposit and share certificates; (8) fully collateralized 115,
2024 10.200.000 2,842,488 13042468 15205400 217 2405217 government securities repurchase agreements; {9) one-year or shorter ities lending agr secured by oblig:
2025 F.400,000 2443182 11843182 10000 flp A2 IR 402 described in clauses (1) through (7) above or (11) through (14) below or an imevocable letter of credit issued by an "A" o betier
2026 2175000 2091372 11266372 13,180,000 6136729 19,316,729 : rated state or national bank: (10) 270-day or shorter bankers’ acceptances, if the short-term obligations of the accepting bank or its
2027 8,720,000 1.789.618 10,507,618 13,560,000 5460296 19220296 holding company are rated at least "A-1" or "P-1"; (11) commercial paper rated at least "A-1" or "P-17; (12) SEC-registered no-
2028 6,380,000 1,540,522 7.820522 14,060,000 5159.005 19.219,005 joad money market mutual funds that are subject 1o SEC Rule 2a-7; (13) SEC-registered no-load mutual funds that have an average
0% 4,385,000 1,34509% 7.73009% 14,580,000 4,438,715 19.218,715 weighted maturity of less than two years; (14) "AAA" or "AAAm"-rated investment pools that invest solely in investments
2030 5,045.000 1,182,643 6,227,643 15,115,000 4099 406 19,214,406 described above; and (15) in the case of bond p Is, gy i in that are secured by obligations described
2081 4,790,000 1,058,325 5,848,325 15,450,000 3,564,674 19,216,674 in clauses (1) through (7) above and, except for debt service funds and reserves, have a term of 5 years or less.
2032 3.990.000 955,197 4,545,197 16,170,000 5.046,046 19,216,045
2083 4,075,000 848,432 4.743,432 16,720,000 2,495,019 19.215019 The City may not, however, invest in (1) interest only obligexiona or non-interest bearing principal obligations, stripped from
034 3,925,000 779,804 4,704,824 16,725,000 1.907 942 15,632,542 mortgage-backed securities; (2) collateralized morigage obligations that have a remaining term that exceeds 10 years; and (3)
2035 3,855,000 99,578 4,547,578 12,385,000 1.384.576 13769576 co]l:a[erahzed mortgage ohl,galmns that bear intercst at an _mdex rate that adjusts opposite to the c.ha_ngcs in & market index. In
008 3,940,000 A 4543744 10920000 944,577 11,884,577 addition, the City may not invest more than 15 percent of its monthly average fund balance {excluding bond proceeds and debt
; i d reserves) in mutual funds described in clavse (13) above or make an investment in any mutual fund that exceeds
2007 4,040,000 505391 4,545,391 7,460,000 437,450 BO97.450 slf;;“r[:"drs bl
2008 4,145,000 8,085 4,543,085 8,140,000 394,050 6,534,050 oFthe fncts otal assets.
2039 4255000 il 4542961 §36.000 IRt G332 Except as stated above or i i with its § policy, the City may invest in obligations of any duration without regard
2040 4,370,000 174,887 4,544 887 1,505,000 =70 1.550.750 to their credit rating, if any. 1f an obligation ceases to qualify as an eligible investment after it has been purchased, the City is not
2041 4,485,000 58798 4.543.798 1,535,000 15350 1.530.350 uired to liguidate the i unless it no longer carrics & required rating, in which case the City is required to take prudent
§ ONTATS000 S 26504987 S 43681987 § 245965000 § 70460805 3 314425805 measures to liquidate the investment that are consistent with its investment policy.
Fiscol Tow andl Tax inerement Bonds [1Fs) Saibes Tow Reverue Bends-Crime Confrol INVESTMENT POLICIES ... Under State law, the City is required to adopt and annually review written investment policies and must
Year Principal Inared Total Frincipdl Tnterest Total invest its funds in sccordance with its policies. The policies must identify eligible investments and address investment
diversification, yield, maturity, and the quality and capability of i £ For i whose eligibility is
2022 $ 214000 0§ /N2 § 2442912 § 5245000 % 97677 % 6,042,677 rating dependent, the palicies must adopt procedures to monitor ratings and liguidate investments if and when required. The
03 540,000 148,333 568,333 - - = policies must require that all investment transactions settle on a delivery versus payment basis. The City must adopt a wrilten
2024 555,000 136834 691,834 - = = investment strategy for each fund group to achieve investment objectives in the follewing order of priority: (1) suitability, (2)
2025 545,000 123,450 485,450 - > = preservation and safety of principal, (3) liquidity, (4) marketability, (5) diversification, and (6} yield.
2026 5.230.000 58.203 5,268,203 = - -
5 sos000  § 72 s9973 % 5245000 § 97677 % SO4DETT State law requires the City's investments be made “with judgment and care, under prevailing circumstances, that a person of

prudence, discretion, and intelligence would exercise in the management of the person’s own affairs, not for speculation, but for
investment considering the probable safety of capital and the probable income to be derived." The City is required to perform an

annual audit of the trols on i and compli with its | policies and provide regular training
for its investment officers.

THE CITy’s INVESTMENT POLICIES , . The City Manager designates the Chief Financial Officer as the City's chief investment officer,

The Assistant Finance Director, Second Assistant Finance Director, and Treasury Analyst are designated as additional investment
officers, The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the City's prehiensive cash program, including the

Iministration of the I Policies, The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for considering the quality and capability of staff
involved in in and p lures, The Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible for authorizing investments and
the Treasury and Debt Manager shall account for investments and pledged collateral in order to maintain appropriate internal controls.
The C ller shall be responsible for ding i in the City's books of accounts. The Internal Audit staff shall audit
records monthly and the external auditors will review for management controls on i and ad! to policy as required by

law. On November 16, 2021, the City Council approved and readopted the Investment Policies.
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City policy requires investments in accordance with applicable State law, specifically the Public Funds Investment Act, Texas
Government Code, Chapter 2256, as amended, (the "PFIA"). The City's Investment Policy does nat pesmit the investment of City
funds in all eligible investments permitted by State law. Furthermore, this policy specifieally prohibits investment in the following
investment securities.

1. Obligations whose | L reg the coupon payments on the outstanding principal balance of the underlying
tgage-backed security coll and pays no principal.

2. Obligations whose payment reg the principal stream of cash flow from the underying morlgage-backed security
collateral and bears no interest,

3. Collateralized bligations that have a stated final maturity date of greater than 10 years,

4. Coll lized bligations the interest rate of which is determined by an index that adjusts opposite to the changes
in a market index.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE . . .An | Commi isting of the Treasury Analyst, Treasury and Debt Manager, Controller,

Chief Financial Officer, and Deputy City Manager shall meet as frequently as necessary to review the City's investment portfolio. The
committee shall also meet as necessary to add or delete a financial institution or broker/dealer from the list of institutions with which
the City may do business or to conduet other business. The committee shall also mest fo review prosy fi ial st ts and
other performance data on money market mutual funds and shall formulate recommendations on the advisability of investing in specific
funds for the consideration of the City Council.

Any three of the five | it C i t itute a quorum. The Treasury and Debt M; shall serve as
of the committee, and maintain written record of i o i i

TABLE 14 - CURRENT INVESTMENTS

As of September 30, 2022, the City's investable funds were invested in the following categories:

Ty pe of Investment Percentage Book Value
Local Government Pools and Money Market Funds 12.16% ¥ 54,823,245
Federal Agency and Instrumentality Notes B7.84% 395,950,623

450,773,868

{THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.)
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In February 2021, the City issued $23,215,000 in Combination Tax and Revenue Cerfificates of Obligation,
Serles 2021. The Certificates were issued for the purpose of paying confractual obligations fo be (i)
acquiing, constructing, improving and equipping fire-fighting facilities and library facilities, (i)
constructing, improving and equipping existing municipal facilities, (ii] constructing street improvements,
including drainage, landscaping, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, entryways, pedestrian pathways, signage,
fraffic signalization and street noise abatement incidental thereto and the acquisition of land and rights-
of-way therefor and (iv) professional services rendered in connection therewith.

In June 2021, the City issued $66,945,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021. The bonds were issued
for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for constructing street improvements,
including drainage, landscaping, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, entryways, pedestrian pathways, signage,
traffic signalization and street noise abatement incidental thereto, and for the acquisition of land and
rights-of-way therefor within the reinvestment zone of the City known as the Tax Increment Financing
Reinvestment Zone Number One (TIF #1),

Also in June 2021, the City issued $16,935,000 in Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation,
Series 2021A. The Certificates were issued for the same purpose as the Series 2021 General Chbligation
Bonds, described above.

Outstandin bt Defeasement
At September 30, 2021, certain oufstanding debt of the city was considered to be defeased. The following
table details such outstanding defeased debt:

Defeased Debt

Type of Obligation Qutsianding
General obligation refunding bonds ) 55,000
Total debt defeasement $ 55,000
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At September 30, 2021, changes in long-term debt for the City's governmental activities were as follows:

Botance Bolance
Cctober 1, Bomowings Paymenis Seplember 30 Crue Within
2020 of Increcse or Decrease 021 One ‘fear
Genaral abigolion bonds;
Series 2012 $ 4,120,000 3 = 3 (645,000 3 3475000 3 660,000
Sewims 2013 330,000 - {310.000) 3,000,000 315,000
Series 20134 1.710,000 - |#5.000} 1,615,000 100,000
Series 2015 7,045,000 - 1,050,000 6015000 1,095,000
Series 2004 23,375,000 = (2,935,000 20,440,000 2.415.000
Sedies 2017 19,475,000 = 13,790,000 15,485,004 4,005,000
Series 2021 - 46,945,000 = 66,945,000 -
Total general obligation bonds 59,055,000 54,945,000 188250004 17175000 8,590,000
Comipination tox ond revenue
cerlificales of obligation
Series 2013 £,320.000 - [405.000 5915000 420,000
Series 2013A 9,280,000 # (000004 8,760,000 525,000
Serles 2014 14,940,000 - [2.125.000) 14,815,000 2,230,000
Series 2015 22, 445000 - (1,345,000) 3,100,000 1,405,000
Series 2016 28,180,000 = {1.915.000) 26,265,000 1,325,000
Series 2017 2.915.000 - 13,500.000] 26,415,000 3425000
Serles 2008 36,810,000 - 1,885,000} 36,925,000 2090,000
Series 20174 33,110,000 a (LB 5.000) 3295000 1,705,000
Series 20198 34,305,000 = - 34,505,000 2,220,000
Series 2021 = 23215000 - 23215000 450,000
Sarias 20214 - 16,935,000 - 16,935000 -
Total combination tax and revenue
ceriificates of obligalion 219305000 40,150,000 [13.450.000) 245,955,000 14195000
Tax Increment and public
Improv ement distic! dell
Sefies 2001 TR | 160,000 - 11,525,000} 1.635.000 1,635,000
Serigs 2015 FID S 380,000 = [70.000) 310,000 75,000
Serles 2016 -TRL | 1,060,000 ] [1.080.000) - -
Serbes 2019 -MRZ 1 7,105.000 - = 7,105,000 450,000
Total fax increment ond pubkc
improverment district debt 11.725.000 = 12,675,000} 050,000 2,140,000
Sobes tox revenue debt:
Crime Control
Series 2008 10,795.000 = (5,550,000] 5245000 5.245.000
Tetal Crime Control 10,795,000 - 15.550,000] 5,245,000 5245000
Fark Venue
Serlas 2009 subordinale 6,740,000 N (495.000) 4,245,000 1,130,000
Saries 2003 5,850,000 - [1.290,000) 4,570,000 730,000
Series 2016 Park Venue 5935000 - |245,000] 5,470,000 260,000
Tolal Park Venue 18535000 - 12,030,000} 14,485,000 2120000
EPIC
Serles 2015 ERPIC 70520000 = [2.285.000) 68,235,000 2375000
Total EPIC 70,520,000 T [2,285,000] 48,235,000 2575000
Tetal change in long term deb! 367,935,000 107,075,000 {34,875,000] 442,155,000 35,685,000
Unamerfized bond prar { i ani: 26.087.620 3272425 12,158,415} 27.03.630
Tetal change in leng-term debi -
govermnmental acliviiles § 416024630 5 110367425 3 [37.033415) 3 4B%.356.430 3 36,685,000

TAXMATTERS

The following is a general summary of the United States federal income tax consequences of the purchase and ownership of the
Bonds. The discussion is based upon laws, Treasury Regulations, rulings and d now in effect, all of which are subject to
change or possibly differing interpretations. No assurances can be given that future changes in the law will not alter the conclusions
reached herein. The discussion below does not purport to deal with United States federal income tax consequences applicable to
all categories of investors. Further, this summary does not discuss all aspects of United States federal income taxation that may be
relevant to a particular investor in the Bonds in light of the investor’s particular personal in i or to certain
types of investors subject 1o special treatment under United States federal income tax laws (including i panies, tax
exempt organizations, financial institutions, brokers-dealers, and persons who have hedged the risk of owning the Bonds). The
summary is therefore limited to certain issues relating to initial investors who will hold the Bonds as "capital assets” within the
meaning of section 1221 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and acquire such Bonds for investment
and not as a dealer or for resale. Prospective investors should note that no rulings have been or will be sought from the Internal
Revenue Service (the "TRS") with respect to any of the 1.5, federal income tax consequences discussed below, and no assurance
can be given that the IRS will not take contrary positions.

INVESTORS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS IN DETERMINING THE FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL,
FOREIGN AND ANY OTHER TAX CONSEQUENCES TO THEM FROM THE PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP AND
DISPOSITION OF THE BONDS,

PAYMENTS OF STATED INTEREST ON THE BONDS
The stated interest paid on the Bonds will be included in the gross income, as defined in section 61 of the Code, of the beneficial

owners thereof and be subject to LS. federal income taxation when received or accrued, depending on the tax ing method
applicable to the beneficial owners thereof.

ORIGINAL 1SSUE DIscount

1f a substantial amount of the Bonds of any stated maturity is purchased at original issuance for a purchase price (the "Issue Price”)
that is less than their stated redemption price at maturity by more than one quarter of cne percent times the number of complete
years to maturity, the Bonds of such maturity will be treated as being issued with "original issue discount.” The amount of the
original issue discount will equal the excess of the stated redemption price at maturity of such Bonds over its Issue Price, and the
amount of the original issue discount on the Bonds will be amortized over the life of the Bonds using the "constant yield method"
provided in the Treasury Regulations, As the original issue discount accrues under the constant yield method, the beneficial owners
of the Bonds, regardiess of their regular method of accounting, will be required to include such accrued amount in their gross
income as interest, This can result in taxable income to the beneficial owners of the Bonds that exceeds actual cash distributions
to the beneficial owners in a taxable year.

The amount of the original issue discount that accrues on the Bonds each taxable year will be reported annually to the IRS and o
the beneficial owners, The portion of the original issue discount included in each beneficial owner’s gross income while the
beneficial owner holds the Bonds will increase the adjusted tax basis of the Bonds in the hands of such beneficial owner.

PrEMIUM

1f a beneficial owner purchases a Bond for an amount that is greater than its stated redemption price at maturity, such beneficial
owner will be considered to have purchased the Bond with "amortizable bond premium” equal in amount to such excess, A
heneficial owner may ¢lect to ize such premium using a yield method over the remaining term of the Bond and may
offset interest otherwise required to be included in respect of the Bond during any taxable year by the amortized amount of such
excess for the taxable year. Bond premium on o Bond held by a beneficial owner that does not make such an election will decrease
the amount of gain or increase the amount of loss otherwise recognized on the sale, exchange, redemption or retirement of a Bond.
However, if the Bond may be optionally red | after the beneficial owner acquires it at a price in excess of its stated redemption
price at maturity, special rules would apply under the Treasury Regulations which could result in a deferral of the amortization of
some bond premium until later in the term of the Bond. Any election to amortize bond premium applies 1o all taxable debt
instruments held by the beneficial owner on or after the first day of the first taxable year 1o which such election applies and may
be revoked only with the consent of the IRS.

MEDCARE CONTRIBUTION TAX

Pursuant to Section 1411 of the Code, as enacted by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010, an additional tax
is imposed on individuals beginning January 1, 2013. The additional tax is 3,8% of the lesser of (i} net investment income (defined
as gross income from interest, dividends, net gain from disposition of property not used in # trade or business, and certain other
Jisted items of gross income), ar (ii) the excess of “modified adjusted gross income” of the individual over $200,000 for unmarried
individuals (§250,000 for married couples filing a joint return and a surviving spouse). Holders of the Bonds should consult with
their tax advisor concerning this additional tax, as it may apply to interest earned on the Bonds as well ag gain on the sale of an
Bond.
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DisposITION OF BONDS AND MARKET DISCOUNT

A beneficial owner of Bonds will generally recognize gain or loss on the redemption, sale or exchange of an Bond equal 1o the
difference between the redemption or sales price (exclusive of the amount paid for acerued interest) and the beneficial owner's
adjusted tax basis in the Bonds, Generally, the beneficial owner's adjusted tax basis in the Bonds will be the beneficial owner's
initial cost, increased by the original issue discount previously included in the beneficial owner's income to the date of disposition.
Any gain or loss generally will be capital gain or loss and will be long-term or short-term, depending on the heneficial own:r 5
holding period for the Bonds,

Under curvent law, a purchaser of a Bond who did not purchase the Bonds in the initial public offering (a "subsequent purchaser”)
generally will be required, on the disposition of the Bonds, to recognize as ordinary income a portion of the gain, if any, 1o the
extent of the accrued "market discount.” Market discount is the amount by which the price paid for the Bonds by a subsequent
purchaser is less than the sum of Issue Price and the amount of original issue discount previously accrued on the Bonds. The Code

also limits the deductibility of interest 1 by a subseq purch on funds borrowed te sequire Bonds with market
As an al ive to the inclusion of market di in income upon , @ sub may c]cct to
inglude markel discount in income currently as it accrues on all market di Jui b:r' Ihc hseq

in that taxable year or thereafier, in which case the interest deferral rule will not apply. The re-characterization of gain as mdlnar_v
income on a subsequent disposition of Bonds could have & material effect on the market value of the Bonds,

LEGAL DEFEASANCE

If the City elects to defease the Bonds by depositing in escrow sufficient cash and/or obligations to pay when due outstanding
Bonds (a "legal defeasance"), under current tax law, a beneficial owner of Bonds may be deemed to have sold or exchanged its
Bonds. In the event of such a legal defeasance, a beneficial owner of Bonds generally would recognize gain or loss in the manner
described above, Ownership of the Bonds after # deemed sale or exchange as a result of a legal defeasance may have tax
consequences different from those described above, and each beneficial owner should consult its own tax advisor regarding the
; to such beneficial owner of a legal defeasance of the Bonds.

Backur WITHHOLDING

Under section 3406 of the Code, a beneficial owner of the Bonds who is a United States person, as defined in section 7701(a)({30}
of the Code, may, under certain circumstances, be subject to "backup withhalding” on payments of current or accrued interest on
the Bonds, This withholding applies if such beneficial owner of Bonds: (i) fails to furnish to payor such beneficial owner's social
security number or other taxpayer identification number ("TIN"}, (i) fumishes the payor an incorrect TIN; (iii) fails to report
properly interest, dividends, or other "reportable payments” as defined in the Code; or (iv) under certain circumstances, fails to
provide the payor with a certified statement, signed under penalty of perjury, that the TIN provided to the payor is correct and that
sich beneficial owner is not subject to backup withholding,

Backup withholding will not apply, however, with respect to payments made 1o c:rl.a!n heneficial owners of the Bonds. Beneficial
awners of the Bonds should Lonsuh their own tax advisors regarding their qualifi for ion from backup withholdi
and the p d for obtaining such

WITHHOLDING ON PAYMENTS TO NONRESIDENT ALIEN INDIVIDUALS AND FOREIGN CORPORATIONS

Under sections 1441 and 1442 of the Code, nonresident alien individuals and foreign corporations are generally subject 1o
withhalding at the rate of 30% on periodic income items arising from sources within the United States, provided such income is
not effectively connected with the conduct of a United States trade or business. Assuming the interest received by the beneficial
owners of the Bonds is not treated as effectively connected income within the meaning of section 864 of the Code, such interest
will be subject to 30% withholding, or any lower rate specified in an |nt:ome tax treaty, unless such income is treated as portfolio
interest. Interest will be treated as portfolio interest if: (i) the t ial owner p fes a to the payor certifying, under
penalties of perjury, that such beneficial owner is not a United States person and providing the name and address of such beneficial
owner; (ii) such interest is treated as not effectively connected with the beneficial owner's United States trade or business;
(iiil} interest payments are not made to # person within a foreign country which the IRS has included on a list of countries having
provisions inadequate to prevent United States tax evasion, (iv) interest payable with respect to the Bonds is not deemed contingent
interest within the meaning of the portfolio debt provision; (v) such beneficial owner is not a controlled foreign corporation, within
the meaning of section 957 of the Code; and (vi} such beneficial owner is not a bank receiving interest on the Bonds pursuant to a
loan agreement entered into in the ordinary course of the bank’s trade or business.

Assuming payments on the Bonds are treated as portfolio interest within the meaning of sections 871 and 881 of the Code, then no
backup withholding under section 1441 and 1442 of the Code and no backup withholding under section 3406 of the Code is required
with respect to beneficial owners or intermediaries who have furnished Form W-8 BEN, Form W-8 EXP or Form W-8 IMY, as
applicable, provided the payor does not have actual knowledge that such person is a United States person.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

September 30, 2021

At September 30, 2021, long-term debt for the City's governmental activities consisted of the following:

Generdl obligafion bonds:
Series 2012
Sarles 2003
Series 2013A
Serles 2015
Series 2016
Series 2019
Series 2021

Totdd general obligation bonds

Combination tax and revenue certificates of obligafion

Series 2013
Series 20 3A
Sedies 2014
Series 2015
Series 2016
Series 2017
Series 2018
Series 20194
Series 20198
Series 2021
Series 2021A

Total combination tax and rev enue cerdificates of obligation

Tax increment ond public improv erment distict debt

Series 2001 TRL 1
Series 2015 PID S
Series 2016 MRL
Series 2017 MRL 1

Total tax increment and public improvement district delb

Salas fox revenue debl
Series 2008 Crime Condrol

Total Crime Control

Series 2007 Park Venue subordinate
Series 2013 Park Venue
Series 2016 Park Venue

Total Park Verwe
Sales tax revenue debt
Series 2015 EFIC

Total EFIC
Total general obligation debt
Unomortized bond premiume/discounts
Total long-term debt - governmental activilles

Interest Year of Year of Qriginal Armount
Rate % Issue Maturity Armount Ouistanding

1.0-20 02 2026 27,400,000 3,475,000
1.5-3.25 013 2033 10,975,000 3,000,000
30-4.125 2004 2034 2,220,000 1,815,000
L7550 016 w03 10,270,000 6,015,000
3.0-5.0 2016 2030 33,810,000 20,440.000
5.00 2020 2031 19,475,000 15,685,000
0.965-4.0 2021 2041 66,945,000 66,945,000
117.175,000
20328 A3 2033 8,830,000 5.915,000
2.0-4.125 2014 2034 11.945,000 8,780,000
3.0-50 s 2034 26,125,000 14,815,000
20-50 24 HE5 27,380,000 21.100,000
20-4.0 mis 2035 33,705,000 26,265,000
22550 007 2037 36,515,000 26,415,000
20-4.0 2018 2039 40,606,000 36,925,000
2050 2009 2099 34,910,000 31,295,000
1530 2019 2034 34,305,000 34,305,000
20-4.5 2021 2041 3,215,000 23,215,000
0.965-4.0 2021 2056 16,935,000 16,935,000
245,945,000
Fmonth SCFR +.31% 2000 2022 17,900,000 1.635.000
20-50 06 2035 440,000 310,000

30-50 w014 2030 3,135,000 -
1.5-25 1% 2025 7105000 7.105000
S.050,000
&mo SOFR62.075+1.07 2008 2022 54,800,000 5,245,000
5,245,000
arr X009 2027 13,390,000 6,245,000
20-40 ik} w07 11,060,000 4,570,000
20-4.0 2014 034 6,730,000 5,670,000
14,485,000
3721-5.032 2015 2040 74,825,000 48,235,000
6B,235.000
462,155,000
27.203.630

&7
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Below is @ summary of the changes in noncurrent liabilities of the City's primary government and

component units:

Primary government;
Governmental aclivilies:

Genaral obiigolion bonds. %

Comicinalion fox and rev enue
cerfificates of obligailon

Tax increment ond public improv ament
disirict bonds

Sales tox revenue bonds - Epic

Salas fex reverue bonds - Crime Confrol

Soles tox revenue bonds - Park Yenue

Issuonce premiurs/discounts, net

Tolot ong-term de bt

Compensated absences

Oiher post-employment banefils iabilly
Met pension Bability

Environmental remediotion kabifity
Other licbiities

Tolal governmenicl aclivities

Business-type aclivilies:
Certificotes of obigaiion
Water and waoslewater ravenue bonds
Isspance premiums/decounts. nel

Toldl long-term debl

Compensated obsances

Cvher post-amployment benefits liabiity
Mel pension lobiliy

Closure and post closure liability

Tolch business-type oclivifes

Total primary governmenl $

Componani unil octivilies:
*Housing Finance Corporation:
Paycheck Protection Progrom- Mote Payable  §
Line of credit
Revenue bonds
Suborcinate revenus bonds

Total Housing Finance Corporation

Local Government Corporation
Environmenial remediotion obiity

Tolal Locdd Government Corporalion

Total component units 5

Bolance Balance
Oclober 1, Bormrowings Paymenis Seplember 30, Due Within
K of Increcse or Decreass il One Yeor
59055000 § 46945000 § [BE25000] % N7A75000 § B.550.000
219,305,000 40,150,000 (13,450,000} 245,945,000 16,195,000
11,725,000 |2.675,000) F.050,000 2,160,000
70,520,000 = [2.285.000] 68,235,000 2,375.000
10,795,000 = (5,550,000} 5,245,000 5,245,000
18,535,000 - (2,050,000} 16,485,000 2,120,000
26,089.620 3,272,425 (2,158,415) 2 HEE0 s,
416,024,620 VID367 425 {37.033.415) 4B, 358,630 34,685,000
21,064,457 11073787 [11,067,407] 21,087,037 7679444
40,687,581 8172017 [2,600.805) 44,258,793 .
59,103,940 51,564,901 (61 452,177} 49,726,664 -
0,900 6,450 - 27.350 27,350
1,13%.367 3,108,628 (160.774] 4,087 29 478,852
558,050,845 182,393,418 {112.298,580] 428,045,703 A7 070676
725,000 (1700000 555,000 175,000
47,155,800 15.120.000) 42,035,800 5.295.000
3,367.478 (271.733) 3,075,745 =
51,248,478 * [5.561,733) 45,686,745 5,470,000
468,411 915072 [760.737) 823,744 494,545
4,275,983 8715 (58 B85) 6,435,833 -
4,470,085 5921,053 14.741.641) 5,649,497
H,5648,946 533,454 [59.384) 9,083,018 =
71112903 8,078,296 111,462,362} &7 728,837 5,944,545
29163768 % . 150371714 § [125760.742) § 695774540 § 53035221
- 1 19086 § * 3 Ng0%6 % -
3,521,670 = (63.148] 3,458,522 65,885
&505.000 = (245,000) 5,640,000 295,000
4.550.000 41,750 =+ 4,591,760 =
14976470 160,856 {328,148} | 4,809,378 350,885
239,348 - 2369 239,363
239,349 237.369 239,349
149764670 § 400,225 3 (328,148] ¥ 15048747 % 400,254
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FOREIGN ACCOUNT TAX COMPLIANCE ACT

Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code impose a 30% withholding tax on certain types of payments made 1o a foreign financial
institution, unless the foreign financial institution enters into an agreement with the U.S. Treasury to, among other things, undertake
to identify accounts held by certain United States persons or U.S.-owned entities, annually report certain information about such
accounts, and withhold 30% on payments to account holders whose actions prevent it from complying with these and other reporting
requirements, or unless the foreign financial institution is otherwise exempt from those requirements. In addition, the Foreign
Account Tax Compliance Act ("FATCA") imposes a 30% withholding tax on the same types of payments to a non-financial foreign
entity unless the entity certifies that it does not have any substantial ULS. owners or the entity furnishes identifying infi i
regarding each substantial United States owner. Failure to comply with the additional certification, information reporting and other
specified requirements imposed under FATCA could result in the 30% withholding tax being imposed on payments of interest and
principal under the Bonds and sales proceeds of Bonds held by or through a foreign entity. Prospective investors should consult
their own tax advisors regarding FATCA and its effect on them.

REPORTING OF INTEREST PAYMENTS

Subject 1o certain exceptions, interest payments made 1o beneficial owners with respect to the Bonds will be reported to the IRS.
Such information will be filed each year with the IRS on Ferm 1099 which will reflect the name, address, and TIN of the heneficial
owner. A copy of Form 1099 will be sent to each beneficial owner of a Bond for U5, federal income tax purposes.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

In the Ordinance, the City has made the following agreement for the benefit of the registered and beneficial owners of the Bonds.
The City is required to observe the agreement for so long as it remains obligated to advance funds to pay the Bonds. Under the
agreement, the City will be obligated to provide certain updated financial information and operating data annually, and timely
niotice of certain events, to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the "MSRE").

ANNUAL REPORTS . , . The City will provide annually to the MSRE (1) within six months after the end of each fiscal year ending
in or after 2022, financial information and operating data with respect to the City of the general type of information contained in
Tables 1 through 5 and 7 through 14 and (2) within twelve months after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2022, audited
financial statements of the City. Any financial statements so provided shall be prepared in | with the ing principles
described in Appendix B, or such other accounting principles as the City may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to
state law or regulation. 17 audited financial are not available within 12 months after the end of any fiscal year, the City
will provide fited financial by the required time, and audited financial statements when and if such audited financial
statements become available.

The financial information and operating data to be provided may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included
by specific reference to any document available to the public on the MSRB's Internet Web site or filed with the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC™), as permitted by SEC Rule 15¢2-12, as amended (the "Rule").

The City’s current fiscal year end is September 30. Accordingly, the City must provide updated information included in the above-
referenced tables by March 31 in each year, and audited fi ial stat for the p: ling fiscal year (or unaudited financial
statements if the audited financial ts are ot yet available) must be provided by September 30 in each year, unless the City
changes its fiscal year. If the City changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRE of the change (and of the date of the new fiscal
year end) prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be required to provide financial information and operating data.

NOTICE OF CERTAIN EVENTS ... The City will provide notice of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds to the
MSRB in a timely manner (but not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event): (1) principal and interest
payment deli ies; (2) p related defaults, if material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting
financial difficulties; (4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (3) substitution of credit or

liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; (6) advesse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed

or final determinations of taxability, Natices of Proposed lssue (IRS Form 5701-TEB), or other ial notices or d inations
with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; (7) modifications to rights
of holders of the Bonds, if material; (8) Bond ealls, if material, and tender offers; (9) d (10} release, substitution, or sale

of property securing repayment of the Bonds, i material; (11) rating changes; (12) bankrupicy, insolvency, receivership, or similar
event of the City, which shall occur as deseribed below; {13) the consummation of a merger, lidation, or acquisition invalving
the City or the sale of all or substantially all of its asscts, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive
agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant
1o its terms, if material; (14) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material, (15)
incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the City, if material, or agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights,
or other similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, any of which affect security holders, if material; and (16) default, event

lerati inati fification of terms, or other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the

of ace ter 1 event,
City, any of which refleet financial difficulties. In addition, the City will provide to the MSRB, in & timely manner, notice of any
failure by the City to provide the required annval financial information described above under "= Apnual Reports.”
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For these purposes, (A) any event described in (12) in the i diately di his idered to occur when any of the

following occur: the apy of & recelver, fiscal agent, or sitmilar officer for the City in & proceeding under the United States September 30, 2021
Bankruptey Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or g | authority has d

Jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the G. Unearned Revenue

existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental

authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorg; Aar or liguidation by a court or governmental e, s 2o :
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, (B) for the purposes of any Unea[ned revenue s aliability for resources obtained prior to revenue recognition. Below is a summary of
event described in the immediately preceding clauses (15) and (16), the term "Financial Obligation” means a (i) debt obligation, the City's unearned revenue as of September 30, 2021,

(ii) derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned
debt obligation, or (iii) guarantee of (i) or (ii). The term "Financial Obligation” shall not include municipal securities as to which
a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule, and (C) the City intends the words used in the e R
immediately preceding clauses (15) and (16) and in the definition of Financial Obligation above to have the meanings ascribed to Activities Activities Total
them in SEC Release No. 34-83885 dated Augus! 20, 2018,

Govemmental Business-Type

A . HoN . The City b et e the & e Finmcial and PR . Prepdid pipeline lease $ 204981 % 1134614 218,595
VAILABILITY OF INFORMATION . . . The City has agreed to provi oregoing financial and operating information only as . .
described above. Investors may access continuing disclosure information filed with the MSRB free of charge via the Electronic Propad arangemany-Ganelery fung 2029.867 2 2029867
Municipal Market Access system at wivw.emma.msrh.org, Unspent grant funds - Texas Woter Dev elopment Board - 905,606 905,606
Prepaid rental deposits - Parks 266,218 - 286,218
LIMITATIONS AND AMENDMENTS . . . The City has agreed to update information and to provide notices of certain specified events Park Venue Fund deposis on events to be held 7,519 2 7519
only as described above. The City has not agreed to provide other information that may be relevant or material to a complete £ iR ) p
presentation of its financial results of operations, condition, or prospects or agreed to update any information that is provided, HERNRBYeHUS ) 39,762 - 39,762
except as described above. The City makes no representation or warranty concerning such information or concerning its usefulness Unspent grant funding 18,354,628 = 18,354,828
to # decision to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date. The City disclaims any contractual or tort liability for damages resulting
1n wholc or in part from any bmch of its inuing disclosure or from any made p 1o its ag
gh reg {and b | owners of Bonds may seek a writ of mandamus to compel the City to comply with its agreemem Tofal unearned revenue $ 21,523.175  _§ 1019220 % 22,542,395
The City may amend its continuing disclosure agreement from time to time to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a H. Long-Term Obligations
change in Jegal requirements, a change in law, ur a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the City, if (i) the
, as ded, would have | itted an underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in the offering described herein in
colnpilanoc with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or mte:pretanons of the Rule 1o the date of such amendment, as ompensated bS.E'f‘II £ PC?STE‘IF'!’]I loyment Benefifs :
well as such changed circumstances, and (i) either (4) the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the respective Govermmental Gctwm_es re_cord _Ilc:bllmes for compensated absences and retiree postemployment costs
outstanding Bonds consent to the amendment or (b) any person unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond at the government-wide financial statement level. Generally, these liabilities are paid from the General
counsel) determines that the d will not materially impair lhc 1ntrm:m» of the registered and beneficial owners of the Fund. Liabilities for business-type activities are recorded and liquidated in the fund that incurs the licblity.
Bonds. The City may alse amend or repeal the provisions of this conti agl if the SEC amends or repeals the

applicable provisions of the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction enters _]legmeni that such provisions of the Rule are invalid, but

only if and to the extent that the provisions of this sentence would not prevent an nnd:rwntcr from lawfully purchasing or selling Long-Term Debt

Bonds in the primary nffermg of the Bonds. If the City so amends its inui ag) it has agreed to include .
with the next financial i ion and operating data provided in dance with its g described above under "-Annual Governmenfal Activif
Reports” an explanation, in narrative form, of the sz for the aiendmint and of the impact of any change in the type of financial Long-ferm debt in the governmental activities' column of the govemment-wide Statement of Net Position
information and operating data so provided. consists of general obligation bonds (including refunding), cerfificates of obligation bonds, sales tax

, " o ; revenue bonds, and unamorti i i i
COMPIJAN(.E WITH PrioR UNDERTAKINGS . . . During the last five years, the City has complied in all material respects with all zed bond premium/discounts

made by it in accordance with the Rule.

General obligation bonds and certificates of obligation provide funds for the acquisition and construction

OTHER INFORMATION of capital equipment and facilifies. General obligation bonds are direct obligations issued on a pledge
of the general taxing power for the payment of the debt obligations of the City. General obligation bonds

n. 5 1 1l 2 bl ¢ 1 and cerfificates of obligation require the City to compute, at the time other taxes are levied, the rate of
"S&P"). An explanation of the significance of the rating may be obtained from the company furnishing the rating. The ratin : " = i e
f‘eﬂa:lsz:mly the f«‘iew of such cnmgany and the City makgk rluyrcpjcwnlahon as to the appll};pyr'mteness ofgthe ralmggi I'he.l‘enlni ng fax rs,qU]rad fo provide {in each year bonds are outstanding) a fund fo pay inferest and principal at
assurance that such rating will continue for any given period of time or that it will not be revised downwnrd or withdrawn enllreiy maturity.
by such rating company, ifin the judg of such company, s0 warrant. Any such d i revision or withd
of such rating, may have an ad\rerse effect on the market price of the Bonds,

RATING . . .The Bonds have been rated "AAA" with a stable outivok by S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Ine.

LITIGATION . . City staff believes there is no pending litigation against the City that would have a material adverse financial impact
upon the City or its operations.
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Significant transfers from Business-Type Activities to Governmental Activities:

o $6,325,724 from the Storm Water Utility fund to the Drainage fund for copital project funding.

«  $48,000 from the Airport fund fo the Capital Lending Reserve fund for repayment of interfund loan,

«  $150,000 from the Water and Wastewater Fund to the Other CIP fund for IT acquisitions.

«  $1,263,985 from the Water and Wastewater Fund fo the Street Maintenance Fund for paymentsin
liew of property taxes

o $497,500 from the Water and Wastewater Fund to the Grants Fund for project funding

«  $200,000 from the Solid Waste Fund to the Municipal Faciiifies Fund for capital project funding

«  $450,000 from the Solid Waste Fund fo the Other CIP fund for capital project funding.

« 540,943 from the Solid Waste Fund to the Fleet Services Intermal Service Fund for capital assets,

«  $97.121 from the Solid Waste Fund to the Street Maintenance Fund for payments inlieu of property
taxes

Other significant transfers made between govermmental funds included the following:

e $6,560,077 from the General o the Park Venue for fiscal operations
«  $5,470,542 from the Streets CIP Fund to the Grants Fund for capital project funding.

o $37,693.951 from EPIC 2 CIP Fund to the TIF #1 EPIC CIP Fund fo create the new fund for EPIC
capital projects.

«  $6,700,000 from the General fo the Capital Lending Reserve for fulure capital needs and
improverment,

o $2,940,000 from the General to the IT & Equipment Acquisifion funds {annual appropriation)

«  $10,393,527 from the General to the Grants to fund matching requirements related to operafing
grants

. $1,500,000 from the Park Venue to the Park Capital Fund for improvements to infrastructure and
equipment at city wide parks

F. Deferred Ouiflows/Inflows of Resources

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Unavailable Revenue
The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from the following sources:

General Debt Service
Fund Fund Total
Proparty taxes 3 1905045 % 928844 % 2833889
Ambulance 138,616 = 138,616
Total $ 2,043,661 % 928844 § 2,972,505

In the Governmeni-Wide Statement of Activities, these amounts were reported as revenue in the period
in which they were eamed.
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REGISTRATION AKD QUALIFICATION OF BONDS FOR SALE . . .The sale of the Bonds has not been registered under the Federal
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in reliance upon the plion provided tf Jer by Section 3(a)(2); and the Bonds have
not been qualified under the Securities Act of Texas in reliance upon various exemptions contained therein; nor have the Bonds
been qualified under the securities acts of any other jurisdiction. The City assumes no responsibility for qualification of the Bonds

under the securities laws of any jurisdiction in which the Bonds may be sold, assigned, pledged, hypott I or otherwise
ferred. This disclaimer of responsibility for qualification for sale or other disposition of the Bonds shall not be construed as
an interpretation of any kind with regard to the availability of any plion from ities registration provisions,

LEGAL INVESTMENTS AND ELIGIBILITY TO SECURE PusLic FUNDS 1N TEXAS . . Section 1201041 of the Public Security
Procedures Act (Chapter 1201, Texas Govemnment Code, as amended) provides that the Bonds are negotiable instruments,
investment securities governed by, Chapter 8, Business and C Code, as ded, and are legal and authorized investments
for insurance companies, fiduciaries and trustees, and for the sinking funds of municipalities or other political subdivisions or
public agencies of the State. With respect to investment in the Bonds by municipalities ar ather political subdivisions or public
apencies of the State, the PFIA, requires that the Bonds be assigned a rating of not less than "A" or its equivalent as to investment
quality by a national rating agency. See "OTHER INFORMATION - Rating" above. In addition, various provisions of the Texas
Finance Code provide that, subject to a prudent investor standard, the Bonds are legal investments for state banks, savings banks,
trust companies with capital of one million dollars or more, and savings and loan associations. The Bonds are eligible to secure
deposits of any public funds of the State, ils agencies, and its political subdivisions, and are legal security for those deposits to the
extent of their market value, Mo review by the City has been made of the laws in other states to determine whether the Bonds are
legal investments for various institutions in those states. No representation is made that the Bonds will be acceptable to public
entities to secure their deposits or acceptable to such institutions for investment purposes.

The City made no investigation of other laws, rules, regulations or investment criteria which might apply 1o such institutions or
entities or which might Jimit the suitability of the Bonds for any of the foregoing purposes or limit the authority of such institutions
ar entities to purchase or invest in the Bonds for such purposes.

LEGAL OPINION AND LITIGATION CERTIFICATE. . .The City will furmish a complete transcript of proceedings relating to the
authorization and issuance of the Bonds, including the ungualified approving legal opinion of the Attorney General of Texas
approving the Initial Bond and to the effect that the Bonds are valid and legally binding obligations of the City, and based upon
examination of such transeript of praceedings, the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel, to like effect. See Appendix C. The
customary closing papers, including a certificate to the effect that no litigation of any nature has been filed or is then pending to
restrain the issuance and delivery of the Bonds, or which would affect the provision made for their payment or security, or in any
manner questioning the validity of said Bonds will also be furnished. Bond Counsel was not requested to participate, and did not
take part, in the preparation of the Notice of Sale and Bidding Instruetions, the Official Bid Form and the Official Statement, and
such firm has not assumed any responsibility with respect thereto or undertaken independently to verify amy of the information
contained therein, cxcept that, in its capacity as Bond Counsel, such firm has reviewed the information describing the Bonds in the
Official Statement to verify that such description conforms to the provisions of the Ordinance. The legal fee to be paid Bond
Counsel for services rendered in ion with the i of the Bonds is contingent on the sale and delivery of the Bonds.
The legal opinion will pany the Bonds deposited with DTC or will be printed on the Bonds in the event of the discontinuance
of the Book-Entry-Only System. Certain legal matters will be passed upon by West & Associates, L.L.P. Dallas, Texas, Disclosure
Counsel. The legal fee to be paid Disclosure Counsel for services rendered in ion with the i of the Bonds is
contingent on the sale and delivery of the Bonds.

The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds express the professional judgement of the
attorneys rendering the opinions as to the legal issues explicitly add d therein. In rendering & legal opinion, the attorney does
not become an insurer or guarantor of the expression of professional judgs of the ion opined upon, or of the future
performance of the parties to the transaction, nor does the rendering of an opinion guarantee the outcome of any Tegal dispute that
may arise out of the transaction.

CYBERSECURITY. . The City has taken several steps to enhance and protect information systems and infarmation of the City, The
City's dedicated Chief Information Officer is certified in cybersecurity matters and responsible for carrying out information security
responsibilities. Some of the City's security operations include regular stafT cyber training, periodic system tests and audits,
authorizing information access with classification level and itivity, and routine replacement of software and
related information equipment. In addition, to help protect the City against claims and ex; due toa eyt ity incident, the
City maintains cyber insurance. The City prioritizes the ability to identify, protect, detect, respond and recover from cyber events
and incidents from nation state actors, organized eriminals, hactivist groups and insider threats.

AUTHENTICITY OF FINANCIAL DATA AND OTHER INFORMATION, . The financial data and other information contained herein have
been obtained from City records, audited financial statements, and other sources which are believed to be reliable. There is no

guarantee that any of the assumptions or estimates contained herein will be realized. All of the summaries of the stamtes,
do and resoluti ined in this Official Statement are made subject to all of the provisions of such statutes, d

and resolutions. These summaries do not purport 1o be complete of such provisions and reft is made to such
d for further i ion. Reft is made to original documents in all respects.




INITIAL PURCHASER OF THE BONDS, , (Afler requesting competitive bids for the Bonds, the City accepted the bid of Robert W,
Baird &Co., Incorporated. (the "Purchaser” or "Initial Purchaser”) to purchase the Bonds at the interest rates shown on page 2
hereof at a price of par less a cash discount of $44,966.50. The Purch can give no that any trading market will be
developed for the Bonds after their sale by the City to the Purchaser. The City has no control over the prices at which the Bonds
are subsequently sold and the initial vields at which the Bonds will be priced and reoffered will be established by and will be the
sole responsibility of the Purcl

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS... The statements contained in this Offi c.lal ?ratem ent, and in any other information pmvlded

by the City, that are not purel;-I hlslol Mi are forward-looking st fing the City's exj S,
hopes, i or I g the future. Resders should not place undue reliance on forward- -looking statements. All
forward-looking included in thls Official Statement are based on information available to the City on the date hereof,

and the City assumes no obligation to update any such forward-looking statements, The City's actual results could differ
materially from those discussed in such forward-looking statements,

The forward- Iooking luded herein arc ily based on various plions and and are ink ly
subject to various risks and ummainncs. including risks and uncertainties relating to lh: possible invalidity of the underlying
ptions and i and possit h: or develo in social, industry, market, Iegal and

es and conditi and achom. taken or omitted to be taken by third parties, including

bmlness partners and competitors and legislative, judicial and other governmental authorities and officials. Assumptions relared
to the foregoing involve judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic, competitive, and market conditions and
future business decisions, all of which are difficult or impossible to predict 1y and many of which are beyond the control
of the City. Any of such assumptions could be inaccurate and, therefore, there can be no assurance that the forward-looking
statements included in this Official Statement will prove to be accurate.

CERTIFICATION OF THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT, .. At the time of payment for and delivery of the Bonds, the City will furnish the
Purchaser a certificate, executed by an authorized representative of the City, acting in such person’s representative capacity, to the
effect that to the best of such person’s knowledge and hehcf (&) the descriptions and statements of or pertaining to the City
contained in the Official & and any addend or di thereto, on the date of the Official Statement, on
the date of sale of the Bonds and the acceptance of the hrsr bid therefor, and on the date of the delivery, were and are true and
correct in all material respects; (b) insofar as the City and its afTairs, including its financial affairs, are concerned, the Official
Statement did not and does not contain an untrue statement of & material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated
therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were: made, not misleading in
any material respect; (¢) insofar as the descriptions and including fi ial data, of or p £ to entities, other than
the City, and their activities contained in the Official Statement are ooncemed such statements and data havc been obtained from
sources which the City believes to be reliable and the City has no reason to believe that they are untrue in any material respect; and
(d) there has been no material adverse change in the financial condition of the City since the date of the last audited financial
statements of the City.

In the Bond Ordinance, the City Council authorized the P‘rlcmg OIT"Jcer to approve, for and on behalf of the City, (i) the form and
content of this Official § and any addend d thereto, and (ii} the Purchaser's use of this Official
Statement in the reoffering of the Bonds by the Punha&:r. all of whlch the Pricing Officer approved in the Pricing Certificate.

fs! Steve Dye
Pricing Officer
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Two of the City's enferprise funds, the Water and Wastewater Fund and the Solid Waste Fund, make
payments in lieu of property taxes to the Street Maintenance Fund, which is a Nonmajor Governmental
Fund to provide funding fer sireet repairs, The payments are calculated by applying the City's property
tax rate to the net book value of the enterprise funds' capital assets. Since the calculation methodology
is not the same as that applied to similar activities in the private sector in several respects, these payments
are recorded as fransfers infout rather than as operating revenues/expenses,

Al September 30, 2021, transfers between the City's governmental activities and the City's business-type
activities consisted of the following:

Trarsfers In
Geaneral Section8 Sreats Gronfs Debt Epic 2
Tronsfers Out Fund Fund CIF Fund Fund Sefvice Fund CIP Fund
General Fund 3 - $ = $ 3 $ 10393527 - 3 -
Streets CIP Fund = -+ 5,470,542 z
Grants Fund - - - - - -
Debl Service Fund - - = - =
Epic: 2 CIP Fund - - - - - -
Nanmajor Governmental Funds - - - 11,730 P50,000 -
Internal Service Funds - - £ - -
Water & Wastewater Fund = 497,500 -
Salid Waste Fund = - 2
Honmajor Enterprise Funds 4 - = - % -
Total $ # 3 = £ = ] 16,373,292 § 250000 § =
Transters In
Monmajor Water Solid Cther infernal
Governmental  Woslewaler Waste Nenmajor Service
Transfers oul Funds Fund Fund Enterprise Funds Fund Total
General Fund 3 16557229 % 4200000 % - 3 - 1 - $ 33.150.75¢
Sireets CIF Fund = - 4 - - 5,470,542
Grants Fund 307,427 ] - < 307,427
Debt Service Fund = - - 187.955 = 187,955
Epic 2 CIP Fund 37,493,951 - - - - 37,693,951
Nonmajor Governmantal Funds 9,942,535 14,000 350,000 11,270,265
Internal Service Funds 261,040 - - = 261,040
Water & Wostewater Fund 1.413,985 - - - 1,911,485
Solid Waste Fund 297121 - = - 80.963 358,084
Noenmajor Enterprise Funds 6,373,724 - - - - 6,373,724
Total $ 72849012 $ 4216000 % 3 537,955 % 60,963 § 96,987,229

Significant transfers from Governmental Activities to Business-Type Activities:

«  $6,200,000 from the General Fund fo the Water and Wastewater Fund for pocled cash coverage
= $16,000 from the Public Improvement District (FID) fund o the Water and Wastewater Fund for PID

funding.

«  $350,000 from the Parks Venue fund to the Golf fund for golf course operations.
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Cost Reimbursements

The cost of the Cily's central general and adminisirative services is allocated to the designated special
revenue and enferprise funds. These costs are reported as interfund services provided and used rather
than interfund transfers. Interfund services provided and used are arms-length fransactions between
departments or funds that would be treated as revenues, expenditures or expenses if they were with an
external organization. The distinguishing aspect of interfund services provided and used are that each
department or fund both gives and receives consideration.

Cost reimbursements for general and administrafive services (indirect costs) are recorded as general and
administrative revenue in the City's General Fund. Indirect costs are recorded os general and
administrative expenses in the funds receiving these services.

For the year ended September 30, 2021, cost reimbursements were as follows:

Fund Amount
Water and wastew ater funds $ 4,577,846
Solid waste funds 560,806
Storm waler funds 104,582
Airport fund 79,538
Other nonmajor governmental funds 248,760
Total to general fund 3 5,573,532

Franchise Fees

The City's enterprise funds, which use public right-of-way, pay franchise fees fo the General Fund as if
they were organizations separate from the City. These fees are not taxes, but are compensation to the
City for the use of the City's right-of-way. These payments, 4% of gross revenues, are reported as interfund
services provided and used rather than interfund fransfers, and are reported as revenue (franchise fees)
in the General Fund and expenses in the enterprise funds.

for the year ended September 30, 2021, franchise fees paid to the General Fund were as follows:

Fund Amount
Waler and wastew ater funds 4 3,408,287
Solid woste funds 428,818
Stormwater funds 344,068
Total 5 4,181,173

Interfund Transfers

Interfund fransfers are made to 1) move revenues from the fund with collection autherization to the debt
service fund as debt service principal and interest payments become due, 2) move restricted amounts
from borrowings ta the debt service fund fo establish mandatery reserve accounts, 3) move unresfricted
revenues to finance various programs that the government must account for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds
for various grant programs, and 4) make payments in lieu of property taxes.
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At September 30, 2021,  summary of changes in capital assets of the Housing Finance Comporation was

as follows:
Balance Transfers/ Balance
January 1, Additions/ Disposals/ Decermber 31,
Housing Finance Corporation 2020 Completions Reclasses 2020
Non-deprecicble capital assets:

Land $ 1,612,851 ¥ - 4 L 3 1,612,851
Total non-depreciable capital assets 1,612,851 - - 1,612,851
Depreciable capltal assels;

Buildings 21,086,354 443,569 497,167 22,027,100

Less accurrulated depreciation (10,286,691) {1,021,144) (497,167) (11,805,004)
Total depreciable capital assets, net 10,799,673 (577,577) 4 10,222,094
Housing Finance Corporation

assets, net $ 12412524 § [577.577) % - $ 11,834,947

At September 30, 2021, a summary of changes in capital assets of the Local Govemment Corporation
was as follows:

Bolonce Transfers/ Bolance
Oclober 1, Adgdiificns/ Disposals/ Septeroer 30,
Local Government Corporation 2020 Completions Reclasses 2021
THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY Non-deprecioble capital assels:
Land £ - § 4885331 § s $  488533)
Construction in progress - 50,000 - 50,000
Total non-depreciable capital assets - 4,935,331 - 4,935,331
Local Government Corperation
assets, fotal $ - 3 4935331 $ - ] 4,935,331

E. Interfund Transactions

Interfund Receivables ond Payables

Advances between funds are accounted for in the appropriate interfund receivable and payable
accounts, and are reported as "due to/from other funds. A summary of interfund receivables and
payables balances ot September 30, 2021, is as follows:

Payoble Fund

MNonmajor
General Governmental
Recelvable Fund Fund Furids Total
Grants Fund $ 28000000 $ - $ 28,000,000
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 112,000,000 137137 113,371,317
Water & Wastewater Fund 7,000,000 - 7,000,000

§ 147000000 § 1,371,317 148,371,317

The primary purpose of the inferfund recelvables and payables listed above is to cover cash shortages
in the reported funds,
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Balance Transters/ Balance
Oclober 1, Disposals/ September 30,
Business-Type Activities 2020 Additions Reclassification 2021

Non-depreciable copital assets:

Land 3 5,106,222 % 18,131 3 E $ 5,123,353

Construction in progress 34,107,743 11,793,989 (11,387,471} 34,514,261
Total non-depreciable copital assets 39,212,965 11,812,120 [11,387.471) 39.637.614
Deprecioble capital ossets:

Buildings 19,908,987 - 1,632,969 21,541,956

Equipment 28,107,787 3147298 (1,652,190} 29,602,895

Infrastruciure 401,681,312 10,603,683 8,709,730 420,994,725
Total depreciable capital assets 449,698,086 13,750,981 8,690,507 472,139,576
Less accumulated depreciofion for:

Buildings (9.791,168) (666,443) - (10,457,409}

Equipment [14,053,940) (2.860,700) 1,557,505 (15,357,355}

Infrasiructure (220,058,838) (14,903,759) 1,308,208 [233,654,389)
Total accumulated depreciation [243.903,954) (18,431,102} 2,865,713 (259,449,353)
Total depreciable capifal assets, net 205,794,122 (4.680,121) 11,556,222 212,670,223
Total capital assets, net $ 245,007,087 $ 7131992 % 168,751 $ 252,307.837

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental and business-type activities as follows:

Governmental activities: Business-type activities:
Support services $ 4,774,651 Water and wastew ater $ 14,647,399
Public satety services 8,507,229 Solid waste 1,803.759
Recreation and leisure services 9,746,647 Other business-lype
Development services 23,229,927 activities 1,979,944
Internal services funds (see note below) 306,092

Tolal business-type aclivilies $ 18,431,102
Total governmental activities 3 46,564,546

Capital assets held by the government's internal service funds are charged to various functions based on
their usage of the assets.

At September 30, 2021, a summary of changes in capital assets of the Sports Corporation was as follows:

Balance Transfers/ Balonce
Cclober 1, Additions/ Disposals/ September 30,
Sporls Corporation 2020 Complefions Reclasses 2021
Equipment $ 30078 3 - $ * $ 310,078
Less accumulated deprecialion {310.078) = - (310,078)
Total $ - $ - $ % 5 E

THE CITY

LocaTion

The City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the "City"), is centrally located amid the estimated & million people in the Dallas/Fort Worth
area. The City stretches 28 miles long by about eight miles at its widest point. The City covers about 81 square miles.

TRANSPORTATION

The City has access to four major interstate highway systems - TH-20, 1H-30, 1H-35 and IH-45 - five state highway systems - SH-
360, SH-180, SH-303, SH-161, and Leop 12. FM-1382 - 11.S. 287 all run through the City, or are within 15-30 minutes of the
City's boundaries.

¥ [H-20: an eight-lane east-west expressway that passes through south of the City, linking the City to Dallas and Fort Worth.
West of Fort Worth, 1H-20 leads to Abilene and Odessa. Eastward destinations on [H-20 are Tyler, Longview and
Shreveport, Louisiana.

¥ [H-30: a six-lane east-west expressway that passes through north of the City and also links the City to Dallas and Fort
Worth. TH-30 links to 1H-20 in west Fort Worth. Eastward destinations on 1H-30 are Greenville, Texarkana and the state
of Arkansas.

¥ SH-360: a six-lane north-south exy y running along the western edge of the City, a key route to Dallas-Fort Waorth
International Airport,

®  President George Bush Turnpike: 4 four and six-lane north-south tollway runs 10.5 miles through Grand Prairie from the
northern City limits to IH-20.

The City's Municipal Airport serves small piston planes to large business trboprop aircraft and helicopters. The airport has a
4,000-foot-long, 75-foot-wide lighted, concrete runway, repair service and cargo handling, a helipad, dining facilities, and support
facilities for training, private aviation and business flying activities. The airport is designated in the FAA National Plan of Integrated
Airport System and the Texas Aeronautical Facilities Plan. Hangar space is available for nearly 233 aircrafi, with fie-down space
and FBO services available.

The Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport ("DFW Airport”) lies about five miles north of the City’s northern border, In 2021,
Adrports Council International (“*ACI™) ranked DFW Airport second among United States airports and lhmi globally for mtal
number of aircraft operations, In 2021, the ACI report ranked DFW Airport second globally and d ically for In
2021, DFW served 354 million passengers and provided service to 196 dohests and 63 i
(www.dfwairport.com).

POPULATION

The estimated population for 2022 is 200,640, From the 2010 Census to the 2020 Census, the City's population increased 12
percent.

DEMOGRAPHICS

2020 Census estimates of the City Non-Hispanic population breakdown were 60.8 percent white, 23.1 percent black, 6.9 percent
Asian and Pacific Islander, 0.2 percent American Indian, 0.9 percent other; Hispanic of any race comprises 48.7% of the population.

Age distribution esti of resid fing to the 2020 Census, are 67.2 percent ages 21 and older, 10.1 percent older than
65, and 28.5 percent younger than 18,

INDUSTRIAL BASE

Wholesale trade {distribution), manufacturing and retail trade companies are the largest industrial sectors in the City.



INDUSTRY PROFILE

Industry Percent of Total pross sales
Wholesale Trade 32.42%
Manufacturing 24.62%
Retail Trade 21.89%
Construction 9.12%
Accommodation/Food Services 2.30%
Admin/Support/Waste Mgmt/Remediation Services 2.03%
Other Services {except Public Administration) 1.97%
Real Estate/Rental/Leasing 1.18%
Transportation/Warehousing 0.91%
P ! hnical Services 0.90%
Arts/Entertainment/Recreation 0.70%
Information 0.68%
Agriculture/Forestry/Fishing/Hunting 0.458%
Finance/Insurance 0.25%
Educational Services (0.18%
Health Care/Social Assistance 0.13%
m::mplmlla'.
LABOR FORCE
Auigust Average Annual
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Civilian Labor Force 105,845 102,076 98,905 98,881 98,265 97,727
Employved 101,548 96,337 91,024 95,309 94,525 93,925
Unemployed 4,297 5,739 7,881 3,572 3,740 3,802
% of Unemployed 4.06% 5.62% 7.97% 3.61% 3.81% 3.89%
Source: Texas Employment Comimission,
Tor TEN EMPLOYERS
Estimated
Co . Produst-Service E ees
Grand Prairie Independent School District Adminisiration of Education Programs 4,000
Lockheed Martin Missiles and Fire Contral Research ond Development in the Physical, Engineering, and Life Sciences 4,000
Poby-Americn Inc, Unsupported Plastics Film and Sheet (except Packaging) Manufacturing 2,000
City of Grand Prairie Public Adiministration 1,600
Bell Helicopter-Testron Helhizopier aircraft mnnifaciuring Lzon
Flex-M-Giate Auta Accessory Mamufacturing 1,200
Lear Seating Manufacturing 1,100
Lone Star Pork st Grand Praiie Racetracks L)
Forterra Pipe & Products, Ine. Concrete Pipe Manufaciuring 950
K &N Fillers Air Filter Manufrcturer B0

Source: City's financial statement.
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Assets were restricted for the following purposes:

Governmental Business-Type
Purpose Activities Activities Total
Customer deposits % 45600 % 5942774 % 5,988,374
Debt service 3792767 5,607,337 2,400,104
Capital projects 73,903,750 55,606,358 129,510,108
Support services 2,602,224 - 2,602,224
Public safety 7.229.431 - 7.229.431
Recreation and leisure 26,949,594 - 26,949,596
Development services 11,850,024 - 11,850,024
Other specific purposes 29,013,805 = 29,013,805
Total restricted assets $ 155387197 % 47056469 % 222543646

D. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2021 was as follows:

Balance Transfers/ Balance
October 1, Disposals/ September 30,
Governrmental Activifies 2020 Additions Reclassification 2021

Non-depreciable capital assets:

Land $  47.157.907 $ 8008445 $ L § 55166552

Caonstruction in progress 180,158,846 45,250,111 (133,532,878} 91,876,079
Total non-depreciable copital assets 227,316,753 53,258,756 (133,532.878) 147,042,631
Deprecicole copital assets:

Buiidings 257,020,516 2,803,371 104,634,670 364,458,557

Equipment 130,391,782 4,320,133 [5.402.242) 129,309,873

Infrastructure 444,841,043 5,908,518 13,893,206 664,642,767
Total depreciable capital assets 1.032,253,541 13,032,022 113,125,634 1.158,411,197
Less accurnuioted depreciation for:

Buildings (94,109.832) (10,713,119} 1,236,598 (103,586,353)

Eguipment (84,377,548) [10,940.443) 6,400,892 (88.937,299)

Infrastructure [377,187.046) {24,890,784) 16,450,338 (385,627 ,492)
Total accumulated depreciation (555,674,426) {44,564,548) 24,087,828 [578,151,144)
Total depreciable capital assets, net 476,579,115 {33,532,524) 137,213,462 580,260,053
Total capital assets, net $ 703895868 $ 19728232 % 3480584 § 727302484
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B. Receivables

At September 30, 2021, receivables, including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts,

consisted of the following:

Debl Honmajor Intermal Total
Governmental Activifies General Gronts Service Governmental Service Governmental
Receivables;
Property taxes § 287851 % - $ 1,249,381 3 - 3 - 3 4,127,892
Sobes foxes 7.780.887 - - AR08 - 15,550,003
Franchise fees 2371782 - = 60.026 - 2,431,788
Ofher 3.809.080 32,189 4,658 1.813.0234 84,060 5742973
Total receivabies, gross 16,840,190 32189 1,254,059 642,178 B4,060 27,852,654
Less:
Alowance for uncollectitles {1,4064,887) - |324,400) 2 = [1,730.287)
Total receivables, nel § 15433203 3 32,189 § 729609 ] F.642.178. % B4080 5 26121349
Woter Solid Other Total
Business-Type Activities: Wostew ater Waste Nonmajor Business-Type
Receivables:
Trade accounts $ 11131810 $ 1.810,470 § 1.019.679 $ 13961959
Other - 10,000 - 10,000
Tolal receivables, gross 11,131,810 1,820,470 1,019,679 13,971,959
Less:
Allowance for uncollectibles (5.284,392) (1,249,617) (274,390) (6,808.379)
Total receivables, net $ 5847418 § 570853 § 7457289 $ 7,163,560

C. Restricted Assets
At September 30, 2021, restricted assets consisted of the following:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
Cash and cosh equivalents $ 12105518 % 2958022 § 15063540
Investments 143,281,679 64,198,447 207,480,126

$ 155387197 % 47156469 § 222543666
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RECREATION

Recreational facilities include the 7,500-acre Joe Pool Lake, championship level Tangle Ridge Golf Course, Lone Star Park at
Grand Praivie, Epic Waters indoor water park, and 54 public parks on 5,068.2 acres. Parks, Arts and Recreation facilities include
an extreme skate park, four multipurpose recreation centers, an active adult center, indoor pool, three outdoor pools, five football,
soceer, softball and baseball complexes, two golf courses, 14 tennis courts, an all-inclusive playground, three linear parks, and four
developed lake parks at Joe Pool Lake.

EpicCentral is a 172-acre park located off Highway 161. It features Epic Waters Indoor Water Park, The Epic mega-recreation
center, The Epic Black Box Theater, PlayGrand Adventures all-access playground, the Summit Active Adult Center, Prairic Paws
Animal Shelter, Central Bark Dog Park and Main Event Entertainment. Coming by the end of 2022 are six new restaurants, an
amazing water and light show, and Bolder Adventure Indoor adventure park. In 2023, two conference hotels and parking garagc
will be completed, as will on-land interactive experiences, unique ing, and ever-changing rotation of entertai

Parks and Recreation facilities include an extreme skate park, two multipurpose recreation centers, an active adult center, a senior
center, indoor pool, three outdoor pools, five softball and baseball complexes, two golf courses, 32 tennis courts, a soccer complex,
acentral park, PlayGrand Adventures and two lake parks on Joe Pool Lake,

Ripley's Believe It Or Not, The Palace of Wax and Trader's Village in the City are popular i and shopping 1

Mearby are Six Flags over Texas in Arlington and zoos, art musewms, symphonies and ballet in Dallas and Fort Worlh

Lone Star Park at Grand Prairie is one of three Class 1 horse-racing tracks in Texas and includes a world class racebook and
simuleast facility,

Professional Sports: the Dallas Cowboys of the National Football League, the Texas Rangers of Major League Baseball, the Dallas
Mavericks of the National Basketball Association, the Dallas Stars of the Mational Hockey League, and the FC Dallas of Major
League Soccer. All have home games within 5-25 minutes of the City.

NCAA-event schools: Southern Methodist University and Texas Christian University in Dallas and Fort Worth.

Cedar Hill State Park, just south cast of the City, offers 355, mostly wooded campsites in the Dallas-Fort Worth hill country.
Among park facilities are two lighted fishing jetties and boat access to Joe Pool Lake.

EDUCATION
Seven public universities and eight independ iversities, including health related education facilities, in the region totaled
enrollment of 157,923 in 2020 (source: Texas Higher Educxmun Cuwdmalmg Baard) The universities, among them University
of Texas campuses (Arlington and Dallas), offer progr from engineering to busi and degrees from bachelor's to medical
doclorates.
The Dallas and Tarrant ies public ¢ i Ileges - the nearest of them Mountain View in Dallas, Morth Lake in Irving,

Cedar Valley in Lancaster, the Southeast campus of Tarrant County College in Arlington, and El Centro in Dallas - counted over
186,244 students in 2020 (source; Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board). Additionally, three technically oriented post-
secondary schools are within 20 minutes of the City.

In addition to their degree programs, many of these colleges and uni ities offer busi i It pl training specific
o a pany's skill d health care services, economic and land develog h, and

information services and library facilities open 1o the community.

Grand Prairie Independent School District (the "GPISD") and the Arlington Independent School District (the "AISD") predominate
among the six school districts with boundaries in the City.

GPISD comprises 20 elementary schools, six middle schools, two ninth grade centers, four senior high schools, one alternative
education school and one early childhood center. Stud whose resid are on the Dallas County side of the City attend
GPISD.

Students who reside in Tarrant County and Grand Prairie attend AISD, which comprises of nine high schools, 13 junior high
schools, and 52 elementary schools (six in the City}. AISD has no junior high schools or high schools in the City.
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Grand Prairi rts Facilities Development
The Corp has recuning fair value measurements as presented in the table below. The Corp's investment
balances and weighted average maturity of such investments are as follows:

Foir Vale Measuremends Using
Quoted Prices in Sigrificant
Active Markets CHner Significant Weighted
for ldentical Observable Unobservable  Averoge
Septembper 30, Astets Inputs Inputs Maturity
2021 Level 1) |Lavel 2) [Level 3] |Carys| Cradif Risk
Caonh ¥ loasss § * 3 = 3

Irv estments measured at amorized cost:
Invesimant Pools:
TexPool 9,019,554 - - . 1 AbLAM
Irw estments by for value level:
.5 govemnment ogency securifies:
FHLE 011,638 - 2011438 - &7 ARA

Tedal 3 11,140,045 3 - 3 2011638 % =

The Sports Corporation is autharized to invest in obligations of the U, $. or its agencies and instrumentalities,
certain repurchase agreements, municipal securities with a rating of at least A, collaterdlized or insured
certificates of deposit, and SEC-registered, no-load money market mutual funds comprised of securities
allowed under the Public Funds Investments Act and public funds investment pools. At year-end, all
investments of the Sporfs Corporation were held by the Sporfs Corporation's agent in the Sports
Corporation’s name. The fair value of investments owned at September 30, 2021 was $9.019,554 in the
Public Funds Investment Pool [TexPool) and $2,011,438 in U.S. agency instrumentalities.

ity and Grand Praire Spo iliti velopment Investment Portfoli
The asset mix of the Cily's and Sports Corporation’s portfolio is expressed in terms of maximum
commifment so as fo allow flexibility to fake advantage of market condifions. The asset mix requirements
are as follows:
Sports
City Corporation
% Maximum % Maximum

. Cerfificates of deposit {per institution)

1, U.S. Treasury bills and notes 100 100
2. U.5. agency or instrurnentality abligations (each type) 25° 40
3. Repurchase agreements 20
4. Municipal securities (total) 40
5 Municipal securities (out-of-state} 40
20
50°
100

B88san

&
7. Money market mutual fund
8. Public funds investment pool
a Tolal agency invesiments limited 1o no more than 100% of the fotal porifolio,

b State law allows up 1o 80% of monthly average fund balance, excluding bond proceeds, The City limils its exposure to 50% to
reduce risk.

In addifion. the City may inves! in callable securifies but shall limit the 1otal amount fo no more than 50% of the portfolio. The Sports

Carporation does not fimit callable securities. The Cily and Sports Caorporation did nof invest in any securities different from the
calegories mentioned above during the 2020-2021 fiscal year,
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Investment Policy

The City is required by Government Code Chapier 29256, the Public Funds Investment Act [Act), 1o adopt.
implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must be written, primarily to emphasize safety
of principal and liquidity; address 1) investment diversification, yield, and maturity, and 2 the quality and
capability of investment management; include a list of the types of authorized investments in which the
investing entity's funds may be invested; and, the maximum allowable stated maturity of any individual
investment owned by the entity.

The City Council has adopied investment policies (policies) which are in accordance with the lows of the
State of Texas, where applicable. The policies identfify authorized investments and Investment terms,
collateral requirements, safekeeping requirements for collateral and investments and certain investment
practices.

The Act requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area conducted as
part of the audit of the basic financial siatements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices,
management reports and establish appropriate polices. Authorized investments include obligations of
the United States or its agencies and instrumentaiifies (except for morigage pass-through securities),
repurchase agreements, municipal securities, public funds investment pools, SEC regulated money
market mutual funds and collateralized or insured cerfificates of deposit. The City adheres to the
requirements of the Act. Additionally, investrment practices of the City are in accordance with local
policies.

The investment policies require that repurchase agreements be made pursuant to a master agreement,
the collateralis a U. S. Treasury bill, note or bond; the security is held in safekeeping by the City's custodial
agent; and the investment is fransacted “delivery vs. payment” so that the City's inferest in the underlying
security is perfected. The City does not invest in reverse repurchase agreements. No City monies were
invested in repurchase agreements at September 30, 2021.

Investment Risk
Interest rate risk — In accordance with its investment poficy, the City manages its exposure fo declines in
fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investments portfolio fo less than fwelve months.

Credit risk — State law limits investments in commercial paper if the commercial paper is rated not less
than A-1 or P-1 or an equivalent rating by at least two nationally recognized credit rafing agencies or
one nationally recognized credit rating agency and is fully secured by an irevocable lefter of credit
issued by a bank organized and existing under the laws of the United States or any state, The City's policy
does not allow invesiments in commercial paper.

Conceniration of credit risk — Investments shall be diversified to reduce the risk of loss resulting from
over-concentration of investrments in a specific maturity, a specific issue, or a specific class of securities,
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EXCERPTS FROM THE
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

The inf jon contained in this Appendix consists of excerpts from the City of Grand
Prairie, Texas Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Year Ended September 30,
2021 (the "Report”), and is not intended to be a compl of the City’s financial
condition, Reference is made to the complete Report for further information.

The information contained in this Appendix is provided as of the respective dates and for the
periods specified herein and is subject 1o change without notice, and the filing of this
Appendix does not, under any circumstances, imply that there has been no change in the
affairs of the City since the specified date as of which such information is provided. In
particular, the dates as of and periods for which some of such information is provided
occurred before the impact of the worldwide COVID-19 pandemic and the economic impact
of measures instituted to slow it could be fully realized. Accordingly, the historical
information set forth in this Appendix is not necessarily indicative of future results or
performance due to these and other factors, including those discussed in the Official
Statement.
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The City has recurring fair value measurements as presented in the table below. The City's investment
balances and weighted average maturity of such investments are as follows:

Falr Value Measurements Using;
Guated Prices in Significant

Active Markels Other Signitficant Welghted
for Identical Obsarvable Unobserv oble Averoge
Seplember 30, Assels Irigasls Ingpuis Malurity
2021 [Level 1] [Level 2 (Level 3} (Borys) Credif Risk,
Cash 3 6.518,021 % = 3 - 3

Invesimants measured ot amorlized cost:

Investment Pools:

TexPool 0,230,288 - - = 1 AdAm
Inv estments maasured ol nel assel value (MAV]:

Investment Pool:

TeSfar 37,891,495 - - - I ARAT
Investments by lor value levet:

U.5. governmen! agency securities:

Us Weasuries F1,487.917 = F1.487.917 - 404 AbE
Muricipal boncs 36,701,519 F 3701519 * 334 AAA
FAMCA TE114433 = 76,116,433 - 485 Mot Rated
FFCB 52,047,938 - 52,067,538 2 21 ARS
FHLB 3,856,093 < 3.856,093 = 477 AdA,
FHLMC 27,885,821 g 2¢.885.821 - 05 AL
FhibA SB.486,298 - 55,486,298 N 435 AAA
Total b 4730azozs = $ 8402017 3

The amounis for TexStar and TexPool (pocled investments) are reporfed as cash equivalents in the
Statement of Net Pasition,

The TexPool investment poal is an external investment pool measured at amertized cost. In order to meet
the criteria fo be recorded at amortized cost, the investment pool must transact at a stable net asset
value per share and maintain certain maturity, quality, liquidity and diversification requirements within the
investrment pool. The investment pool transacts at o net asset value of $1.00 per share, has weighted
average maturities of sixty days or less and weighted average lives of 120 days or less. Investments held
are highly rated by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, have no mere than 5% of
portfolio with one issuer (excluding U.S. government securities) and can meet reasonably foreseeable
redemptions, The maturity of the City's pasition in this investment pool is based on the average maturity
of the pool's investment, The investment pool's authority may only impose restrictions on redemptions in
the event of a general suspension of trading en major securities markets, general banking moratorium or
national state of emergency that affects the pool's liquidity.

The TexStar investment pool is an external investment pool measured at NAV. TexSfar's strategy is to
seek preservation of principal, liquidity and current income through investment in a diversified portfolio of
short-term marketable securities. The City has no unfunded commitments related to the investment pools.
TexStar has a redemption nofice period of one day and may redeem daily. The Investment pool's
authorities may only impose restrictions on redemptions in the event of a general suspension of trading
on major securifies markets, general banking moraterium or national or state emergency that affects the
pool's liquidity,

U.5. Government Agency Securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using a

matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities' relationship to
benchmark quoted prices,
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Chapter 2257 Callateral for Public Funds of the Govermnment Code requires that all deposits in financial
institutions be fully collateralized by U.S. Government obligations or its agencies and instrumentalifies or
direct obligations of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalifies that have a market value of not less than
the principal amount of the deposits. The above book balance includes monies held in escrow, pushing
the book balance above the collateral value. Per Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and BNY Mellon's confractual
obligation to the City, the collateral value held in the City's name at September 30, 2021 was $9.620,797.

ri irie Sports Facilities Devel
At September 30, 2021, the carrying amount of the Sports Corporation’s deposits included in cash and
cash equivalents was $109,090 while the bank balance of the Sports Corporation's deposits was $110,460.
The bank balance was entirely covered by collateral held by the Sports Corporation's agent in the Sports
Corporation's nome.

Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporgtion

The bank balance of HFC at December 31, 2020, including restricted cash, fotaled $2,105,861 all of
which was covered by FDIC insurance and collateral held by the depository institution in HFC's name.
HFC's unrestricted cash and cash equivdlents had a balance of $653,769. Restricted cash of $98,282
{tenant security deposifs| represents cash held on deposit by HFC for insurance proceeds recelved for
damages to federally funded assets. The liability is recorded until final disposition of the proceeds is
requested by HUD. Other assets include reserves of $142,857 and bonds held by o trustee of $1,210,092 as
a debt service reserve.

Grond Proife Local Government Corporation

At September 30, 2021, the camying amount and bank balance of the Local Government Corporation's
deposits included in cash and cash equivalents was $75,752. The bank balance was entirely covered by
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) Insurance through its financial institution,

Investments

The City and the Sports Corporation categorize its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value
Measurement and Application provides a framework for measuring fair value which establishes a
three-level fair value hierarchy that describes the inputs that are used to measure assets and liabilities.

+ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted for identical assets or liabiliies in active markets that
a government can access at the measurement date.}

s Level 2inputs are Inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

+ Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability,

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest pricrity fo Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs.
If a price for an identical asset or liability is not observable, a government should measure fair value using
another valuation technique that maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizes the use
of unobservable inputs. If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one
level of the fair value higrarchy, the measurement is considered fo be based on the lowest pricrity level
input that is significant to the entire measurement.

weaver -

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented compenent units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the City) as of and for the year ended
september 30, 2021, and the related notes to basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The City's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibllity is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the component unit financial statements for the Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation (a discretely
presented component unit). Those financial statements were audited by other auditors in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, whose report thereon has
been furnished to s, and our opinion, insofar as it relates fo the amounts included for the Grand Prairie
Housing Finance Corporation is based on the report of other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Compfroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstaterment.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due fo fraud or error,
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparaiion
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinicn. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for
our audit opinions.

Weaver and Tidwell, LLL.P.
2300 Morth Feld Street, Suite 1000 | Dallas, Texas 75201
5 Main: 972.490.1970

CPAs AND ADVISORS | WEAVER.COM



The Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Opinions

In our opinion based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the govemmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2021, and the respective
changes in finoncial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

R i i i

Accounting principles generally cccepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis, budget to actual schedules for the General Fund and Section 8
Fund, Schedule of Changes in Postemployment Benefits-Retiree Heclth Plan, Schedule of Changes in
Postemployment Benefits-Texas Municipal Retirerment System, Schedule of Contibutions-Texas Municipal
Retirernent System, and Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios- Texas Municipal
Retirement System listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certdin limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses fo our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Cther information

QOur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules, as listed in the table of contents, is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial staterments and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund statements and
schedules are fairty stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Minimum Fund Balance Policy

It is the desire of the City to maintain an adequate fund balance in the General Fund in order to maintain
liquidity and in anticipation of economic downtums or natural disasters. The City Council has adopted a
financial pelicy to maintain @ minimum unassigned fund balance of 50 to 60 days of budgeted General
Fund expenditures,

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources. Restricted net position represents the difference between resticted assets
and liabilities payable from these assets that is externally imposed by enabling legislation.

Met investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of cccumulated depreciation, plus deferred
outflows from bond refundings, reduced by retainage payable and the outstanding balance of any debt
used for acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets, plus any unspent bond proceeds.

F. Budgetary Control

As set forth by the City Charter, the City Manager submits annual budgets to the City Council in August
for the upcoming fiscal year. In September, the City Council adopts budgets for all governmental funds
except for the Grants Fund, Police Seizure Funds, Public Improvement District Funds (PIDs), Tax Increment
Financing District Funds (TIFs), and the Verizon Theatre Fund. For each governmental fund, budgeted
appropriations (expenditures) may not exceed budgeted revenues plus beginning fund balances.

Capital project funds are controlled on a project basis and budgeted appropriations are carried forward
each year until the project is completed.

Note 2. Detailed Notes
A. Deposits and Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents
At September 30, 2021, the City reported cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Net Position as
follows;

Unrestricted Restricted Total
Cash 3 3,559.99% $ 2,958,022 $ 6,518,021
Pooled investments 105,816,445 12,105,518 117,921,983
Total cash and cash equivalents 3 109.376464 § 15063540 § 124,440,004

Of this amount, the City's cash carnrying amount (book)} and bank balances were as follows:

Financial Institution Book Balance Bank Balance

Wells Fargo and BNY Mellon % 6,490,665 § 10,021,979
Petty Cash 27,356 -

Total cash $ 6,518,021 $ 10021979
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Fensions

For purposes of measuring net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position of TMRS, and additions
fo/deductions from TMRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by TMRS, For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is
reported for the employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefii payments and refunds
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported af
fair value. Complete detdils of the plan are listed in Mote J.

Postempio: t efits

The City provides postemployment healthcare benefits to all vested employees upon retirement from the
City. Employees are vested in the City's pension plan with twenty-five years or more of service, regardless
of age, or five years or more of service at age sixty and above. Coverage is also available to dependents
or surviving spouses of refirees. The City subsidizes medical, dentfal, and hospitalization costs incurred by
refirees and their dependents. Recommendations for plan benefits are presented to City Council for their
aporoval during the annual budget process, The City's plan quallfies as a single-employer, defined benefit
plan. Complete details of the plan are listed in Note K.

Long-Term Debt

General obligation bonds and other debt issued for general governmeni capital projects and
acquisitions that are repaid from tax revenues are recorded in the govemmental activities column in the
government-wide Statement of Net Position. Debt issued to fund capital projects in the proprietary funds
is recorded in both the business-type activities column in the government-wide Statement of Net Position
and in the proprietary fund Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as defered
charges on refunded debt obligations, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method in the govermment-wide financial statements and in the propriefary funds.
Bonds payable are reported net of applicable bond premiums and discounts.

Nature and Pur f Classifications of Fund Equif
Restricted fund balances in the governmental funds are externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments for specific purposes.

Committed fund balances can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by the
City Council through an ordinance or resolution, which are considered equally restriciive for the purpose
of committing fund balances. To remove or change the constraint, the City Council must take the same
level of action.

Assigned fund balances are determined by City management based on City Council direction, in
accordance with financial policies adopted by resolution. Assigned fund balances are constrained by
the intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned fund balance represents the amount fthat does not meet the criteria for restricted,
committed, or assigned.

Nonspendable fund balances represent inventories and prepaid items.

The City considers expenditures to be made from the most restrictive classification when more than one
classification is available,
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The Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 29, 2022, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our fests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, coniracts, and grant agreements and other
matters, The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of thaf testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal conrol
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
dccordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Lamen and Siduott LLL.

WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L.L.P.

Dallas, Texas
March 29, 2022



Rand

T E X A §
Dream Big Plaq Hard

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Pension and OPEB investment experience - the difference between projected and actual
earnings of plan investments. The difference is deferred and recognized as pension plan expense
over a closed five-year period as required by GASE No. 68 and 75.

* Penslon and OPEB assumption changes - the difference resulting from a change in assumptions
used to measure the underlying net pension and OPEB liability. These differences are deferred and
recognized over the estimated average remaining lives of all members as of the beginning of the
measurement period.

Deferred inflows of resources represents an acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future
reporting period, and as so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
Defemed inflow of resources are reported in the basic financial statements the same as deferred outflows
of resources, The City has the following items that qudlify for reporting in this category.

+ Unavallable revenue - at the governmental fund level, property tax and ambulance receivables
recorded but not expected to be collected within than sixty days after fiscal year end are deferred
and recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) in the period that the amounts become
available.

+ Pension and OPEB actuarial experience - the difference between the expected and actual
experience In the actuarial measurement of the total pension and CPEB liability not recognized in
the cumrent year. This amount is deferred and amortized over a period of years determined by the
plan actuary. The amortization period is based on the estimated average remaining service lives
of employees that are provided with a pension er OPEB through the plans |active and Inactive
employees) for the City determined at the beginning of the measurement date,

* OPEB assumplion changes - the difference resulting from o change in assumptions used to
measure the underlying net pension and OPEB liablity. These differences are deferred and
recognized over the estimated average remaining lives of all members as of the beginning of the
measurement period.

+ Pension investment experience - the difference between projected and actual eamings of plan
investments, The difference is deferred and recognized as pension plan expense over a closed
five-year period as reguired by GASB No, 48,

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation benefits in varying amounts, depending on tenure with the City. These
benefits accumulate pro rata by pay period, Payment for unused vacation will be made upon separation
of employment. Fire and police civil service employees who have completed thelr introductory period
are paid up to 90 days sick leave upon separation of employment, excluding indefinite suspensions. The
valuation of the civil service sick leave is at cument pay rates. The valuation of accrued compensated
absences includes salary-related payments such as the City's share of taxes and contfributions to the
retirement plan in accordance with GASE 16.

Accrued compensated absence liabilities are reported in the respective columns in the
govermnment-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial statements. Compensated
absences are only reported in governmental funds if they are owed to separated employees at the end
of the fiscal year.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Receivables and Payables

Maijcr revenue sources susceplible fo accrual are recorded as receivables when they become both
measurable ond available. Expenditures incurred during the cumrent fiscal year but not yet paid are
recorded as payables ot fiscal year-end.

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arangements outstanding at
fiscal year-end are referred to as due to/from other funds.

Inventories and Prepaid ltems

Inventory consists primarily of supplies and material and is recorded at cost when purchased and
expensed when consumed, For the General Fund, inventory is expensed on an actual specific-cost basis.
Special Revenue and Enterprise Funds' inventory is charged ouf on a first-in, first-out basis, except for fuel
inventory which is charged out on a moving-average basis. Prepaid balances are for payment made by
the City in the current year to provide services occurring in the subsequent fiscal year. The cost of prepaid
iterns is expensed when consumed rather than when purchased.

Accordingly, for both inventories and prepaid items, fund balance is classified as nonspendable for an
amount equal to the cost to signify those funds are not available for spending.

Capital Assefs and Depreciation

Capital assets (i.e. land, buildings, equipment, improvements other than bulldings, infrastructure, and
construction in progress) of all the funds are stated at historical cost or esfimated historical cost if historical
cost is not known. Donated caopital assets, donated works of arf and similar items, and capital assets
received in a service concession arangement are recorded at acquisiion value on the date donated.
An item is classified as an asset if the initial, individual cost is $5,000 or greater. Capital assets of the City
are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial statements. Assets subject to depreciation are
depreciated using the straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives of all depreciable assets are as follows:

Buildings 20 - 40 years
Machinery and Equipment 5- 15 years
Improvernents other than Buildings 20 - 40 years
Infrastructure 20 - 40 years

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Defered outflows of resources represents a consumption of net position by the City that is applicable to
o future reporfing pericd, and as so wil not be recognized as an outflow of resources
lexpenses/expenditures) until then. Deferred outflows of resources are reported in the government-wide
Statement of Net Position for governmental and business-type activities and in the Statement of Net
Position in the fund financial statements only for proprietary funds. The City has the following items that
quadlify for reporting in this category.

« Deferred charges on debt refunding — results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded
debt and ifs reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized cver the shorfer of the life
of the refunded or refunding debt,

+ Pension and OPEB Employer contributions — contributions made from the measurement date of
the plans to the current fiscal year end (January to September). These contributions are deferred
and recognized in the subsequent fiscal year.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

The City also reports unovailable and unearned revenues in its governmental funds. Unavailable revenues
arise when potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition
in the cument period. Uneamed revenues arise when the City recelves revenue resources before it has
legal claim fo it, as when grant money Is received prior to the incidence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the City has a legal claim to the
resource, the revenue is recognized.

Proprietary Funds

As mentioned earlier, proprietary funds use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. The accounting objectives for proprietary funds are the determination of net income,
financial position, and cash flows. Proprietary fund equity is segregated into (1) net investment in capital
assets; (2) restricted net position, and (3} unrestricted net position. Proprietary funds distinguish operating
revenues and expenses from the non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result
from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's
principal ongeing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
non-operating revenues and expenses.

The City reports two types of proprietary funds — enterprise funds and intemal services funds.

Enterprise funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner simllar
to private business enterprises, where the intent is 1) that the costs [expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods and services to the general public on g continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges, or 2) where the City Council has decided that periodic determination of
revenues eamed, expenses incurred and/or operating income generated is appropriate for the purposes
of capital maintenance, public policy, management confrol, and/or accountability. The City maintains
five enterprise funds - water and wastewater services, solid waste services, storm water services, airport
operations, and golf course operations. These enterprise funds are classified as business-type activities in
bath the govemment-wide and governmental fund financial statements,

Intemal Service Funds

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department to other departments within the City, on a cost-reimbursement basis, The City has twa infemal
service funds:

» Fleet Services Fund - accounts for a full range of services in managing and maintaining the
City's fleet of vehicles and equipment.

+ Risk Management Fund — accounts for premiums, deductibles and claims for the City's property,
liability, workers compensation, and employee health and life insurance programs. The City
reports all risk financing activities in the Risk Management Fund.

E. Assets, Liabilities, Defered Outflows/Inflows Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balances

Di i v ts

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Interest earnings are
recorded in the General Fund unless it is required by regulations or agreements to dllocate to certain
funds. In fiscal year 2021, the funds receiving allocation of interest eamings were the Grants Fund, Epic 2
CIP Fund, and the Police Sefzure Funds. For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the City considers
cash on hand, demand depaosits, and investments with ariginal maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes fo the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

At September 30, 2021, major enterprise funds include the following:

Waoter/Wastewater Fund

This fund accounts for water and wastewater system services provided for residents of the City, including
administration, operations, maintenance, debt service, biling and collection. The City purchased treated
water from surrounding cities, and water is pumped from City-owned wells. Although the City owns the
wastewater collection system, it has no treatment facilities. Wastewater freatment is provided by the
Trinity River Autherity. Confracts relating to purchased water and wastewater freatment are discussed in
Note 2M. All costs are financed through charges to utility customers with rates reviewed regularly and
adjusted if necessary to ensure the integrity of the funds.

Solid Waste Fund

This fund accounts for the City's landfill, garbagefrecycling collection service, brush and litter collection,
street sweeping, illegal dumping cleanup, Keep Grand Prairie Beoutiful, and auto-related business
programs, as well as o number of special purpose fransfers related fo reserves for landiill closure,
post-closure costs and environmental remediation. All costs are financed through charges to sanitation
customers.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues and
expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements, Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus
applied.

vernment-Wide Financigl Statements
The government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements for proprietary funds are
reported using the economic resources measuremnent focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The
econamic resources measurement focus means all assefs and liabilities (whether curent or noncurrent)
are included on the Statement of Net Position, and the operating statement presentsincreases [revenues)
and decreases (expenses) in the net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when eamed, and expenses are recognized at the time the liability is incurred.

Govermnmental Fund Financial Statements

Govemmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and are accounted for using the modified acerual basis of accounting. Under the medified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when both measurable and available. Measurable means
knowing, or being capable of calculating or estimating the amount to be received. Available means
collectible within the current period or soon encugh thereafter to pay curent liabilities (generally sixty
days). Also, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures (including capital outlay] are
recorded in the period when the related fund liability is incumed, except for general obligation bond
principal and interest and expenditures related to compensated absences, which are recorded when
due rather than when incured.,

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual in the governmental funds include property taxes, sales
taxes, franchise fees, charges for services, and intergovernmental revenues. Revenue is accrued when it
is deemed available except for intergovernmental revenues.

Grant revenues are recognized not just when available, but when the qualifying expenditures have been
incurred, and all other grant requirements have been met.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021
(Unaudited)

Management's discussion and analysis provides a narative overview of the financial activities and
changes in the financial position of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the City) for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2021. It is offered here by the management of the City to the readers of its financial
statements. Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the
information furnished in our letter of transmittal, the introductory section of the City's financial statement,
and the accompanying notes,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

s  The assefs and deferred cutflows of resources of the City exceeded ifs liabilities and deferred
inflows of rescurces at September 30, 2021 by $724,434,431 [net position).

s The City's total net position increased $39,994,412, for the fiscal year ended Septernber 30, 2021,
primarily due to an increcse in charges for services, sales tax collections, franchise fee collections,
and grant contriibutions.

s At September 30, 2021, the City’s govemmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $299,266,048. The $46,567,628 unassigned fund balance in the General Fund represents 28.0%
of total General Fund expenditures and transfers.

s The City's total long-term liabilities of $695,774,540 increased by $66,610,772 (10.6%) during the
current fiscal year. In fiscal year 2021, net bonded debt increased by $64,930,000, with the
remaining liability comprised of pension and employee related obligations. See Table 4 in this
report for further information regarding the City's long-term liabilities.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an infroduction fo the City's basic financial statements.
The reporting focus Is on the City as a whole and on individual major funds. It is intended fo present a
more comprehensive view of the City's financial activities.

The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) govermment-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements, This report also contains
required and other supplementary information in addition fo the basic financial statements,

Government-wide financial statements - The govemment-wide financial stafements include the
Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities. These staterments are designed to provide readers
with o broad overview of the City's finances in a manner similar to that of a private-sector business. Both
are prepared using the economic resources focus and the accrual basis of accounting, meaning that all
the current year's revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on dll of the City's assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, including capital assets and long-term liabilities, and defered inflows of resources.
The differences between these items are reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating. Other indicators of the city's financial position should be taken into consideration, such as
the change in the City's property tax base and condition of the City's infrastructure [i.e., roads, drainage
systerns, water and sewer lines, elc ], in order to more accurately assess the overall financial condition of
the City.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. It focuses on both the gross and net costs of the government's various
activities and thus summarizes the cost of providing specific government services. This statement includes
all current year revenues and expenses.



City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Management's Discussion and Analysis — Centinued
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021
{Unaudited)

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities divide the City's activities into two types:

Governmental Activities - Most of the City's baosic services are reported here, including general
govemment, public safety, planning, public works, transportation, housing, community development,
cultural events, and lbrary, Property taxes, sales taxes, and franchise fees provide the majorty of
financing for these activities.

Business-Type Activities — Activities for which the City charges a fee fo customers to pay most or all of the
costs of a service it provides are reported here. The City's business-type activities include a water and
wastewater systern, a solid waste sanitary landfill, o storm water utility system, municipal airport, and
municipal golf courses.

The govemment-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government], but also the Grand Prairie Sports Facliities Development Corporation, Inc. (the Sporfs
Corporation) and the Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation (HFC) as component units, Both are
legally, financially, and administratively autonomous separate corporations. HFC Issues tax exempt
revenue bonds fo supply mortgage finoncing for low income home buyers and multi-family
developments, and engages in other affordable housing activifies. The Sports Corporation oversees Lone
Star Park at Grand Prairie, a horse track facility.

The Crime Control and Prevention Distict (CCPD) s a legally sepaorate entity that is financially
accountable fo the City, A blended presentation has been used to report the financial information of this
component unit, The CCPD is reported as the Crime Sales Tax Fund.

Fund financial statements — The City, like cther state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. A fund is o grouping of
related accounts that is used to maintain contrel over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. These statements focus on the most significant funds and may be used to find
more detailed information about the City's most significant activities. All of the funds of the City can be
divided into two categories; govemmental funds and proprietary funds.

Govemmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for the majority of the City's activities,
which are essentially the same functions reported as govemmental activities in the government-wide
statements, However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendakble resources, as well as spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such inforrnalion may be useful in evaluating a
government's near-term financing requirements.

The focus of the govermmental funds financial staterments is narower than that of the govermment-wide
financial statements. Therefore, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so. readers may better understand the long-term impact of the govemment's
near-term financing decisions. Both the govemmental funds Balance Sheet and the governmental funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison. These reconciliations explain the differences between the govemment's
activities as reported In the govermment-wide statements and the information presented in the
govemmental funds financial statements.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Fund Financial Statements

In addition to the govemment-wide financial statements, the City also reports separate financial
statements for major functions or acfivities of the govemment. These financial staterments are organized
on the basis of funds with governmental resources alliocated to and accounted for based upon the
purposes for which they are spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. Separate
staternents are presented for governmental activities and proprietary activities.

Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts which constitute its
assets, defered outflows of resources, liobilties, deferred inflows of resources. revenues,
expendifures/expenses, and fund balances, The fund financial statements present each mojor fund as a
separate column, while all nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. Major funds
are calculated using specific methods outlined in GASB Statement No. 34, or City management may also
deem funds as major for presentation purposes.

At September 30, 2021, major governmental funds include the following:

General Fund

The General Fund Is the primary operating fund of the City. This fund is used to account for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in ancther fund. All
general tax revenues and other receipts that are not restricted by low or contractual agreement to some
other fund are accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital
improvement costs not paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund.

Section 8 Fund

This special revenue fund accounts for grant and confract revenue received from the federal
govemment for providing housing assistance to low income families and for the administration of the
program.

Street CIP Fund
This capital project fund accounts for the construction and renovation of thoroughfares and arterial
streets and roads financed through general obligation bond proceeds and other dedicated sources,

Grants Fund
This special revenue fund accounts for the various federal, state and local grant revenue received by the
City. All grants included in this fund are for specific projects with limited duration.

Debt Service Fund

The City's Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of
principal, inferest and related costs on general long-term debt pald primarily from taxes levied by the
City. The fund balance of the Debt Service Fund is restricted exclusively for debt service expenditures.

Epic 2 CIP Fund

This capital project fund accounts for the proceeds from sales tax revenue bonds, current
lending/borrowing arrangements, and other dedicated sources to be used in the construction of The
Epic.
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The GASE issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, This Statement establishes accounting and financial
reporting requirements for specific issues related to leases, intraentity fransfers of assets, postemployment
benefits, government acquisitions, risk financing and insurance-related activities of public entity risk poals,
fair value measurements, and derivative instruments, This statement will become effective for the City in
fiscal year 2022,

The GASR issued Statement No. 93, Replocement of Interbank Offered Rates. This Statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting requirements related to the replacement of IBORs in hedging
derivative instruments and leases. This statement will become effective for the City in fiscal year 2021/2022.

The GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteric, and Accounting and Financial
Reparting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - an amendment of GASB
Statements Mo. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement Ne. 32, This $tatement modifies the
applicability of certain component unit criteria as they relate fo defined contribution pension plans,
defined contribution OPER plans, and other employee benefit plans. This statement will become effective
for the City in fiscal year 2022/immediately.

The GASB issued Statement No. 98, The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. This Statement was
issued in October 2021 and establishes the term annual comprehensive financial report and its acronym
ACER. That new term and acronym replace instances of comprehensive annual financial reporf and its
acronym in generally accepted accounting principles for stafe and local governments. The
implementation of this standard changed the report name fo the Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report, The City implemented this standard in fiscal year 2021.

D. Basis of Presentation

overnment-Wide Fingnciol Statemenfs

The two govemment-wide financial statements, the Statement of Net Position and the Staiement of
Activities, report information on all activities of the City, including component units. Governmental
activities, which include those activities primarily supported by taxes or intergovernmental revenue, are
reported separately from business-type activities which generally rely on fees and charges for suppor.
Significant revenues generated from business-type activities include charges to cusiomers for water
and wastewater services, golf course fees, airport user charges, solid waste collecfion services, and
storm water utility fees. As a general rule, the internal activity between govermnmental activities and
business-type activities is eliminated from the government-wide financial statements except that charges
for administrative overhead services provided by the governmental activities to the business-type
activities are included as revenues to the govemmental activities and expenses to the business-type
activities.

The Statement of Activities reporfs the change in the City's net position from October 1, 2020 fo
September 30, 2021. This statement demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function of the government are offset by program revenues. Specifically, the Cily has identified the
following functions of government — support services, public safety services, recreation and leisure
services, development services, water and wastewater services, solid waste services, storm water services,
dirport operations, and golf course operations. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identfifiable with
a specific function of City govemment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function,
and 2} grants and contributions that are restricted to meeling the operational or capital requirements of
a particular function. Taxes and other items not included ameng program revenues are reported os
general revenues in the statement of activities,
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The City reports thirty one individual govemmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund's Balance Sheet and in the govemmental fund's Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the City's six major funds - General Fund, Section 8 Fund,
Streets CIP Fund, Grants Fund, Debt Service Fund, and the Epic 2 CIP Fund. Data for other nonmajor
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each
of the nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining staterments elsewhere in this
report.

Proprietary funds — The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds — enterprise funds and
internal service funds,

Enterprise funds are used to report the some functions presented as business-type activities of the
government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and
wastewater systemn, solid waste sanitary landfil, storm water utility, municipal airport, and municipal golf
courses. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail, The City has five enterprise funds of which two are major enterprise funds
— the Water Wastewater Fund and the Solid Waste Fund. Data from other nonmajor enterprise funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual
fund data for each of these non-major enterprise funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs intemally among
the City's various functions. The City uses intemal service funds to account for vehicle and equipment
maintenance and the premiums, deductibles, and claims for all insurance programs (e.9. employee
health, workers compensation, general liability, etc.]. Because these services benefit both govemmental
and business-type functions, they have been allocated to both activities in the govemment-wide
financial statements in proportion to services received, The City's two internal service funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data
for the City's internal service funds is provided in the form of combining staternents elsewhere in this report.

Notes to the financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information - In addition fo the basic financial stafements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information conceming the City's progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor
enterprise  funds, and internal service funds are presented immediately following the required
supplementary information.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Total assets of the City ot September 30, 2021 were $1,488,179,969, deferred outflows of resources were
$23,534,997, total liabilities were $765,037,939, and deferred inflows of resources were $22,244,5%4 resulting
in a net position of $724,434,431.

The largest portion of the City's net position, $563,64%.296 [77.9%), reflects its investment in capital assets
(land, buildings and improvements, infrastructure, vehicles, machinery, and equipment), less any related
cutstanding debt used to acquire those assets, The City uses these assets to provide services to ifs citizens;
consequently these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City reports its capital assets
net of related debt, the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liguidate these liabilities.

Table 1 below is a summary of the City's net position at year end compared fo the prior year,

Table 1
Net Position
Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
7/30/ 2020 43002021 7/30/2020 93042021 /3002020 F30/2021
Cash ond investments § 259942938  § 353890403 § 114553733 % 11915140 § 374896671 3 473042023
Other ossels 26,581,255 17,721,000 12,403,270 17,804,415 38,984,525 35,527,425
Copilal assetfs, net 703,895,848 727,302,684 245,007,070 252,307 837 748,902,758 79,410,521
Total ossets 790,420,081 1,098,914,297 372,364,093 389,245,672 1.362.784.,154 1,488,179.569
Ceferred outflows of
resources 21,524.504 20,659,107 2,305 822 2.877.8%0 3836726 23.536,9%7
Current liabilities 36,937,553 55012967 13,475,698 14,250,432 50413291 49.263.399
Long-term bonded debt 415,024,621 489,358,630 51,248,478 45,488,745 A&7,273,09% 535,045,375
Other noncurrent Mt 142,026,244 138,487,073 19,864,425 22,042,092 161,870,669 160,725,145
Total Bobiities 594,988 458 683,058,670 54,588,601 81,979,269 479,577,059 765,037 939
Defered inflows of
resources 0,878,302 20013815 1.725.500 2,230,780 22,603,802 22244596
Met Position
Net Investmentin
capital assats 334,590,522 356,440,773 193,394 440 207,008,523 529,985,182 563,449,296
Resiricted 58,788,228 76342878 61,272,475 88,209,339 120,060,703 164,552,217
Urvastricted 701,455 (14,482,733} 3492479 12,715,651 34,394,134 (3.767,082)
Tolal net position § 394080205 % 414500918 3§ 2BBISTEl4 § 307933513 3 ABA4M0DIT 5 724434430

A portion of the City's net position totaling $164,552,217, or 22.8%, represents resources that are subject o
external restrictions on how they may be used,

The City's net position increased by $3%.994,412 from the pricr fiscal yeor due to an increase in charges
for services, sales tax collections, franchise fee collections, and grant confributions. Overall water and
wastewater rates increased approximately 4%.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Grand Prairie Local Govemnment Corporgtion

The Grand Prairie Local Government Corporation (LGC) was organized for the purpose of aiding, assisting,
and acting on behalf of the City in the performance of its governmental functions to promote the
common good and general welfare of the City by promoting economic development. The LGC's
operations are to acquire, develop, or redevelop redl property within the City. While the entity is legally,
financially and administratively autonomeous, the goveming body of the City of Grand Prairie may, at its
sole discrefion, and at any time, amend LGC's Articles of Incorporation, and alter or change its structure,
programs or activities, or terminate or dissolve it. Additionally, members of the Boord of Directors are
appeinted by and may be removed by the City Council. However, the City is not financially obligated for
any debt of the LGC. For these reasons, the LGC is presented as part of the City's reporting entity as a
discretely presented component unit.

Related Autonomous Entities

Grand Prairie Health Facilities Development Authority

The Grand Praiie Health Faciliies Development Authority (HFDA) was created to issue tax-exempt
revenue bonds to finance medical facilities. While the HFDA's revenue bonds were defeased, the HFDA
continues to exist only to make decisions from time to time regarding the defeased bonds. The City
exercises no conirol aver the HFDA or its budget.

Grand Prairie Industrial Devel t Authori

The Grand Prairie Industrial Development Authority [GPIDA) was created to issue tax-exempt industrial
revenue bonds to assist in the City's economic development and to evcluate tax abatement
applications. The City exercises no control over the GPIDA's management, budget or operations.

C. Implementation of New Accounting Pronouncements
The GASB pronouncements effective for fiscal year 2021 and 2022 are listed as follows:

The GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement is to provide
guidance to enhance the consistency and comparability of fiduciary activity reporting by (1)
establishing specific criteria for identifying activities that should be reported as fiduciary activities and
(2) clarifying whether and how business-type activities should report their fiduciary activities, This
standard became effective for the City in fiscal year 2021 but it had no impact on the City.

The GASE issued Statement MNo. B7, Leases. This Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets
and liabilities for leases that were previously classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows
or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract, and will be effective for
the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. The City is determining the impact of this statement.

The GASB issues Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests — an Amendment to GASB Statements No.,
14 and Mo. é1. The primary objeclive of this Statement is to improve the consistency and
comparability of reporting a govemment's majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
and to improve the relevance of financial statements information for certain component units. The
Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity
interest account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources at gcquisition value atf the date the government acquired a 100 percent equity interast in
the component unit. This standard became effective for the City in fiscal year 2021 but it has no
impact on the City.

45



City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Discretely Presented Component Units

G Prairie Sports Faciliies Development Corporation

The Sports Corporation was incorporated on June 10, 1992, under the provisions of the Development
Corporation Act of 1979, as amended, Arficle 5190.6, Texas Revised Civil Statutes Annotated, as amended
(Act) by Resolution No. 2841 of the Grand Prairie City Council. The purpose of the Sports Corporation is to
promote economic development within the City in order fo reduce unemploymeni and
underemployment, and to promote and encourage employment and the public welfare of, for, and on
behalf of the City by developing, implementing, providing and financing projects authorized under the
Act.

The Act provides that the City may levy a cne-half cent sales and use tax for the benefit of the
Sports Corporation if the fax Is authorized by a majority of the qudlified voters in an election. On
January 18, 1992, a majority of the voters approved a proposition to levy and collect an additional
one-half cent sales and use tax for the purpose of constructing a horse racetrack. The one-half cent sales
and use tax increase became effective April 1, 1993 to cover the costs of the project or the principal,
interest and other costs relating to any bonds or obligations issued to pay the costs of the project or to
refund bonds or obligations issued to pay the costs of the project. All bonds were redeemed on
September 15, 2007. The sales tax was discontinued on September 30, 2007.

The City continues fo receive significant financial benefits from the Sports Corporation as excess eamings
of the Sporfs Corporation are paid to the City; and, if dissolved, all assets of the Sporfs Corporation
become the City's property. Although the Sports Corporation is a legally separate entity, the City has the
abiiity to impose its will upon the Sports Corporation as its Board of Directors are all appointed by the
City Councll, and four of the seven-member board are actual City Council members. For this reason, the
Sports Corporation is presented as part of the City's reporting entity as a discretely presented component
unit, Discretely presented component units are presented in a separate column alongside the
City's financial information.

rand Prairie Housing Finan orporation

The Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation (HFC) was created to issue tax-exempt revenue bonds to
supply mortgage financing for low income home buyers and multi-family development. While the entity
is legally, financially and administrafively autonomous, the governing body of the City of Grand Prairie
may, af ifs sole discretion, and at any fime, amend HFC's Articles of Incorporation, and alter or change
its structure, programs or activities, or terminate or dissolve it. Additionally, members of the Board of
Directors are appointed by and may be removed by the City Council. However, the City is not financially
obligated for any debt of the HFC. For these reasons, the HFC s presented as part of the City's reporting
enfity as a discretely presented component unit.

The HFC's financial information, for its calendar year ended December 31, 2020, is included in the City's
financial statements in a separate column alongside the City's. Separate audited financial statements
may be obfained by writing Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation, Aftn: Executive Director,
P. O. Box 532758, Grand Prairie, Texas 75053-2758.
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The fiscal year 2021 compared to fiscal 2020 changes in the City's net position were as follows:

Table 2
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Business-typa Total
Activilies Activifles Primary Government
FIH0HH /30,202 7/30/2020 2/30/2021 543072020 /30,2021
Reverues;
Frogram rev enues:
Charges for services 3 4397 3 50828428 3 104798492 § 110402425  § 150088231 3 141,231,063
Crperafing granls and confribufions 43,784.399 45,398,240 96,306 + 63,860,705 45,398,240
Coplial grants and confribufions 417,050 S5TA557 10.06%, 185 15545712 10,486,235 22,520,679
Genaral revenuas:
Properly lox 116020.990 113,824,809 - - 116,020,990 113,824,805
Soles fox 70.808,372 B0.187,852 - - 70,808,392 B0,187.852
Olhier fax 1,794,491 2366924 = - 1,794,491 2366924
Franchise fees 13,903,208 14,022,362 - - 13,903.804 14022.362
Invesiment income 1952664 333,265 25770 1,118 7,978,434 334,400
Tolol revenues 317,871,531 313,937,047 114,989,753 125,949,253 434,961,284 439,864,320
Experses:
Support services 31310741 31,280,573 - = 31.310.741 31.BB0,573
Publbc safely services V13728877 105,285,879 - - N3T28E77 105,285,879
Recreation and lelure services 32945455 35.152.022 - = J2PATASS 35,182,022
Development service: 110,126,929 107,073,042 . - 110,126,929 109,073,042
Interest on long-ferm debt 12,689,149 14,004,158 = - V2,665,169 14,004,156
Waoter and wastewaler - - 73.211.370 B1.BE9.P5% T3.211.370 01,889 255
Sofid wosle - - 13,044,195 13,906,365 13,044,195 13,906,365
Municipok cirport = - 575,664 PR 2,529,464 2.974.666
Municipal golf course: - E 3,452,349 3,141,846 3,452,249 3,141,846
Starm waler - - 2497132 &573.380 2497132 2573380
Total expenses 300,205,171 295,405,692 24734710 104,484,216 395,537,881 399,671,708
Increases [decreases) In nel position
belfore fransters 17,164,360 18,531,375 22,255,043 21,453,037 39,421 403 39.974.412
Trarslars 4,830,997 1,889,338 {4.830,999) [1.889.338) - .
Chonge In nat position 21,597.359 20,420,713 17,424,044 19,573,699 39.421.403 9904412
el posifion - beginning of vear 374,082,848 395,080,205 270,235,770 288,357,814 HA501B.614 B4, 440,019
Nel posifion - end of yeor % 3080205 3 414500918 0§ 288359814 0§ 30P933513 & 4BAA4DOIF % 724434431

Governmental activities — Govemmental activities increased the City's net position by $20.420,713 in
comparison with beginning net position, primarily due to an increase in sales tax collections, and
additional federal funding received. Net position of governmental operations accounts for 57.5% of total
net position.

Business-type activities — Business-type activities increased the City's net position by $19.573,699 in
comparison with beginning net position. Cverall operating revenues and expenses increased
propertionately. Net position for business-type activities represents 42,5% of total primary government net
posifion.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

Governmental funds - The focus of City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City's financing requirements. In parficular, unrestricted fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At fiscal year-end 2021, the City's govermmental funds (excluding Internal service funds] reported
combined ending fund balances of $299,266,048, an increase of $45,150,938 in comparison with the prior
year. The unassigned fund balance portion is 15.6% and is available for spending at the government's
discretion. The remainder is restricted for specific purposes and is not available for new spending. Specific
purposes Include non-spendable inventories and prepaid items ($491,473); amounts restricted by bond
covenants or granting agencies [$189,073,380) either for debt service payments, grant-related use,
special taxing districts, or for capital projects. In addition, committed funds ($60,721,090) require formal
action by City Council. Finally, funds may be assigned ($2.412,477) by City Manaoger with the
City Council's delegated authority. Figures 1 and 2 that follow show the distribution of governmental
funds' sources of revenues and expenditures Including transfers, $380.450,358 and $445,103,070,
respectively, for fiscal year 2021.

Figure 1 Figure 2
Revenue Sources Expenditures
Governmental Funds Governmental Funds
= Property Toxes = Supporl Services
%
= Public Salety
» Soles Taxes
Recreation and
3 Leisure

] henehhaiany = Developmean!

| \% services
= Service, Faes, and ; - - Capital Cutloy

Fines -
= Principal Paymenis
* Infergovemmental
= Inferest

Transfers/Ofher = Transters Cul

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At fiscal year-end, unassigned fund balance of
the General Fund was 344,567,628, while total fund bolance was $50,006,37 4, As a measure of the General
Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to
total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 34.9% of total general fund operating
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 37.5% of that same amount. General Fund's fund

balance decreased in the amount of $10,642,056 from the prior fiscal year largely due to $10.7M In CARES

funding received from the counties of Dallas and Tarrant,

Other major funds with significant changes in fund balance include Streets CIP, Grants, Debt Service and
Epic 2 CIP.

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Introduction

The City of Grand Prairie [City] is one of the Mid-Cities in the Dallas-Fort Waorth Metroplex, 12 miles west of
downtown Dallas, 18 miles east of downtown Fort Worth and six miles south of DFW Intemational Airport.
The City was incorporated in 1909, and adopted the Council-Manager form of government in 1948.

The accounting and reporting policies of the City relating to the funds included In the accompanying
basic finoncial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted accounting principles for local
govemnments include those principles prescribed by the Govemmental Accounfing Standards Board
[GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants as published in Audits of State and
Local Govermnments.

B. Financial Reporting Entity

The City's basic financial statements include the accounts of all City operations. The criteria for including
legally separate entities as component units within the City's reporting entity are set forth In Section 2100
of GASB's Codlification of Governmental Accounting and Finoncial Reporting Standards. Based on this
criterion, the City reports the following component units as part of the financial reporting entity:

Blended Component Units

Grand Prairie Crime Control and Prevention District

The City of Grand Prairie Crime Control and Prevention District (CCPD) was created in May 2007
under the provisions of the Crime Control and Prevention Act and authority of Chapter 343, Texas Local
Govermment Code, as amended [Act) by Resclution No. 2007-02 of the Grand Prairie City Council. The
purpose of the CCFPD is to provide crime control and crime prevention strategies, specific freatment and
prevention programs, and court and prosecution services including the cost of personnel, administration,
expansion, enhancement, and capital expenditures, and any other programs os authorized by
Chapter 363,

Under the authority of the Act, the voters of Grand Praiie approved o propesition to levy and collect an
additional quarter-cent sales and use tax for the purpose of funding the CCPD which became effective
October 1, 2007. In 2020, citizens voted to continuefrenew the quarter-cent sales and use tax for this same
purpose.

The CCPD's governing body is substantively the same as the governing body of the City as the
seven members of the CCPD's Board of Directors are all City council members. The City has operational
responsibility for the CCPD, and the CCPD provides all of its services to the City. If the District is dissolved,
its assets will become the City's property. For these reasons, the CCPD is reported as a blended
compenent unit of the City and is reported as a special revenue fund within the City's governmental
activities. This special revenue fund was established specifically to account for the accumulation and use
of the guarter-cent sales tax revenue collected for the CCPD.



w&
T E X A S
Dream Bia Play Hard

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

42

City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Management's Discussion and Analysis - Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021
{Unaudited)

The Streets CIP Fund decreased by $2,359,295 due to an increase in street construction projects.

The Grants Fund increased by $6,726,875 due primarily to transfers into the Granis Fund to pay the City's
portion of federal and state funded projects.

The Debt Service Fund increased by $1,298,33% due to property tax assessments netted against debt
payments.

The Epic 2 CIP Fund decreased by $37,693,951 due to a transfer to the Tax Increment Financing CIP Fund.

The Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds had a collective increase in fund balance of $105,130,445 primarily
due to bond proceeds for the EPIC project.

Proprietary funds — The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The net position of the City's enterprise funds and intermal service funds were $304,885,970 and $19.953,406
respectively, at September 30, 2021, The enterprise funds' net investment in capital assets represented
47.9% of total enterprise fund's net position. The intemal service funds' net investment in capital assets
represented 8.5% of total internal service funds' net position. The enterprise funds' unrestricted net position
was 3.2% of their total net position, and internal service funds' unrestricted net position was 91.5% of their
total funds' net position. The City's enterprise funds and the intemal service funds reported income before
contributions and transfers of $5,798,504 and $1,306,189, respectively. Other factors conceming the
finances of the proprietary funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the government-wide
financial statements and business-type activities. The following Figures 3 and 4 show the proprietary funds'
revenues of $144,550,515 and expenses of $136,623,505 (excluding non-operating revenues and
expenses, and confributions and fransfers) by activity,

Figure 3 Figure 4
Revenues by Activity Expenses by Activily
Proprietary Funds Propriefary Funds
= Woler and « Woler and
Woslewale Wastewaler
= Solid Waste = Solid Wasle

Other Enterprise Funds Other Enferprise Funds

* Infemal Service Funds = Inlamal Service Funds
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Actual General Fund revenues were $7,851,589, or 5.4%, higher than final budgeted revenues for fiscal
year 2021. Property taxes, sales taxes, and franchise fees were 83.6% of General Fund budgeted revenues.
Actual General Fund expenditures were $3.543.778, or 2.6%, lower than final budgeted expenditures for
fiscal year 2021. Budgeted excess of revenues over expenditures before other financing sources and uses
was $9.284,713 compared fo actual of $20,682,080, resulting in o net positive budget variance of
$11,395,367. The City traditionally budgets revenue conservatively and this practice frequently results in
positive budgetary variances.

Net change in fund balances of the General Fund, including other financing sources and uses such as
transfers, resulted in a net positive budget variance of $12,020,066.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets — The City's investment in copital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for ifts
governmental and business-type activities at fiscal year-end amounted to $979,610,521. This investment
includes land, buildings, improvements other thon bulldings (includes infrastructure), machinery and
equipment, and construction in progress. The City's capital assets increased from prior year by
$30,707 566,

Maijor capital projects occuring during the fiscal year included the following:

+ Continued ambulance and engine replacement

+  Construction of Phase I, Il and IV of the Municipal Complex

+ Continued street rehabillitation

+ Continued street assessment implementation

* Continued sidewalk construction

*»  Continued improvements to the water distribution and sewer system
+ EPIC Central construction project

The City's capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, at fiscal year-end was as follows:

Table 3
Capital Assets
Governmenial Business-iype Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
7/30/2020 7/30/2021 5130/ 2020 21302021 7)30/2020 93012021
Land § 47057907 § 55166552 % 5105222 % 5123353 % 52263129 § 40,289,905
Construction in progress 180, 158.844 71876075 34,107,743 34,514,261 214,266,589 126,590,340
Depreciable capitol assels 1.032.253,541 1,158,411.1%7 449,658,086 472,132,576 1,481,951.627 1.630,550,773
Accunmiated depreciation {555,674.426) |578,151,144) [243,903,561] (259,469,353] [799,578,367) (837,620,497}
Telal copilal assets, nel § 703895868 § 727302484 § 245007090 § 252307837 § FABS0L958 §  979.610521

Additlonal information regarding capital assels can be found in Nofe 2.D.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Management's Discussion and Analysis — Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021
(Unaudited)

Long-term debt - At September 30, 2021, the City had the following long-term liabillties:

Table 4
Long-Term Debt
Govemnmenial Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Governmeni
F/30/ 2020 71300321 4302020 /30,2021 13042020 9/30/2021

Bonded debt 3 415024620 § 489358430 § SL24B47E  F A54BATAS 3 AATZI309B  § 535045375
Compersaled absences 21,064,457 21,087.037 459,411 623,744 21,533,858 21710781
Other posi employment benefils 40,687,581 44,258,793 6275583 4,685,833 4,963,564 T0.944.626
Mel pension liability 59,113.940 49,226,664 4,470,085 5,649,497 &3,584.005 54,876,161
Paollution liobdty 20500 27.350 = = €050 27,350
Closure and post closure Rability - - B.4648,946 2083018 8,648,546 083,018
Ofther liobiilies 1,139,367 4.087.229 = + 1,139,367 ADB7, 229

Total long-term debt § 558050865 3 628045703 0§ 71012903 § A7 FIREAT 0§ X E3TER 3 95774540
Long-termdebl o nel

positicn percenioge 141% 151% 5% b L 6%

Of the total bonded debt, $489,358,430 or 91.5% is backed by the full faith and credit of the City with a
property tax pledge.

In February 2021, the City issued $23,215,000 in Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Chligation,
Series 2021. The Certificates were issued for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be (i)
acquiring, constructing, improving and equipping fire-fighting facilities and library facilities, (i)
constructing, improving and equipping existing municipal facilities, (i) constructing street improvements,
including drainage, landscaping, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, entryways, pedestrian pathways, signage,
traffic signalization and street noise abatement incidental thereto and the acquisition of land and rights-
of-way therefor and (iv) professional services rendered in connection therewith.

In June 2021, the City issued $66,945,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021, and $16,935,000 in
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2021A. The bonds were issued for the
purpose of paying contractual abligations to be incumed for constructing street improvements, including
drainage, landscaping, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, entryways, pedestian pathways, signage, traffic
signalization and street noise abatement incidental thereto, and for the acquisition of land and rights-of-
way therefor within the reinvestment zone of the City known as the Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment
Zohe Number One (TIF #1),

During this fiscal year, the City refired principal on outstanding bonded debt totaling $40,260,000. The
City's total interest expense for all bonded debt was $17,197.315.

Additional information is detailed in the Note 2.H to the Basic Financial Statements.

The City's bond ratfings by Fitch and Standard & Poor's are cumentty as follows:

Standard &
Fitch i
General obligation bonds Abt AAD
Sales tax revenue bonds (taxable) AA AA-
Sales tax revenue bonds (tax-exempt) Al AA-
Water and wastewater revenue bonds ABA AAA



City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Management's Discussion and Analysis - Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021
(Unaudited)

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2022
budget including tax rates and fees that will be charged for business-type activities. One of the biggest
factors continued to be the national economy and uncertainty caused by the pandemic. Building and
development growth rates continue fo increase overall; and indicate healthy activities in the residential
sector and commercial type permitting. Although the City Is largely built out and mature, there are sfill
several areas availoble, mainly in the south sector with higher end residential areas along Joe Pool Lake.
In addition, there is a leveling of multi-family developments, but a major increase in retall construction, in
large part due to toll road 141 and emerging destination facilities, such as Epic and Epic Waters.

The City population as of Septemiber 2021 was 200,640 which is a 2.8% increase over prior year, Residential
expansions continue in the south and new manufacturing and distribution companies continue to add
growth to the City's economy. Even more growth s expected as a result of continued development and
mobility through the City. Roadway improvements, like widening of Camp Wisdom, Great Southwest
Parkway and -30 frontage roads from SH 141 to McArthur continue to make additional demands on the
City for increased services. Our diverse economy, the overall DFW metroplex economy and major
transportation access all serve to create a synergy.

The following indicators were taken into occount when adopting the budget for fiscal year 2022:

*  8.89% increase in assessed property values;

s A0.70% increase in sales tax collections over the prior year projected due to the contfinued effects
of the pandemic.

General Fund property tax revenues increased $5,388,394 or 7.05%. The approved property tax rate
decreased by a half cent from 669998 to .664998. Other budgeted revenue sources include an increase
in the TIF Reimbursement, an increase in sales tax of $4,511.646, an increase in licenses and permits of
$446,360, and a decrease in Municipal Court fees of ($438.004).

Budgeted sales tax ocross all funds is $76,102,037, which is an increase over the year-end projections of
$75,541,058. This is mainly due to the ongoing pandemic and its unknown effect on the economy.

The City's total approved budget for FY 2021-22 is $457.669,446, an increase of 5.1% as compared to the
prior year-end projections. The General Fund approved budget is $1562,884,614. This represents a 3.6%
increase over the prior year approved budget. The majority of this increase is related to an increase in
personnel services, an increase in the transter to the park venue fund and an increase in the
reimburserments from other funds, The budget included a 3% Civil Service Step increase and a 3% non-
civil services merit increase and un-freezing 10 positions previously frozen in the General Fund. Additionally,
funding was set aside to expand the PlayGrand all abilities park.

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Posifion

Component Units
Grand Prairie Grand Prairie Grand Prairie
Sports Housing Local
Facilifies Finance Government
D I Corparali Corf Toial

2 3 i 3 4771714 4771714
- 4771714 47701714
14.086,730] - - {4.086,730]
- (422,923) - (422,923)
{4,086,730] [422,933) - {4.50%,653]
4,086,730) § (422923) $ 477,714 262,061
12,073 2,606 - 14,699
12093 2,608 = 14,679
(4,074,637 (420,317} 4771714 276,760
48,295,006 [1.013,197) - 47,281,809
422029 § 1,433,514 3 4,771,714 47,558,569
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Activities

Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Frogrom Revenues
Operating Caplial
Chaorges Granls and Grants and
Funciions/Activily Expenses for Servi [of Canfribufi
Component Unis
Governmental activifies:
Grand Prairie Local Government Corporation 3 239349 3% o % 5011073 % -
Total governmental aclivities 239,369 Lo} 5011073 -
Business-ype octivities:
Grand Praine Sports Faciliies Development 5832407 $59.095 - 786,584
Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation 4.344,44] 5741,718 - -
Total business-type ocfivities 12,197,050 6900813 . 784,584
Total Component Units i3 12,436,417 § 6,900,823 % 501,073 § 786,584

General rev enues,
Investment income
Totol general revenues

Change in nel posifion
MNet position - beginning of year

Net posifion - end of year

The Notes lo the Basic Financial Statements are an infegral part of this statement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Management's Discussion and Analysis - Confinued
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021
(Unaudited)

The City's approved approgriations for capital projects in fiscal year 2022 fotals $60.360,502. Planned
capital projects include:

o $21,862,000 in water and wastewater projects
+  $19,090,830 in streets and signals projects

+  $3.396,000 in parks projects

«  $8,441,000 in storm drainage projects

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with
an interest in the government's finances. Questions conceming any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the City Controller,
City of Grand Prairie, Texas, 326 W. Main Street, P.O. Box 534045, Grand Prairie, Texas, 75053-4045.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Net Position

Discretely Presented Component Units
September 30, 2021

Governmental
Business-Type Aclivifies Activifies
Grand Prairle Grand Frairie Grand Frofrie
Sporls Housing Local
Facilifies Finance Governmeni Tolal
Development Corporation Corporallon Component Units
ASSETS
Cosh and cazh eqguivalents 3 9,128,407 k1 &53,749 3 75,752 % 9,857,928
Irvesiments 2011.638 = - 2011,638
Recelvobles. net 1,255,332 = - 1.255.332
Prepaids 5 41,079 - 41,079
Cash and cash equivalents - 1.452,092 1,452,002
Lease payments receivoble T.457.006 - 7457016
Estimated unguaranteed resdud volue 24,365 870 - - 24,369,870
Copital assets:
MNendepreciable = 1.612.851 4,%35331 6.548,182
Depreciable, net - 10,222,096 = 10,222,096
Totol ossels 44,202,263 13,981,897 5011083 63,215,233
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,694 232,033 - 233927
Accrued Bobilties = 257,300 257,300
Current liabilities payable fromresiricted assefs:
Customer deposits - 94,867 - 94,8467
Urearned revenus - 21823 - 21,823
HMoncurren] liablifies:
Due within one year:
Environmenlal remediation obligation - - 237,369 239,369
Current porlion of long-term delbi - 360,885 ¥ 360885
Due in more Than one year:
Long-ierm datd - 14,448,493 14,448,473
Totdl lictiities 1.894 15,415,401 239,349 15,656,664
NET POSITION
Nel investrment in copital assets = (1,644,382 4,935,331 3,290,942
Resiricted for:
Focilty l=ose 32774638 = 32,774,636
Replocement reserve 146272 - 146,272
Oiher specific purposas - - 1143,617] [163.617)
Urresiricled 11,445,733 64,594 - 11.510.329
Total net position 3 44,220,359 3 |1,433,514) 5 4771,714 3 47.558.549

The Noles to the Basic Financial Statements are an inlegral part of this stalement,
36

Basic Financial Statements
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Governmenial
Busingss-Typa Acliviies - Enteiprse Funds Acthifas
Waler Solid Other intemal
Walswaler Waile MHenmajar Tolal Servce Funds
‘Cosh Bows from oparaling ocihilies e iSRS R
Cah receipls rom cuslamers § EEEESDIZ % IAWETI § IRIANIZY F 1e7enAT % -
Crsh Egp— - . = = 20.736.341

o] > b bt £.315.424
Cosh receips from ofhar governments L] - 65197 65197 -
LY Oilher operiing cath receips AR 158353 734,368 1,186,190 11354
Cosh payrments |o suppieds for goads and sarvical [47.353.057) (7333323 13.596,250} (58,282,632} (er21.330|
Cosh paymants o amployses for servicer (5,467, 850) HannT) 854,604 (15,887,171} (188571
Cosh payrrenis loe nberfund sarvice used [FO00a . (344,068} 17,344,065 24525047
Olher oparaling cosh poyments (5310.427) 11,372,093 [144,788) {8,727, 707) .
Met cosh provided by |used in) opedoling activilies 13765150 3,005,555 8,006,978 22,777,683 LAILOTI
T E x A S Tranifers from ofhar funds A21600 * 537,955 8,753,955 363
Treansfiers ho atnar funds {1:911,485) 138,004 [6273,724) YL EET {281 a0}
Coniributinns fram olher govemments rass - . 74860 .
D ream B i& Pi ay H ar d MNet canh provided by fused in] noncapiial fnancing aclivites 4379375 358,064} 15,835,749 11,814,478} [200.077)
cash i il
Copid impac! feet from davelopan A4S0 = & 450,203 =
it 206,290 194,063 158 486711 [21:558]
il B il (12974838 {241,448 - 15,393,388} {75435
Principal poid on deibi %, 12000 % [1#u000k 15,290,000 &
infarest pakd an debt 1,388,454 . 1 By 1,420,484}
Cihar fisod fees paid {50,778 - L {0,778}
Hel cash provided by jused in] copl 0 oofivikes {14.366,777) 12,224,385 175,472} 14,766,634 EP91]
Cosh fiows from invesling ociviles
Interest received an imvesiments L4 - - 1,18
THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK ——— s
Higt ! i e 2770864 473088 4263 4197887 233805
Cosh and cath equivolents - baginring of year #nrena 7.130.229 232306 33,063,259 1536479
Cash and cosh equivalent - and of year 3 489,574 $ 1,553,309 3 2.218,063 3 37,260.946 3 5871504
et cash iom cperofing acivilies:
Opsairaling Income (ioss] 3 L] ] P985 3 47,585 5 &899.265 § |3z 48
Adjustments o oparafing incoms fisis) lo nél oosh
trom operoding ociivifies
Depraciation T4.647,359 1603759 (Ro AL 18.431.102 04072
Prowisions for uncolsciible accounts . (oL ] . {22522
Changes in axsels and foblies:
i " fs 2,900 L |68 300 {24865 7]
[Increcss) decrease in olher recekaties [7,000,0004 - E 17,000,000 a7
n supphes [F4:-) - [hasa) w03l (42322
Increcss) decraase n prepaids 1764014 . o | 764018 (F085)
Increase [dacreoms] noccounl payabie zoe 243718 (125,044} |326.748) el
Increase |dacreose] i eloinage payatio 41100 : = 411,008 -
Increase [decrease] in oochued iobifies 77,048 438478 [1,695] 515829 S3441%
Incraaye [dacreays] i cusloman deposin &60,401 = 2872 64373 =
Increase (decrese] i uneomed reverus . . |1 (g1 *
Incraase [decreass] in compamaled abiences 1S5 TAIEI 19,475 154,333 4390
Increaye [Bacrenss] n OPER lokilly 196537 EETFT 54119 a3 A5 13T
Increse [decrease] in penton kabiily 1,541,855 [£5.949) [174,951| 1304755 55 4R
et L by [used in| 3 13765150 3 3,005,555 3 006,978 3 22,777,681 3 2ET073
N #h Ivesting, capllal and finoncl il
Capi @anfng - 3 TERAIE % - 3 0209 % l0M45R0 8
3 TERRATE  § - 3 3112091 ¥ L IEE I =
Reconciiialion of ending caih ond cosh equivalents
Io Statement af Mel Foallion:
Unrestricled cosh and cosh aguivalent - end of year 3 24530, 557 3 7,553.309 ] 2218063 1 34302924 3 BB71,504
Resiricted cash and cosh aguivalents - end of yeor 2558002 . = 29580 ¥
Tebal eash ond cosh equivalents - end of year 3 Zfﬂ 3 7:563:_3:9. 3 2218063 3 37260948 3 571,504

The Motes to the Basic Financial Slatements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, Statement of Net Position
And Changes in Net Position September 30, 2021
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 Companent Unlls

Primary
Governmenial Business-Type

Business-Type Aclivilies - rise Funds P Activifies Activifies Tatal
Nonmelor Activities Cash and cosh aquivalents 1 SOPRSA 3 GANRSM 3 IRWedM § 985798
Waler Salid Enferprise Intesnal I esstments 123420888 17.492.007 141,121,893 201,638
Wastewaler Waste Funds Tolal Service Funds Receivables, net 26,121,369 7,163,560 AT 1255532
OPERATING REVENUES Infergovammantal receivables 524716 - ST -
Waler sclas 3 4486350 3 . § - 3 48486361 § - Inventories and supgles SR5.545 595,032 1,180,877 a
Wealewaoler services 30,735,699 - - 30735699 = Prepeics 526903 - S2a503 41.07%
Water and wallewoler lees 2,103,856 - - 2103858 . Reskicied owels:
Wostewater surcharges 859,791 . < 529,791 k Cosh and cash equivalents 12105518 29:8.022 15043,540 1452092
Salidwasle fees - 14,782,778 : 14,782,778 - } In:“"“‘"‘“" bosicialt I ilinigedd A :
Chorges lor services ’ s 12212.551 12.212.551 6314435 SR oaaT3 TearE2 : s
Lecse poyrments receivable - E TASTDNE
Intergev emmertal revenue . = 45,197 65,197 - S . ki . R . 24369 870
Insurance premmiums = . = = ZE23 Copind ossels.
Miscelianeous A 158,353 734368 1186190 11354 ! Mandepreciobie 147 042,631 417,414 186,680.M5 548,162
Total operating revenise 82,449,178 14,941,131 13012118 110,402,425 34,148,090 DGepreciatie. nel 580,240,053 212470223 TH2FITE 10222096
OPERATING EXPENSES Tofal assets 1098914297 R265.472 1,488, 177.969 63215233
Solories and benefils 11419365 3369828 2,755,347 17,744,440 2968012 DEPERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Supplies and miscefansous purchoses | Da3367 524752 1128672 2696991 2633593 Defened ehorge on refundings 2196319 202,243 309852
Purchesed services £.254.524 4,487,472 1,953,140 14685734 L27n8m2 Reloled lo OPEE 3503541 ana,m| 4,208,722
Insrance costs - - * = 2ATES047 Relotedd o TMRS persian 14,558,647 1,470,846 16,229,493
Waler purchases 16,749,528 - - 674,528 - tatal defarrad autfiows of resources 20,659,107 2877890 TREIEFT
wastewater frenfment 926,474 - - 20926,675 - : ! :
Generd and adminsirofive costs 4571847 543,443 146,788 5266008 - LIABILITIES
Franchise fess 3,408,287 LHEIE 244,088 4,181,173 . Accounts poyobie 14687071 5,387,752 2054823 ak by g
Miscelaneous 1502140 B43,674 365,402 3111416 86709 Reloinage poyabie 1,565,104 514832 2067924 2
Depreckation 14447999 1800757 1.579.944 18,430,102 06052 Accrued abifles 14618175 1114879 15733054 257300
Unecmed revarue 21523078 Lm#20 22542395 280
Total operating eapenses B1.129.533 14,004,166 8,463,451 103,803,140 32820345 Current akililles payable fram restricled assats:
Cperafing ncome 1315445 936965 4342455 5,599,285 1327745 Jezusd hiset bl mers i :
Custorrer deposits 45,600 5542.774 5,988,374 4,667
NONOPERATING {EXPENSES) Moncurmen faobifies:
Investmant incorme 1118 - - (WAL S - Due wilhin ane year:
Gain foss| on property deposifion 187,964 79,437 [13.778| 255,625 [#1,558) Compansaled absences FATT A a%4,545 017358 -
Interesi expense [1.028.552) = [30.8104 {1.057.502) - Envircnmental remediafion chigaion 7,350 - 730 339
i fabitfies 78832 . 4785 -
Terlhal nonopenaling revenues (expenses| (835.412) 9439 [44.588) (E00.741] {21,556} Cutrent parkion of lsag-lsim debil 34,685,000 5.470,000 2155000 A4S
Incame belare contribuficns and fransfers 484033 1,016,404 4,258,087 5,798,504 1306, 189 BRI e Hhom eyt
Compensabed absences 11,407,593 129,199 11536792
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS Ofher postemploymant beneiils £4,258,793 4,685,833 70,944,676
Capital cantibulions-impact fees 4.5901,203 - - 4,900,208 - Clasure and postclkanre bobdity - E3018 2083018
Capital contitaions 7.552.418 . 3112091 10,444,509 - el persian habilly 49,226,664 5,649,497 54876161 -
Fansfersin 5216000 - 537.955 4753955 40943 CHher liakillies 3408347 . 3408347 -
Farslers oul [1.911,485) 358,084 16.373.724) (8,642,293 (281,087 ) Lorg-termdebt 452,472,430 0214745 A92.ER0.378 14,448,473
Tolal caniribufians and fansfers 16,738,138 |358.084) (2.723.4678) 13656374 (200077) Tatal lokiises 46,058,670 81.979.267 765.007.939 15,456,644
Chonge in net pesificn 17222149 458,370 1,574,389 19454878 1906112 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Naf position - beginring of yeor 226,169,581 22.349.472 36912,109 85.431,112 18,847,254 Reloled fo GPES 2197.83 300,854 3,498,752 ]
Nef posilion - snd of year 3 amom 3 nie 3§ b § TS 3 5553406 . Reloled fo TMES persion 14815578 1925856 18.745884 -
Tobol deferred oulliows of resources D OI3ELE 2.230.780 22,4459 -
o t-wide Stalement of Aciivifies:
total change in net posiion H 19454578 METPOSITION
ta rellect tha i o furd acfivif Jabed 1o Enlarprive Fuss VIBE2E Hel v estment in copilal oasel 356,640,773 207.008,523 543,545,296 3290545
Resticled far:
Change: in rel posiion of businass-fype octivifiss 3 19,573,679 Debl service #112.567 3,607,207 7.719.904
R Copilc projects 2460072 82,602,002 65,062,074
Suppor Sarvicas 2440.325 = 2040325 -
Pubsic: sedely BIITS - B73.775 -
Recreation ond lelsure 25,367 474 - 25367474
Developmant services 19,419,282 - 19419282 3
Oiher specific purposes | 5763383 - 15,763,283 1183417
Foacilty lease - - - 714,63
Replocemen! iesenve - - - 148272
Ureesiricted (16,452,735 12715651 13,747,082 1151032
Tlal net pasifion 3 AIAMOFIE B J0IFTEIZ 5 TMAM4I 3 47 558,567
The Notes to the Basic Financial Slalements are an integral part of this slatement, The Meles fo the Basic Financial Statements are an infegral part of this stotement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Activities Staterment of Net Position

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2021

Business-Type Aclivilles - Enterpiiie Funds

Program Revenues Nanmalar Actllies
Waler solid trlesprize Intesmal
Operaling Capltal Wastewater Waste Funds Tatal Service Funds
Charges Granfs and Granfs and AESETS
PR Curent avsels:
lions/ Aclivif c c
! L Expenses for Cash and cash equvaknts § MBS § AEAF 4 L2608 3 MI@IM } SE7LSM
Primary gavernment; Invastments 2900000 11,924,536 1,867,471 1207 21,000,000
Coirsihmantal elriies Actounts teceivabi, nel 5E47418 570853 7452809 163,560 64060
‘ e from other furcs 7,000,000 . . 7.000,000 -
Suppor services 3 31880503 % 6341600 % 168781 § - Inveniories and suppiies EIPEr) s a5 130198
Public safety services 105,285,879 11816379 4,302,600 : Prapoics . 8 : . e
i i i 35162022 13,532,065 445,655 = Reatricled oty
Recriion o Iaslure e 5 ) Conh and ceh sauivalents 2958002 - 2958022
Davalopmen! services and other 109,073,042 19,138,584 ADL461.204 6574967 Irwestresnts a9 - s 4158447 -
Interest on long-term debt 14,004,156 - - - Tkl cument ossets 10487 844 0048, 650 A 50750 g 2611 523
Tolal govermmental activifies 295,405,492 E0,828.428 45,358,240 5974967 Nencuren amets:
Capital ossels
; - Lond bR 1,766,508 v 5173353 .5k
Business-type aclivities: Budings. LATIETT LEFEAI7 V4,671 862 21,581,954 1,605 A6
Waler and waslewater 1,889,959 82,449,178 . 12,433,621 Ecuiprrent 14719561 12575778 2307 556 25600894 SRS
i Infrensbuciure 01615 12062660 4500450 A4S L
Solid waste 13906365 14741131 N - Corshruciion In progress 12948008 1,251,099 #7187 0514381 -
Municipal girport 2974864 2,108,678 = - Less: acoumuicied daprecialion |Z10:251.250 (141 14.774] (32, 103.329] |257.44%.353) [Baz7081)
Muricioal gelf course 3,141,846 2975689 = Tolal nencuren assels 199704756 15,567,848 413 25230783 1E91.147
Stormwater 2575380 792,729 - 3112091 Totol gssats 08578420 35616340 42003183 36218149 29004490
Tolal business-type activifies 104,486,216 110,402,425 - 15545712 DEFERRED GUIFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Disbl retunting: 2243 - - 2363 -
9,891, 141,231, 45,398, 250,679 | Rt 10 OPES Tl 242 T 304,781 18.550
Total primary government §__W9EILA0E 3 E1BI05- 8 ot L Rkt 10 TMRS persion g2 an 29,614 810 167848 23637
Compaonent units: Total datarred outliows of rerources 2073346 432456 208 2877600 250873
Grand Prairie Spors Fociities Development ] 58036 % 959,095 § - b 785,584 ABLITIES
Grand Prairie Housing Finance Corporation 6,364,641 5941718 - - 0’;"-"”"*’:'“ " e P - J— -
i R ceount payal ! ; : 447,
Grand Prairie Locd Govemment Corporation 239,369 10 5,011.073 Rikeining piyeiia e % F aapm .
wccroad et 247,506 - 347 s -
Total eompenent uniis 3 12424326 % 4700823 § 5011073 % 784,584 Acenmd tatiilie e 26148 120504 RIS 4350179
Companicted ehances EIELE BE477 008 454,545 078l
J Unecrried revenia 5404 - 13414 1.017.220 -
Ceneral reveiizes: Curen perfon of brg-leim debl 5000 = 125000 S470,000
Tanes Cumrerd abilies poyoble fomiesiicled omssls:
Property taxes Curomer depashs S Abae5 83w SFARTTA -
Sales faxes Tokal currant Sonlies 18.551.514 885,119 778300 20214977 7,451,047
Holel/motel and other toxes Honcumend obiilies:
Fronchise feas jand those based on gross receipts) Comparmoled coiences TR et wrm 129,199 12793
Oiher potlemployment beneilts pETHES (5 % 1z 6,685,833 HIB AT
Investment income Clasare and posteiosune lablity : soE30m T S04 =
Transfers Hal pansion iobilsy 24rA9F LIBRI22 AW 544497 TR0
Tolal general revenues and fransfers HEnG-jamy teey AAIGIAS = Bl . WEMe s
Change in net position Takdl rencurment loklles 4735154 11,685,677 772508 S1.764292 1450295
Net posifion - beginning of year Tokol Fobdtes A5F5081 12.570,796 3503412 1579249 2.301,342
Net position - end of year DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Rainled o OPER 168247 447 6000 Et 31,853
Ralalad o TMRS pension 1186708 ADLBI7 39380 1529086 T8
ot deferred inflows of reteurees 1,355,155 470,264 05361 233079 4BIS
NETPOSITON
Hedirvv st in copilel asels 154562402 15,547,648 36,ATRAT 07008523 145, 17
Restricted far:
Debtservice Lemaw . - 5407337
Copba projects 19946550 2655422 - BRE0TO0E -
Urresiciedt L) 47BN 2008088 7.668.175 18240237
Tetel nel positon $  BOWILI0 5 A00RFa2 § ddBaesE § MBESSN0 3 1S5S0
ct ¢ wor | I Funds A47.523
Net posion of bushes:-type oclivilies 3 3N7IEd
The Motes to the Basic Financial Statements are an infegral part of this sialement. The Notes fo the Basic Financial Stalements are an Integral port of this statement.
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expendiiures, and Changes in Fund Balances of the
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Acfivities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Net ch: in fund bal -folal g fal funds
Amcunis reported for govemmenial activities in the statement of aclivities are difierent
because:

Governmental lunds report copital outlay os expendilures. However, in the government-
wide statement of activilies, the cost of those assels is copilalized and dllocaoied over
fheir estimated usstul lives o depreciation expense. This is the amount of copilal ossefs
recorded In the current period.

Depreciation on copital assets is reporied in the governmant-wide staterrent of aclivities
but does not require the use of curent finonciol resowces. Therefore, depreciation i not
reporied os expenditures In the governmental funcs [except for infernal service fund
depracialion of $306,092).

Governmental funds do rol repor capital confributions.

The net effect of various fransackions involving copiol assefs (i.e. disposals, sales, ond
reassignments) are not reported in the govemmenial funds.

The issuonce of long-lerm debt [ie., bonds) provides curent finoncial resources fo the
govermmenial funds, while repayment of the principal on long-lerm debi consumes the
currant financial resowrces of govemmental funds. Meither frarsaction, howeaver, has
any elfect on net positien. Ako. governmental funds report The elfect of premiums,
discounts, and similar items when debt i firs! issued, whereas the omounts are defered
and amorlized in the statement of aclivifies. This amount is the nei efiect of these
differences in the freatment of long-term debt and related items.

Bonds ssued

Bond principol refirement

Bond prerium ksued

Amorlization of band premiums/discounts
Amcriization of loss on refundings

Some experse accruak reporied in the statement of activities do not require the use of
curent financial resources and, therefore, are nol reporfed as expendilures in the
govemmentd funds,

Accrued inlerest

Compensated absences

Poliution remediation obligation

Postermployment benelit obigation

Pension llability

Deferred pension and OPEB confributions, and nvestrment
ond actuoriol experience

Other liabifies

Cerloin revenues in the stotement of aclivities that do not provide curren! financial
resowrces are nol reported as revenues in he funds,

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain octivities,
such as inswrance and fleet moinienance, to individual funds. The net operaling loss of the
internal service luncs i reported with governmental activilies [net of the omount
allocated 1o business-type activities of $118,821).

Change in net posifion of g tal actliviii

The Motes 1o the Basic Financial Stofements are an integral part of this siatemeni,
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3 65,150,938

£6,180.209

(46,258,454

5,844,556

[2,1238.794)
{107,095,000)
34,875,000
[3.272.425)
2158415

(304,722) (73,638,732}
(71.957)
(6:234)
(6.450)
(3.513,242)
10,453,105
318250

|2,947.862) 4225610

48,089

987,291

3 20,420,713

Net (Expense] Revenue and

Changes in Nef Posifion

Primary G
i T
Lo
g i Total - FUnits
{25370.212) § - 3 (25370.212) $ 5
69,1 64,900) - (B9, 164,500) -
[21.164,302) 121,164,302) -
[42.498,287| - (42,498,287) -
(14,004,156} - |14,004,156) -
[192.203.857) (192,203,857} -
12,992,840 12,592,840 -
- 1,084,766 1,034,766 -
- [B45,748) (865.9¢8) -
- 1166,157) [164,157) -
- 8,446,440 B, 466,440 -
= 21,461,921 21,451,921 -
(152,206,857) 21,461,921 (170,741,926}
(4,074,637}
(422.923)
4771714
274,154
113,824,809 113,824,809 -
80,187,852 - BO,187 852 .
2,366,924 - 2,366,724 .
14,022,362 - 14,022,362 -
333,285 1116 334,40 2.604
1,889,338 11,889,338 - .
212,624,570 1,888,222} 210,736,348 2.606
20,420,713 19,573,695 39,974,412 276,760
356,080,205 268,359,814 584,440,015 47,281,809
416500918 § 007933513 § 724434431 § 47,558,569
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2021

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Property tax receivable, net
Sales tax receivable
Franchise fees receivable
Other receivables, net
Intergovernmental receivables
Due fromother funds
Inveniory
Prepaids

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Customer depasits
Unearnedrevenue

Total liablities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

Shreets Nonmajor Total
General section 8 cip Dbl EplE 2 dal
Grants Service CIP Funds Funds
$ 2,410,868 2069115 § 2,603,020 s . s 33e9same s 5 5007152 § 113536008
192,067,383 533,109 12,360,381 = ; 0948065 &hio giri
2,047 547 - - P = 5 2,031,452 2,366,924
7,780,887 - - ; = = = 14,022,362
2,471,762 = = 202 12,374,809 27,048,695
3933107 . . - - - 240,786 4,583,444
g - - - 512,408 6,247,413
12397 : - 5,287,676 - - 382,555 44,944,122
- - - - - - 5,573,532
432,009 % < F E = 3,225,466 3.357,133
- - - k<l - - 7,036 333,285
108,754 - - 4,500,264 4,845,742
210,415,950 2,602,224 14,963,401 - 281 478 987,119
6,391,675 33,995,286 - S8,831 489 307,674,852
4,245,643 55,859 1,402,174
- - 142,951
6,583,457 106,040 2 £ - - 287,453 25,734,614
147,000,000 = = 3,802,429 - 8,382,924 103,712,674
% % . 171,821 - - 23,092,103 26,124,266
3,198,225 - - 18,188,480 84,420,479
516,825 8,556,197 - - 49,188.810 66,180,209
158,365,925 161,899 1.545,125
- 22,555,000 - 12,320,000 34,875,000
: 10,903,952 - 4,733,835 15,772,930
2043661 = - 15,728,672 33,458,992 114,193,606 357,000,174
2,043,681 - - (9,934,957 536,294 = (47,362,114 [47,145,322)
432,009 - -
594,260 2,440,375 5843860 16,373,299 950,000 . 72,847,012 90172311
) B} i, {309.427) [187.955) [37.693.951) 111,270,265) (88,082,894}
i - - - 92,629,734 107,095,000
2412477 - . . . . 1713071 3,272,425
48,567,628 = 2 - - = 4,550 1,839,420
50,006,374 2,440,325 13,418,276 16,063,872 7E2,045 [37.693.951) 155,926,102 114,296,260
6,724,875 1,298,339 [47.693.951) 108,563,786 5,150,938
$ 210,415,960 2600224 % 14,563,401 7,265,027 2,489,226 37.693.951 107,057,420 234,115,110
H 13991902 % 3,767,565 § $ 215620406 § 299266048

The MNeotes to the Bosic Financial Stalements are an integral port of This stolement,
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Property iaxes
Sales foxes
Other taxes
Franchise fees
Charges for goods and services
Licenses and permils
Fines and forfeitures
Infergovernmental
General ond administrative
Rents and royalties
Investment income
Contributions
Other

Totd rev enues

EXPENDITURES
Current operafions.
Support services
Public safety services
Recreation and lesure services
Development services and other
Caopital oulloy
Debi service:
Principal retirament
Inferest and other charges
Totol expenditures
Excess [deficiency| of revenues
over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Bonds issued
Prermium on bonds issued
Proceeds fromsale of ossals

Tolal other financing sources juses)

Net change in fund bolonces
Fund balances - beginning of year

Fund balances - end of year

Streets
General Secfion 8 CIP
3 74535565 % - 3 ]
39,760,993 . ]
335472 -

14,022,362 - "
6,065,457 8,604,227 -
4,022,506 320,154 -
5,735,005 = =
2429636 35,644,255 -
5,573,532 - -

131,667 = -
324214 - J
134,464 - 107,250
650,026 45,615 -
153,934,901 44,614,251 107,250

25,447,161

$1.727.323 ¥
2,860,342 - -
12,595,116 45,365,461 5073197

vk = 7812323
- 2 135,103

133,252,821 45,365,461 13,020,623

20,682,080 {751.210) (12.913.373)

{33.150,754) - |5,470.542)

- - 14,465 266
- - 1,559,354
1,626,620 B.250 i

31,324,136] 8,250 10,554,078

(10.642,058) [742.960) 2.359.395]

60,648,430 3,183,285 15,777.571

3 50006374  § 2440335 % 13,418,274

Nonmajor Total
Debt Epic 2 Gover tal tal

Grants Service CIP Funds Funds
4,775,709 1.592.767 ¥ 67,856,075 B1,307,554
- 2,200,000 38,550,672 245,711,545
= 924,981 - 2,972,528
- = 7769116 15,550,003
- = 60,026 2,431,788
32,189 4,658 1.813.036 5,082,990
452,319 - = 524716
28,000,000 - 113,371,317 141,371,317
- = 33,338 465,347
E 26,126 26,126
33,260,217 4,722,406 229,479,706 495,443,914
744,760 5997 7,567,736 14,042,16%
32,617 3 1,379,536 1,555,104
136,110 - 842,389 7,687 996
- = 1,371,317 148,371,317
- - 45,600 45,600
18,354,828 - 2,651,522 21,523,175
19,268,315 5997 13,858,100 193,205,381
- 928,644 ~ 2,972,505
- 928,844 2 2.972,505
- = 59,464 491,473
13,991,902 3.787.565 162,415,468 187,073,380
- = 53,146,674 60,721,090
e - - 2,412,477
- = = 46,567,628
13,991.902 3,787,565 215,621,606 299,266,048
33,260,217 4,722,406 } 229,479,706 495,443,914

The Moles fo the Basic Financial Stotements are an integral part of this stalement,
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City of Grand Prairie, Texas

Reconclliation of the Gavernmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2021

Total fund balance - fotal governmental funds 3 279,266,048
Amounts reported for govemmentol aclivifies in the stalement of nel posifion are different
because:

Capilel msets used in govermmental aclivities are nof financial resources, and therafore, ore not

reporied in the funds {excluding infemal service lunds' copital assels of $1.693,147), 795,400,517 .
Certain revenues are nol avallable o poy for cument-period expendilures: therefore, thess
revenues ore deferrad in the funds. 2972505
ik
Carjain osels and fiobilities da not provide o require the use of current financial resources; e
Iherefore, these assets and llabilifies are not reperted In the govemmental lunds. | T x
Accrued interest on long-term debt $ [2,603,842) E A S
Unamarized loss of bond refundings 2196319
Delemed pension and OPEB confributions, and investment and acluarial experience [exchuding - -
intemal service fund totols of $33,109). (1,501,084 11,908.407) D recam B g Pl ay ]-{ ar (1

infernal service lunds ore used by management fo charge cost of cerlain aclivilies, such as
employee health insurance, risk manogement insurance, and feet services, lo Individual furds,
The asels and Babillties of Ihe infemal service funds are included in governmental acfivities in the
government-wide shatement of net position [net of amount allocaled lo business-fype: aciivities of
$3.047,523). 16,905.883

Noncurrent labilifies are not due and payable in the current pariod; therefore, they are not TH ls PAG E IS I NTE NTI O N A LLY LE FT B LA N K

reparfed in the governmental fund balonce sheel. These noncurent liabiifies are as fallows;

Long-term debl §  [442,155,000)

Unomariizad bond premium/discount, net [27,203,630]

Compensated absences |exchuding Internal service fund tolals of $43.774) 121.023,263|

Ciher pest employment benefits [exchiding infemal service fund lofals of $838,442) (63,420,351

Net pension Bability (excluding intemnal service fund tolols of $799,060) (48,427 605}

Enviranmental remediafion obligation |27.350)

Other liabilities [4,087,229) (626,344 428)
Met position of governmental activifies $ 416500918

The Notes 1o 1he Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

OFFICIAL STATEMENT SUMMARY

This summary is subject in all respects fo the more complete information and definitions contained or incorporated in this Official
Statement. The offering of the Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of this entire Official Statement. No person is
authorized to detach this summary from this Official Statement or to otherwise use it without the entire Official Statement.

THECHEY G ity

B 010 ———

PAYMENT OF INTEREST ..

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE ...

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS ...

REDEMPTION 1..ooroveciossiisiemsrmiienases

NOTAX EXEMPTION....ooorrennnnis

USE OF PROCEEDS ...ooovvvvensnnsnnions

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM

The City of Grand Prairie, Texas (the "City") is a political subdivision and home rule municipal
corporation of the State of Texas, located in Dallas, Tarrant and Ellis Counties, Texas. The City
covers approximately 8] square miles {see "INTRODUCTION - Description of the City™).

The Bonds arc issued as $8,000,000 General Obliga(ion Bonds, Taxable Series 2022 (the
"Honds"). The Bonds are issued as serial bonds maturing on February 15 in each of the years
2024 through 2033, and as term bonds maturing on February 15 in Lhe years. 2035, 2037, 2039,
2041 and 2043 unless i 3 in dance with the p hmm (see "THE
BONDS - Description of the Bonds", (*Optional Redempmm of the Bonds™ and “Mandatory
Sinking Fund Redemption™).

... Interest on the Bonds accrues from the Delivery Date, estimated to be December 6, 2022, and

is pu)abie February 15, 2023, and cach August 15 and February 15 thereafler until maturity or
prior redemption (see YTHE BONDS - Description of the Bonds, THE BONDS-Mandatory
Sinking Fund Redemption” and "THE BONDS - Optional Redemption of the Bonds").

The Bonds are issued pursuant to the Home Rule Charter of the City, the Constitution and
general laws of the State of Texas, including particularly Texas Government Code, Chapters
1331 and 1371, as amended, and an election held within the City on May 1, 2021, and an
ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City on October 11, 2022, authorizing the issuance
of the Bonds (the “Bond Ovdinance™) which delegated to an authorized officer of the City (1he
“Pricing Officer”) the authority to execule a pricing certificate (the “Pricing Certificate™ and
together with the Bond Ordinance, the “Ordinance™), which Pricing Certificate was executed
on November 9, 2022 and contains the final sale terms of the Bonds. (see "THE BONDS -
Authority for Issusnce of the Bonds" and *- Security and Source of Payment for the Bonds™).

The Bonds, when issued, are direct obligations of the City payable from a direct and continuing,
annual ad valorem tax levied, within the limits prescribed by law, on all taxable property within
the City as provided in the Bond Ordinance (see "THE BONDS — Security and Source of
Payment for the Bonds").

The City reserves the right, at its option, to redeem Bonds having stated maturities on and after
February 15, 2030, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof, on February 15, 2029 or any date thereafter, at the par value thereof plus acerued interest
to the date of redemption (see "THE BONDS - Optional Redemption of the Bonds").

The Bonds maturing on February 15 in the years 2035, 2037, 2039, 2041 and 2043, (the “Term
Bonds™) are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in part prior to maturity at a price of
par plus accrued interest to the redemption date (see “THE BONDS — Mandatory Sinking Fund
Redemption™),

. Interest on the Bonds will not be exeludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

See "TAX MATTERS" herein.

Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to provide funds (i) for prmnmin,g economic
development throughout the City, through planning, designing, constructing, improving,
extending and expanding public streets, utilities, and other infrastrueture facilities, including the
acquisition of land therefor, and through the City's programs for economic developme.n[ and
hnusmg including the acquisition of improved and ummpmved propetties, the demolition of
existing structures, makmggrams, loans and otherwise providing with bond p d:

fop economic d I and to stimulate bus:ncs‘s and omnmercml ncuwly in the Clty
for private commercial, industrial, retail, resid I and mixed-use d
and entertainment pmjec[s and nelghhor}'mud mvu.allzatlon pchcts, and (u} 1o pay the casts

associated with the issuance of the Bonds.

The Bonds have been rated "AAA" with a (stable outlook) by S&P Global Ratings, a division
of S&P Global Ine. ("S&P") (see "OTHER INFORMATION — Rating”).

The definitive Bonds will be initially registered and delivered only to Cede & Co., the nominee
of DTC pursuant to the Book-Entry-Only System deseribed herein. Beneficial ownership of the
Bonds may be acquired in denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples thercof, Mo physical
delivery of the Bonds will be made to the beneficial owners thereof. Principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on the Bonds will be payable by the Paying Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co,,
which will make distribution of the mmounts so paid to the participating members of DTC for



bseq to the beneficial owners of the Bonds (see "THE BONDS - Book-Entry-
Only System"),

PAYMENT RECORD .......ccoceecveee The City has not defaulted on its general obligation bonds since 1939 when defaults were
corrected without refunding and has never defaulted on its revenue bonds.

Pl X C

FORM OF BOND COUNSEL’S OPINION

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.)



City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

0. Tax Abatements and Economic Incentive Agreements

The City has incentive agreements with companies which may refund or rebate certaln amounts of taxes
based on performance indicators. These agreements are governed by Chapter 312 of the Texas Local
Govemment Code. Recipients may be eligible based on their impact to the City's economy, as usually
measured by job creation. Agreements may also contain recapture or ‘clawback’ provisions in the event
of non-performance of the agreement standards. The City's Management Services division reviews the
performance of the companies under these agreements for their compliance with stated standards. As
of the 2020 certified roll (used for 2021 fiscal year) the City's abatement agreements with four companies
resulted in $38,060,542 in appraised values, tofaling $255,005 in taxes abated on the 2020 certified tax roll
{used for the 2021 fiscal year).

P. Subsequent Events

On February 9, 2022, the City issued $26,000,000 in Certificates of Obligation, Series 2022, The proceeds of
the issuance are intended for use on street projects and some repairs and updates on existing police, fire,
and municipal facilities.

On February 16, 2022, the City issued $17,136,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 20224,
The proceeds refunded $7,700,000 of Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series
2013A, $1,410,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013A, $5,065,000 of Combination Tax and Revenue
Certificates of Obligation Series 2013, and $2,360.000 of General Obligation Refunding and Improvement
Bond Series 2013. The refunding resulted in present value savings of 1,514,347,

On February 16, 2022, the City issued $8,215,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 20228, The
proceeds refunded $7,790.000 of Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Dbligation, Series 2014
resulfing in present value savings of $396,110.

Finally, on February 16, 2022, the City issued $19,023,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series
2022C. The proceeds refunded $15,195,000 of Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation,
Series 2015, and $2.110,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bond Series 2015. The refunding resulted in
present value savings of $1,808,452.

On February 24, 2022 the City issued $61,550,000 in Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022, The
proceeds refunded $55,345,000 of Sales Tax Revenue Bond Series 2015 resulting in present value savings
of $5,848,825.

The City has evaluated all other events or fransactions that occurred after September 30, 2021 up through
March 29, 2022, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Fiscal Year Taxable
Ended Estimated Assessed

_930  Population'” Valuation™
2019 189,430 $14,755,015,593
2020 w6100 * 16325123108 ¢
2021 197,347 16,980,301,115 ™
2022 200,640 18,125,734,480

2023 200640 P 20975411,726

(1) Source: City Staff.
(2) Source: 2020 Census.

Net G.O.
Taxable Tax Debt
Assessed Outstanding
Valuation at End
Per Capita of Year'""
$ 77,892 307,720,000
83,249 285,465,000
86,043 370,245,000
90,340 448,852,000
104,543 428,404,000 "

Ratio of Net

G.O. Tax Debt Net
to Taxable G.O. Tax

Assessed Debt
Valuation Per Capita
2.09% § 1624
1.75% 1,456
2.18% 1,876
2.48% 2237
2.04% 2,135

(3) As of October 2022, a population estimate for fiscal year 2023 is not available. Subject 1o change during the ensuing year.
(4) As reported by the Dallas Central Appraisal District, Tarrant Appraisal District, and Ellis Appraisal District on the City's
annual State Property Tax Board Reports; subject to change during the ensuing year.

(5) Includes taxable i | value of approxi
(6) Includes taxable i 1 value of apy
(7) Includes taxable i 1 value of app
(8) Includes taxable i tal value of app

(%) Includes taxable incremental value of approxit

(10) Excludes revenue supp general obligati

General Obligation Debt."
(11} Includes the Bonds.

GENERAL FUND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT SUMMARY

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

ly $381,547,594 that is not available for the City's general use.

ly $424,344,427 that is not available for the City's general use.

ty $760,000,000 that is not available for the City's general use,

fy $870,000,000 that is not available for the City's general use.

mately $1,300,000,000 that is not available for the City's general use.

debt. See "Table 9 — Computation of Resources for Payment of Self-Supporting

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Beginning Balince § 60,648,430 § 45186271 $ 33,745,051 $ 31,346,705 $ 31,011,895
Total Revenue 153,934,501 159,544,066 150,707,356 134,912,713 126,720,322
Total Expenditures 133,252,821 128,429,131 127,629,808 123,411,609 116,161,238
Net Transfers (33,150,756) (16,762,667) (12,704,188) (10,106,151) (11,110,985)
Sale of Capital Assets 1,826,620 1,115,891 1,067,920 1,003,393 886,711
Net Funds Available (10,642,056) 15,462,159 11,441,220 2,398,346 334,810
Ending Balance $ 50,006,374 §  60,648.430 $ 45,186,271 $ 33,745,051 § 31,346,705

For additional information regarding the City, please contact:

Cathy Pairick, CPA

Chiel Financial Officer
cpatrick @GP T orp

City of Grand Praicie

300 W. Main Street

Girmd Prairle, Texis 75050
(972) 237-2000)

Brady Olsen
holsen@GPTX ore
City of Grand Praire
300 W. Main Street

(072) 237-8099

Aagmtant Finance Direcior

Grand Prairie, Texas 75050

Jim 5. Sabonis Andre Ayala

Managing Dirccior Managing Director

junsabomisE@ill ks som andreavalimhilopsecuritiss.com
Hiliop Secarities Inc. Hillkop Securities [ne.

TI7 N, Harwood Sireet, Sulte 3400 717 N, Harweod Sireet, Suite 3400
Dallns, Texns 75201 Dallas, Texas 75201

(214) 9534195 (214) 9534184



OFFICIAL STATEMENT
RELATING TO

58,000,000
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, TAXABLE SERIES 2022

INTRODUCTION

This Official § which includes the A lices hereto, provides certain information regarding the issuance of $8,000,000
City of Grand Praivie, Texas, (the Clty") General Obhgatlon Bonds, Taxable Series 2022 (the "Bonds™). Fxce:pt as otherwise
indicated herein, capitalized terms used in this Official Statement have the same meanings assigned to such terms in the ordinance
adopted by the City Council on October 11, 2022, (the "Bond Ordinance"}, which delegated the final pricing of the Bonds to a
Pricing Officer pursuant to a "Pricing Certificate” that was executed on November 9, 2022 and contains the final sales terms of the
Bonds, which Bond Ordinance and the Pricing Cerlificate are jointly herein referred to as the "Ordinance.”

There follows in this Official Statement descriptions of the Bonds and certain information regarding the City and its finances. All
descriptions of documents contained herein are only summaries and are qualified in their entirety by reference to each such
document.  Copies of such documents may be obtained fiom the City's Financial Advisor, Hilllop Securities Inc.,
("HilltopSecurities") Dallas, Texas.

DESCRIFTION OF THE CITY . ., The City is a political subdivision and home rule municipal corporation of the State of Texas (the
"State"), duly organized and existing under the laws of the State, including the City’s home rule charter (the "Home Rule Charter™).
The City first adopted its Home Rule Charter in 1948. The City op under a Ci il form of with a
City Council comprised of the Mayor and eight Council members who are elected for staggered three-year terms. The City Manager
is the chief administrative officer for the City. Some of the services thal the City provides are: public safety (police and fire
protection), streets, water and sanitary sewer utilities, environmental health services, parks and recreation, public transportation,
public facilities, planning and zoning, and general administrative services. The 2010 population was 175,396 while the 2020
Census population was 196,100, The estimated population for 2022 is 200,640. The City covers approximately 81 squarc miles.

INFECTIOUS DISEASE OUTBREAK — COVID-19 _ . . In March 2020, the World Health Orgammuon and the President of the United
States sep ly declared the outbreak of a i 'y disease caused by a novel coronavirus ("COVID-19"} to be a public health
emergency. On March 13, 2020, the Governor of Texas {the "Governor") declared a state of disaster for all counties in the State
because of the effects of COVID-19. Subsequently, in response to a rise in COVID-19 infections in the State and pursuant to
Chapter 418 of the Texas Government Code, the Govemor issued a number of executive orders intended to help limit the spread
of COVID-19 and mitigate injury and the loss of life, including limitations imposed on business operations, social gatherings and
other activities.

Over the ensuing year, COVID-19 negatively affected travel and busi locally and globally, and negatively
affected economic growth worldmdl: and within the LS., the State and the City. Fol]owm,g the widespread release and distribution
of various COVID-19 in D b 2020 and a d in active CO\"ID I'} cases generally in the United
States, state governments (including Texas) began lifting busi and social limil d with COVID-19. Under
execuuve orders in effect as of the date of this Official Statement, there are no State-imposed COVID-19 related operating limits
for any b or other bilish in the State and no Slﬂt:—nnposcd requirement to wear a face covering. The Governor
retaing the right to impose future restrictions on activities if needed in order to mitigate the effects of COVID-19. Additional
information regarding executive orders issued by the Governor is accessible on the website of the Governor at
https:/gov.texas.gov/, Neither the information on, nor accessed through, such website of the Governor is incorporated by reference,
cither expressly or by implication, into this Official Statement.

With the easing or of i ROV 1 restrictions, ic activity has increased. However, there are no
assurances that ic activity will inue or i at the same rate as before the COVID-19 pandemic or following the
easing or removal of restrictions, especially if there are future outbreaks of COVID-19 of variants of COVID-19, The COVID-19
pandemic may result in lasting changes in some businesses and social practices, which could affect business activity and limit the
growth of or reduce the City's ad valorem and sales tax collecti In addition, further or ded reductions in the value of stocks
and other investments could impact employee retirement plans or other funds and could require actions by the State. The City
cannot predict the long-term economic effect of COVID-19 or the effect of any future outbreak of COVID-19, or variants of
COVID-19, or a similar virus on the City's operations or financial condition.

Some of the fi and i data ined herein are as of dates and for periods prior to the economic impact of COVID-
19 and insti to sluw it. A fingly, such information is not necessarily indicative of the current financial condition
or future prospeets of the City. The City continues to monitor the spread of COVID-19 and is working with local, State, and national
agencies to address the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic upon the City. While the full extent of the impact of COVID-
19 on the City cannot be fully quantified at this time, the continued outbreak of COVID-19 could have an adverse effect on the
City's operations and financial condition, and the effect could be material,

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Naotes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

M. Contracts, Commitments, and Contingent Liabilities

Federa te Granis

The Cily participates in a number of state and federally assisted grant programs. These programs are
subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or thelr representatives. Any liability for
reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits is not believed to be material.

Litigation

The City and Sports Corporation are contingently liable in respect of lawsuits and claims in the ordinary
course of operations which, in the opinion of management, will not have material adverse sffect on the
combined financial statements.

Water intake Focili ct

The City enfered into a contfract with the Trinity River Authority (TRA) whereby TRA agreed to sell revenue
bonds, and, to construct and operate water freafment, fransmission and storage facilities necessary to
supply freated water to several area cities. The City has also agreed contractually to pay TRA annuailly
an amount sufficient to pay it's pro rata share of the operation and midintenance expenses of the facilities
and related debt service of its bonds. The project is not treated as a joint venture by the City since the
project is managed and unilaterally controlled by TRA, the City has no equity interest in the project, and
the City is not obligated for the repayment of TRA bonds,

Water Purchase Contracts

The City has a 30-year contract with the City of Dallas, which expires in 2042, for the purchase of water.
Grand Prairie currently takes up to 37.8 milion gallons a day (MGD), and pays o fixed demand charge
plus a volume charge, The demand charge is based on curent maximum demand or the highest
demand established during the five preceding years, whichever is greater. Thus, even if the City were to
stop purchasing water from Dallas, Ifs obligation to pay the demand charge ($271,422) would extend for
five years. The maximum may be increased in future years as needed. Grand Prairie has two intake points
for City of Dallas water with a contractual right obligating the City of Dallas to meet Grand Prairie’s needs.
Existing pipelines will provide up to 55 MGD.

A contract with the City of Fort Worth, effective until the year 2031, permifs the City to purchase up to
2.5 MGD.

A confract with the City of Midlothian, executed in 2014 for a 30-year term, permits the City to purchase
up to an average of 4.5 MGD during the term of the confract. Beginning in January 2016, the City began
purchasing water from the City of Midlothian at an average rate of 0.478 MGD.

A confract with the City of Arlington, executed in 2011 for @ 20-year term, allows the City fo purchase up
to 2.5 MGD maximum flow unless otherwise agreed to in wiiting. As of September 30, 2021, no water has
been purchased through this contract.

Wastewater Treatment tra

The City has a 50 year contract with TRA, which will expire in 2023, for wastewater treatment. The City is
billed for its prorated share of total wastewater costs, which was 16.69% during fiscal year 2021. The City
must pay ifs prorated share of the debt service related to wastewater treatment facilities until the debt
matures whether it contributes to flow or not,
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

PURPOSE . .. Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to provide funds (i) for promoting ic devel I b
September 30, 2021 the City, through planning, designing, r.onstruclmg. improving, extending and expanding public streets, ul1|1t|e=;, and o1.he|
infrastructure facilities, including the acqu‘srtmn of land lhcrcfor. and through the City’s prog; for I and
housing mcludlrl.g the acquisition of imp d and unimp properties, the demoli ic of existing structures, maklng grants,
loans and other pmvld.mg, assistance with bond proceeds to promote eool\omlc development and to stimulate business and
commercial activity in the City for private commercial, industrial, retail, residential and mixed-use development, hospitality and
entertainment projects and neighberhood revitalization projects; and (ii) 1o pay the costs associated with the issuance of the Bonds,

PLAN OF FINANCING

L. Fund Balance

At September 30, 2021, fund balances were classified as follows:

Hanrnajor
Sheets Datl Gverrimenial . .
G it e b Pk Foik Fo Use OF BoND PROCEEDS . . . Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds are expected 1o be expended as follows:
Fund bolanaes
Henspendatle: SOURCES OF FUNDS:
Irvanlory and prepai $ ampe 3y - % S - 3 S T SO A Par Amount of Bonds § 8,000,000.00
b T
T Purchaser's Discount (44,966.50)
Employes Wellare 127382 b 1 1 7 : 1aroeg TOTAL SOURCES: $ 7.955,033,50
Ubsrary semaria Lol - - - - - .28 _—
A1 Rk Youlls AT B % i 2 ; a8 457
Sireat Pion Review men - - - - - 0878 )
Girag Hunlar Sehelehips &3wEn [« - g : : 3980 USES OF FUNDS:
Stabe Training (Fre| L - . . e B2 Depuosit 1o Project Fund $ 7,835,778.50
Froiie Fows Adaplions H506 - - - - - 29508
Sachiont - 2,44L325 - - - . 40T Costs of lssuance o 99.255.00
Fown! hrareacrens AamE : £ - S TOTAL USES: $ 7.,955,033.50
ol ¥ 8 : 13551502 . = 13991502 —_—
Dabt Seevice - - - - 3787.565 - 3787545
Epic 2 CIP & Epic Conbiel - - - 8416613 414433
Pork Verue . . . - BB 495 BB
Shreaty 3 X S % - 3200311 azoan THE BONDS
Crime: = = - - - BOE0TM3 BOAM7A3
et 5 g 2 . i s G vy DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS , . . The Bonds are dated November 1, 2022, and are scheduled to mature on February 15 in each of
Miricipal Courl - - . . . 215,658 718,658 the years and in the amounts shown on page 2 hereof. Interest on the Bonds will accrue from the Delivery Date, estimated to be
#ed Light Solety - 3 - 2 1197221 1.197.221 December 6, 2022, will be computed an the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, and will be payable on each February
::- "I‘"“‘ i . i : i i::‘;; E:i:;; 15 and August 15 until maturity or prior redemption, commencing February 15, 2023, The definitive Bonds will be issued only in
ml;::ﬂ:’,::"mm; e - = 2 3 _ V4172940 1417290 fully registered form in any integral multiple of $5,000 for any one maturity and will be initially registered and delivered only 1o
Othar special evenoe . . - kAL 26019 Cede & Co., the nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC") pursuant to the Book-Entry-Only
Ferk Yerue Cogllol Frojects - - - - 5 1994018 1796318 System deseribed herein. No physical delivery of the Bonds will be made to the beneficial owners thereof. Principal of,
FaCorgl Biach > > = : : e Tenga premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be payable by the Paying Agent/Registrar (identified below) to Cede & Co., which
TFU:F;?ICF;(;“BE coptemaEet d : : : 3 m?jﬂjg mi:::’; will make distribution of the amounts so paid to the patticipating members of DTC for subsequent p to the beneficial owners
Clhar Copital Projects - - . - = 82723 8271 of the Bonds, Sec "THE BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System” herein,
Tt resiricled SAZD  2adnaM L 843860 13791500 3787565 162,415,443 189,073,380
it Interest on the Bonds shall be paid to the registered owners appearing on the registration hnu?&s of the Paying Agent/Registrar at
the close of business on the Record Date (hereinafter defined), and such interest shall be paid (i) by check sent United States Mail,
reel Imorovemerts - - 7574416 . . 1514416 first class postage prepaid to the address of the registered owner ded in the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar
Pork Verue. . ? > 2 s TR hTeaal or (ii) by such other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar requested by, and at the risk and expense of, the registered
Cabls Operaian: - - . . - 08,265 505265 i g s : ; ; o8
N i i . i . 1460008 | 440.£08 owner. Principal of the Bonds will be paid to the registered owner at their stated maturity or upon earlier redemption upon
Cemetary = F i 3 x 4,667,633 4857 433 presentation to the designated pn)'menll.ﬂmnsfbr office of the Paying Agent/Regi s provided, | y that so long as Cede &
Municiped Faciilies Copilal Project: - - . : 4FB0557 AT Co. (or other DTC nominee) is the registered owner of the Bonds, all payments will be made as described under "THE BONDS -
;:“%"C::r f’":"" 5 % 8 ? - "'ia?:: "':‘:ﬁ Book-Entry-Only System™ herein, If the date for any payment on the Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday or a day
“F,,"vﬁ_fm o . . . . . 5777.508 PaT7.598 when I_Jank'mg institutions in the city where the designated paymenh‘tmnsfe:r office ofllll:‘Paying Apgent/Registrar is located are
Dibar Copllal Projects - - - - - 5.552.550 5459 558 authorized to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a day, and payment on such
Capiid Lending/Reserve: . = x s 13408334 13407134 date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the date payment was due,
il comrdted - = 1574416 - - 51,144,678 @
Fadgrst ot AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS . . . The Bonds are issued pursuant 1o the Constitution and general laws of the State,
Homa Malch Cash IR - = : Az particularly Chapters 1331 and 1371, Texas G Code, as ded, the Ordi and an election held within the City on
4 ty
KGPD Commision L?;; . : . : - ;_2 May 1, 2021, and constitute direct obligations of the City.
Yol Sehatships fund A . - . -

» i = £ - = = aeae " g : g i
Kk:f,"r:';:m 2‘;:::; % : : R 2794 SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAVMENT FOR THE BONDS . . . The Bonds, when issued, are direct obligations of the City payable from
fire. Slate Supplamant! Funds 1448850 . ¥ : ¢ S 1440850 a direct and eontinuing, annual ad valorem tax levied, within the limits prescribed by law, on all taxable property within the City
Hl o4 Forme: Fust Fund 11234 = F : : . 11234 as provided in the Bond Ordinance.
first Offencies Frogram 15,437 . . . - 15.427
:lsn;:::l;::?::::‘iml" é::;; . . . . . ,::::; TAX_R.-!TI; LIMITATION ... All taxable property within lhe City is subject to the assessment, Ie\lfy and collection by the City of a
GPPD Bowing Program 280 - . < - 2187 continuing, direct annual ad valorem tax sufficient to provide for the payment of principal of and interest on all ad valorem tax debt
GFPI Expiorar Progiom 14378 £ F S - 14378 within the limits prescribed by law, Article X1, Section 5, of the Texas Constitution is applicable to the City, and limits its maximum
EFED Maiac ko] o 2 = - : = % ad valorem tax rate to $2.50 per each $100 of Taxable Assessed Valuation for all City purposes. The Home Rule Charter of the

lolal cxsigned 2412477 2 ¥ < = 5 2412477 City adopts the constitutionally authorized maximum tax rate of $2.50 per each $100 of Taxable Assessed Valuation.
Unaigned 46,567,678 i 3 Z - 2 48547430 Administratively, the Attorney General of the State of Texas will permit allocation of $1.50 of the $2.50 maximum tax rate for all
Talal fund balances 5 SM00GATA  § 2440325 § IDAIATE 3 INSPISR £ ATNSeS 3 DINANLAE 3 799266048 general obligation debt, based on a 90% tax collection rate as calculated at the time of issuance.
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OPTIONAL REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS . , . The City reserves the right, st its option, to redeem Bonds having stated maturities on
and after February 15, 2030, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, on February 15,
2029, or any date thereafter, at the par value thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. If less than all of the Bonds
are to be redeemed, the City may select the maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed. 1 less than all of the Bonds of any maturity
are to be redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar (or DTC while the Bonds are in Book-Entry-Only form) shall determine by lot the
Bonds, or portions thercof, within such maturity to be redeemed. If any Bond (or any portion of the principal sum thereof) shall
have been called for redemption and notice of such redemption shall have been given, such Bond (or the principal amount thereof
to be redesmed) shall become due and payable on such redemption date and interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after
the redemption date, provided funds for the payment of the redemption price and accrued interest thereon are held by the Paying
Agent/Registrar on the redemption date.

MANDATORY SINKING FUND REDEMPTION . . . The Bonds maturing on February 15, in the years 2035, 2037, 2039, 2041 and 2043
(collectively, the "Term Bonds") are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on the dates and in the principal amounts shawn
below at the price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.

Tern Bonds Dise Terin Banids Due Term Bemls Dhoe Tem Bonds Due Termi Besds Die
February |3, 2035 February 15, 2097 Februsry 15, 239 Fuebeuary |3, 2041 February 15, 2043
Tedemgtion Principal Hedemption Principal Redemption  Principal Tedeirption Principal Redettigion Principal

Datz Amuan) D Ansum Drace Amannt Dt Amount Dlate: Amount

Februaey 15,2034 S 390000  Febroary |52036 § 35000  Fobroary 15,2000 § 485000 Februwy |5, 2040 5 S4RLO000 Febwuwry 15,2042 § 5,000
February 15,2035* 415000  February |5, 20357 460000 Febuary 15,2030%  S10.000  Febrvaey 15, 2041%  STOO00  Februney 135, 2043 640,000

*Stated maturity.

At least forty-five {45) days prior to each mandatory redemption date for the Term Bonds, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall select
hy Iot the numbers of the Term Bonds within the applicable stated maturity 1o be redeemed on the next following Februaty 15 from
moneys set aside for that purpose in the Interest and Sinking Fund (as defined in the Bond Ordinance). Any Term Bonds not
selected for prior redemption shall be paid on the date of their stated maturity.

The principal amount of the Term Bonds required to be red d on any latory redemption date p ta the operation of
the mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions shall be reduced, at the option of the City, by the principal amount of any Term
Bonds which, at least 50 days prior to a mandatory redemption date (1) shall have been acquired by the City at a price not exceeding
the principal amount of such Term Bonds plus accrued interest to the date of purchase thereof and delivered to the Paying
Agent/Registrar for cancellation, or (2) shall have been red i to the optional redemption provisions and not th

eredited against a Jatory red ion requi

NOTICE OF REDEMPTION . .. Mot less than 30 days prier to a redemption date for the Bonds, the City shall cause a notice of
redemption to be sent by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed, in
whole or in part, at the address of each registered owner appearing on the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the
close of business on the business day next preceding the date of mailing such notice. ANY NOTICE 50 MAILED SHALL BE
CONCLUSIVELY PRESUMED TO HAVE BEEN DULY GIVEN, WHETHER OR NOT THE REGISTERED OWNER
RECEIVES SUCH NOTICE. NOTICE HAVING BEEN SO GIVEN, THE BONDS CALLED FOR REDEMPTION SHALL
BECOME DUE AND PAYABLE ON THE SPECIFIED REDEMPTION DATE, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THAT ANY
BOND OR PORTION THEREOF HAS NOT BEEN SURRENDERED FOR PAYMENT, INTEREST ON SUCH BOND OR
PORTION THEREOF SHALL CEASE TO ACCRLUE.

With respect to any optional redemption of the Bonds, unless moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds to be redeemed shall have been received by the Paying Agent/Registrar prior to the giving of such notice of
redemption, such notice may state that said redemption is conditional upon the receipt of such moneys by the Paying
Agent/Registrar on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption, or upon the satisfaction of any prerequisites set forth in such
notice of redemption; and, if sufficient moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no foree and effect, the City shall not
redeem such Bonds and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice, in the manner in which the notice of redemption was given,
to the effect that the Bonds have not been redeemed.

DEFEASANCE . . . The Ordinance provides for the defeasance of the Bonds when the payment of the principal of and premium, if
any, on the Bonds, plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due date be by reason of maturity, redemption or
otherwise), is provided by irrevocably depositing with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or other authorized escrow agent, in trust (1)
money sufficient to make such payment ov (2) Government Securities, which Government Securities shall mature as to principal
and interest in such amounts and at such times to insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to make such
payment, and all necessary and proper fees, compensation and expenses of the paying agent for the Bonds. In the event of a
defeasunce of the Bonds, the City shall deliver a certificate from its financial advisor, the Paying Agent/Registrar, an independent
certified public accountant, or another qualified third party coneering the sufficiency of the deposit of cash and/or Government
Securities to pay, when due, the principal of, redemption premium (if any), and interest due on any defeased Bonds. The Ordinance
provides that "Government Securities” means (a) direct, noncallable abligations of the United States of America, including
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TMRS Su ath
Deferred Cutflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference in expected and actual experience 3 336699 % [612.182)
Difference in assumptions 1,189,992 [144,508)
Difference in projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments = -
Employer's contributions to the OPEB plan
subsequent to the measurement date 30,535 -

% 1,557,226 $ {756,690)

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from contributions subseguent tfo the
measurement date of $30,535 will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the
City's financial statements September 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows
of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Betiree Health Insurance
Measurement Net deferred
Period Ended outflows (inflows)
September 31, of resources
2022 § [453,955)
2023 [453,955)
2024 408,682
2021 408,682
2024 -
Total % (70,544
TMRS Sy, enfal Death
Measurement Net defered
Year Ended outflows (inflows)
December 31, of resources
2021 3 167,926
2022 167,926
2023 160,848
2024 117.758
2025 79.582
Thereatter o 7sRel
Tokal § 770,001
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The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City's TMRS supplemental plan calculated using the
discount rate of 2.00%, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (1.00%) or 1 percentage point higher [3.00%) than the
current discount rate:

Sensitivity of the OPEB Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Incracse
3 6,435476 % 5288290 % 4,398,326

Sensitivity of the Tolal OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City's retiree health insurance, as well as what the
City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one
percenfage point lower or 1 percentage peint higher than the current healthcare cost frend rate:

Sensitivity of the OPEB Liability to
Changes in the Healthcare Cost Rale
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rale 1% Increcse

3 56,434,600 3§ 65,656,336 % 74,380,016

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resour Deferred Inflows of R s Related to OPEB
For the year ended September 30, 2021, the City recognized total OPEB expense of $6,000,782 which
included $5,518,041 related to Retiree Health Insurance and $482,741 related fo TMRS Supplemental
Death.

At September 30, 2021, the City reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following resources:

Retiree Hi rance
Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Cifference in expecled and actual expearience 4 - $ (2,087,798)
Difference in ossumplions 2,651,496 [654,244)
Difference in projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan iny estments = -
Emplayer's contributions to the OPEB plan
subsequent o the measurement date - -

5 2,651,496 % (2,742,042}

bligations that are itionally d by the United States of America, (b) noncallable obligations of an agency or
instrumentality of the United States of America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency
or instrumentality and that, on the date of their acquisition or purchase by the City, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally
recognized investment rating firm not less than "AAA" or its equivalent, (¢) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a
county, municipality, or other political subdivision of & state that have been refunded and that, an the date of their acquisition or
purchase by the City, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized in rating firm not less than "AAA" or
its equivalent, and (d) any other then authorized securities or obligations that may be used to defease obligations such as the Bonds
under applicable laws of the State of Texas. The City has the right, subject to satisfying the requirements of (1) and (2) above, 1o
substitute other Government Securities for the Government Securities originally deposited, to reinvest the uninvested MONEys on
deposit for such defeasance and to withdraw for the benefit of the City moneys in excess of the amount required for such defeasance.

There is no assurance that the current law will not be changed in a manner which would permit investments other than those
deseribed above to be made with amounts deposited to defease the Bonds. Because the Ordi does not c Iy limit such
investments, registered owners may be deemed to have consented to defeasance with such other investments, notwithstanding the
fact that such investments may not be of the same investment quality as those currently permitted under State law, There is no
assurance that the ratings for U5, Treasury securities used as Government Securities or that for any other Government Security
will be maintained al any particular rating category,

Upon such depasit as described above, the applicable Bonds shall ne longer be regarded to be outstanding or unpaid. After firm
banking and financial for the discharge and final payment of the Bonds have been made as deseribed above, all rights
of the City to initiate proceedings to call the Bonds that have been defeased to maturity for redemption or take any other action
amending the terms of the Bonds that have been defeased to maturity are extinguished; provided, } ver, that the right to call the
Bonds that have been defeased to maturity for redemption is not extinguished if the City: (i) in the proceedings providing for the
firm banking and fi ial 2 pressly reserves the right to call the Bonds for redemption; (i) gives notice of the
reservation of that right to the owners of the Bonds immediately following the making of the firm banking and financial
arrangements; and (iii) directs that notice of the reservation be included in any redemption notices that it authorizes.

AMENDMENTS . , . The City may, without the consent of or notice to any Holders of the Bonds, from time to time and at any time,
amend the Ordinance in any manner not detrimental to the interests of the Holders of the Bonds, including the curing of any
ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission therein. In addition, the City may, with the written consent of Holders of a
majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, smend, add to, or rescind any of the provisions of the
Ordinance; provided that, without the consent of all Holders of Outstanding Bonds, no such amendment, addition, or rescission
shall {1} extend the time or times of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, reduce the principal
amount thereof, the redemption price, or the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify the terms of payment of the
principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, (2) give any preference to any Bond over any other Bond, respectively, or
(3) reduce the aggregate principal amount of Bonds required to be held by Holders for consent to any such amendment, addition,
Or rescission,

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM ., . This section describes how ownership of the Bonds is to be transferred and how the principal of,

premium, if any and interest on the Bonds are to be paid to and credited by DTC while the Bonds are registered in its nominec

name. The information in this section concerning DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System has been provided by DTC for use in

disclasure documents such as this Official Statement. The City belicves the source of such information to be reliable, bt takes na
ponsibility for the ar I thereof.

The City cannot and does not give any assurance that (1) DTC will distribute payments of debt service on the Bonds, or redemption
or other notices, to DTC Partici (2) DTC Particiy or others will distribute debt service payments paid 1o DTC or its
nominee (as the registered owner of the Bonds), or redemption or other notices, to the Beneficial Owners, or that they will do so
on a timely basis, or (3) DTC will serve and act in the manner described in this Official Statement. The current rules applicable to
DTC are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the current procedures of DTC to be followed in dealing with
DTC Participants are on file with DTC,

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name
of Cede & Co. (DTC’s hip inee). Omne fully-regi d certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of each such maturity and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a
"banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing
corporation” within the ing of the New York Uniform Ce ial Code, and a "clearing agency” regi i to the
provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million
issues of U.S. and non-ULS. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100

countries) that DTC's particip {"Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among
Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry
transfers and pledges t Direct Partici ? . This elimi the need for physical movement of securities

Direct Particip include both Ur‘S. and non-1LS. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing
corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation
("DTCC"Y. DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securitics Clearing Corporation and Fixed [ncome Clearing
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Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the
DTC system is also available to others such as both LS. and non-U.5. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and
cleating corporations that clear through or maintain a dial relationship with  Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly
{"Indirect Participants"). DTC has Standard & Poot’s rating of AA+, The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with
the Securities and Excl Commission, More inft jon abaut DTC can be found at www.dice.com and www.dic.org.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for such
purchases on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond ("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be
recorded on the Direct or Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their
purchase, but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as
periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the
transaction, Transfers of ownership interest in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Participants
acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. 1 Owners will not recelve certificates representing their awnership interests
in the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system deseribed herein is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent fers, all Bonds dep d by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's
partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such ather name as may be req d by an authorized rep ive of DTC. The deposit
of Bonds with DTC and their registation in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not affect any change in
beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity
of the Direct Participants to whase accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not he the Beneficial Owners. The Direct
and Indirect P will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

e

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Ditect Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants,
and by Direct Partici and Indirect Particip to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arangements among them, subject
to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take
certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions,
tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond di For ple, Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to
ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In
the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices
be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC, 17 less than all of the Bonds within & maturity are being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to
determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such maturity to be redeemed.

Meither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nomines) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds, unless authorized by a
Direet Participant in accordance with DTC's Procedures, Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the City as
soon as possible after the Record Date (hereinafter defined). The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights
to thase Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the Record Date (identified in a listing attached to the
Omnibus Proxy).

All payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co. or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative

of DTC. DTC's practice is to eredit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and ponding detail i
from the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records.
I by Particij to Bencficial Owners will be g d by fing i ions and ¥ as is the case

p
with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of
such Participant and not of DTC nor its nominee, the Paying Agent/Registrar or the City, subject to any statmutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from lime to time. Payment of redemption p ds and principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the City or the Paying
Agent/Registrar, dist of such pay to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of
such payments to the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to one or both series of the Bonds at any time by
giving reasonable notice to the City or Paying Agent/Registrar. Under such eircumstances, in the event that a successor securities
depository is not obtained, Bonds are required to be printed and delivered.

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository).
In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered,

Effect of Termination of Book-Entry-Only System...In the event that the Book-Entry-Only System is discontinued, printed Bond
certificates will be issued fo the holders and the Bonds will be subject to transfer, exchange and registration provisions as set forth
in the Ordinance and summarized under "THE BONDS - Transfer, Exchange and Registration” herein.

Use of Certain Terms in Other Sections of this Offictal Statement. In reading this Official Statement it should be understood that

while the Bonds are in the Book-Entry-Only System, references in other sections of this Official Statement to registered owners
should be read to include the person for which the Participant acquires an interest in the Bonds, but (i) all rights of ownership must
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes fo the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

The discount rate was based on the Fidelity index's "20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” rate as of

December 31, 2020.

Change In OPEB Lickility Total OPEB
Retiree Health Insuronce Liability
Balance at September 30, 2020 $ 62543755
Changes for the year:
Service cost 4,393,270
Interest 1,578,728
Difference between expected
and actual experience -
Changes in assumptions -
Benefit payments* [2,859.417)
Net changes 3,112,581
Balance at September 30, 2021 $  45656,336
Change in OPFEB Liability Total OPEB
TMRS Supplemental Dealh Liability
Baolance of December 31, 2019 $ 4,419,808
Changss for the year:
Service cost 191,195
Interest 123,620
Difference between expected
ond actual experience (93,343)
Changes in assumptions 687,282
Benefit payments® [40,252)
MNet changes 868,482

Balonce at December 31, 2020

*Bue fo the Plan being considered an unfunded OPEB plan under GASB 75, benefit payments are reated as being equal to the

employer's yearly contibutions for reflrees.

3 5,288,290

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City's retiree hedlth insurance calculated using the
discount rate of 2.41%, as well as what the City's total OPEB licbility would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower [1.41%) or 1 percentage point higher {3.41%] than the

current discount rate:

Sensitivity of the OPEB Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
b 72474347 % 65,656,336 % 57,702,266
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City Of Grand Prairie, Texas

Netes to the Basic Financial Statements

September 30, 2021

The City of Grand Prairie TMRS supplemental death total OPEB liability of $5,288,290 measured as of
December 31, 2020, ond was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date,

Actuaral Assumptions

The retiree health insurance total OPEB liability in the September 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation

Salary Increases
Discount Rate

Mortality rates - retireas

2.50%
3.50%
241%
RP-2014 Combined Table projected using MP-2019

The discount rafe was selected by Cify of Grand Prairie based on the Bond Buyer 20-Bond General
Obligation Index to reflect yields on long-term municipal bonds os of the measurement date,

The TMRS supplemental death total OPER liability in the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation

Solary Increcses
Discount Rate
Administrative expenses

rortality rates - service retirees

Mortality rates - disobled refirees

2.50%

3.50% to 11.5% including inflation

2.00%

All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension Trust and
accounted for under reporting requirements under GASE Statement No.
68.

2019 Municipal Refirees of Texas Mortalily Tables. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basls with scale UMP.

201% Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables with a 4 year set forw ard
for males and a 3 yeor set-forward for females. In addition, o 3.5% and 3%
mirirnum mortality rate will be applied to reflect the iImpairment for
younger members who become disabled for males and females,
respectively. The rates are projected on o fully generafional basis by Scale
UMP to account for future mortality improvements subject to the fioor.
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be exercised through DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System, and (ii) except as described above, notices that are to be given fo
registered owners under the Crdinance will be given only to DTC,

Infarmation concerning DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System has been obtained from DTC and is not guaranteed as to accuracy
or completeness by, and is not to be construed as a representation by the City, the Financial Advisor o the Initial Purchaser (defined
hergin}.

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR . ., The initial Paying Agent/Regi is Zions B poration, National Association, Houston,
Texas. In the Ordinance, the City retains the right 1o replace the Paying Agent/Registrar. The City to maintain and
provide a Paying Agent/Registrar at all times until the Bonds are duly paid, and any successor Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a
bank, trust company, financial institution or other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve as and perform the duties
and services of Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds, Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds, the City
agrees to prompily cause a written notice thereof to be sent to each registered owner of the Bonds by United States mail, first class,
postage prepaid, which notice shall also give the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar.

TRANSFER, EXCHANGE AND REGISTRATION . . . In the event the Book-Entry-Only System should be discontinued with respect to
the Bands, printed Bonds will be delivered to the registered owners thereof, and thereafter the Bonds may be transferred and
exchanged on the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar only upon presentation and surrender of such printed Bonds to
the Paying Agent/Registrar, and such transfer or exchange shall be without expense or service charge to the registered owner,
except for any tax or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect to such registration, exchange and transfer. Bonds
may be assigned by the tion of an assi form on the respective Bonds or by other instrument of transfer and assignment
acceplable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, New Bonds will be defivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar, in lieu of the Bonds being
transferred or exchanged, at the designated office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, or sent by United States mail, first class, postage
prepaid, to the new registered owner or his designee. To the extent possible, new Bonds issued in an exchange or transfer of Bonds
will be delivered 1o the regi | owner or assignee of the regi 1 ewner in not more than three business days after the receipt
of the Bonds ta be canceled, and the written instrument of transfer or request for exchange duly executed by the registered owner
or his duly authorized agent, in form satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, New Bonds regi d and deli i in an exchang
or transfer shall be in any integral multiple of $5,000 for any one maturity and for a like ageregate principal amount as the Bonds
surrendered for exchange or transfer. See "THE BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System" herein for a description of the system 1o be
utilized initially in regard to ownership and transferability of the Bonds. Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be
required to transfer or exchange any Bond called for redemption, in whole or in part, within 45 days of the date fixed for redemption;
provided, however, such limitation on transfer shall not be applicable to an exch by the regi d owner of the uncalled
balance of an Bond.

RECORD DATE FOR INTEREST PAYMENT . . . The record date {"Record Date”) for the interest payable on the Bonds on any interest
payment date means the close of business on the last business day of the preceding month.

In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for such
interest payment (2 "Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment
of such inferest have been received from the City. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past
due interest (which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five business days prior to the Special
Record Date by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each registered owner of an Bond appearing on the
registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of m ailing
of such notice.

BONDHOLDERS' REMEDIES . [f the City defaults in the payment of principal, interest or redemption price, as pplicable, on the
Bonds when due, or if it fails to make payments into any fund or funds created in the Ordinance or defaults in the observation or
performance of any ather covenants, conditions or obligations set forth in the Ordinance, the registered owners may seek a writ of
mandamus to compel City officials to carry out their legally imposed duties with respect to the Bonds if there is no other available
remedy at law to compel performance of the Bonds or the Ordinance and the City's obligations are ot uncertain or disputed, The
issuance of a writ of mandamus is controlled by equitable principles, and rests with the diseretion of the court, but may not be
arbitrarily vefused. There is no acceleration of maturity of the Bonds in the event of default and, consequently, the remedy of
mandamus may have to be relied upon from year to year. The Ordinance does not provide for the appointment of a trustee to
represent the interest of the holders of the Bonds upon any failure of the City to perform in accordance with the terms of the
Ordinance, or upan any other condition and, accordingly, all legal actions to enforce such remedies would have to be undertaken
at the initiative of, and be financed by, the registered owners. On April 1, 2016, the Texas Supreme Court ruled in Wasson fnterests,
Ltd. v. City of Jacksonville, 489 S.W. 3d427 (Tex. 2016) ("Wasson") that sovereign immunity does not imbue a city with derivative
immunity when il performs proprietary, as opposed 1o governmental, functions in respect Lo contracts execuled by a city, The
Texas Supreme Court reviewed Wasson again in June 2018 and clarified that to determine whether governmental immunity applies
to a breach of contract claim, the proper inquiry is whether the icipality was ged in a go Lot proprietary function
when it entered into the contract, not at the time of the alleged breach. Therefore in regard to icipal contract cases (as in tort
claims) it is incumbent on the courts 1o determine whether a function was proprietary or governmental based upon the statutory
guidance at the time of the contractual selationship. Texas jurisprudence has generally held that proprietary functions are those
conducted by a city in its private capacity, for the benefit only of those within its corporate limits, and not as an arm of the
government or under the authority or for the benefit of the state, I ign i ity is o ined by a court to exist, then the
Texas Supreme Court has ruled in Tooke v. City af Mexia, 197 5.W.3d 325 (Tex. 2006) that a waiver of sovereign immunity ina
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contractual dispute must be provided for by statute in "clear and unambiguous" language. Chapter 1371, Texas Government Code
("Chapter 1371") which pertains to the issuance of public securities by certain issuers such as the City, permits the City to waive
E igni ity in the p Jings authorizing its debt obligations. The City has relied upon Chapter 1371 in connection with
the issuance of the Bonds, but the City has not waived sovereign immunity in the manner provided by Chapter 1371. Because itis
unclear whether the Texas legislature has effectively waived the City’s sovereign immunity from a suit for money damages, holders
of the Bonds may not be able to bring such a suit against the City for breach of the Bonds or the covenants in the Ordinance. Even
if a judgment against the City could be obtained, it could not be enforced by direct levy and execution against the City’s property.
Further, the registered cwners cannot themselves foreclose on property within the City or sell property within the City to enforce
the tax lien on taxable property to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds. Furthermore, the City is eligible to seek relief
from its creditors under Chapter 9 of the 11.S. Bankrupiey Code ("Chapter 9"). Although Chapter 9 provides for the recognition of
a security interest tepresented by a specifically pledged source of revenues, the pledge of ad valorem taxes in support of a general

bligation of & bankrupt entity is not specifically gnized as a security interest under Chapter 9. Chapter 9 also includes an
automatic stay provision that would prohibit, without B ptey Court approval, the p ion of any other legal action by
creditors or holders of the Bonds of an entity which has sought protection under Chapter 9. Therefore, should the City avail itself
of Chapter 9 protection from creditors, the ability to enforce creditors rights would be subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy
Court (which could require that the action be heard in Bankruptey Court instead of other federal or state court); and the Bankruptey
Code provides for broad discretionary powers of a Bankiuptey Court in administering any proceeding brought before it. The
opinion of Bond Counsel will note that all opinions relative to the bility of the Ordi and the Bonds are qualified with
respect to the customary rights of debtors relative to their creditors,

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.)}

City Of Grand Prairie, Texas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2021

The City offers medical, dental, and vision coverage fo eligible refirees.
mployees Covered by Benefi

For retiree health insurance at the September 30, 2021 valuation and measurement date, the following
employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiories currently receiving benefits 226
Active employees 1,328
Total 1,554

For TMRS supplemental death at ihe December 31, 2020 valuation and measurement dafe, the following
employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 662

Inaetive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 133

Active employeeas 1,372

Total 2,167
Confribution:

For refiree hedlth insurance, refirees and their spouses currenily receiving benefits are required to
confribute specified amounts monthly toward the cost of health insurance premiums.

Monthly retiree confribution rates are as follows:

Retiree Monthly Health Care Premiumns for Grandfathered Retirees under 65 [Employee Pays Portion)
Monthly
Hedlth Care
Prerrium

Qver 465 Refiree

(Grandfathered by age)
Employee only $ 241
Employee plus spouse 238

Refiree Monthly Health Care Premiums Retirees under 65 (Employee Pays Porfion)

Monthly
Healih Care

Premium
Group EPO HOHP
Refiree Only $ 284 % 190
Refiree + Spouse 539 404
Refiree + Children 562 324
Farrily 757 569

Total OPEB Liabili
The City of Grand Praire refiree health insurance total OPEB liability of $65,656,336 was measured as of
September 30, 2021, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date,
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